AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, February 5, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.

Members: Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft,
Michael Webster
Others: Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, lJennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,

The Saginaw News, WSGW

l. Call to order

Il. Welcome

Il. Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
V. Agenda

1. Denise Babbitt, Equalization Director, re:
= 2-184 Requesting approval of a proposed Independent Contractor Agreement for
Equalization Services to be used when local governmental units utilize Saginaw
County Equalization for property tax database maintenance and tax billing
services

2. Brian Wendling, Public Works Commissioner, re:
= 2-189 Submitting the 2019 Drain Assessment Roll Report

3. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in Committee)
= 2-18-6 ROBERT V. BELLEMAN, CONTROLLER/CAO submitting the 2019 Fourth Quarter
Finance and Program reports on behalf of the Historical Society of Saginaw
County and its four out-county museums
= 2-18-5 CITY OF ZILWAUKEE submitting Notice of a Public Hearing on the request of
RMC Engine Rebuilding Equipment, Inc., 5775 Bridgeview Center, Saginaw, Ml
on its request for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate

V. Miscellaneous
VI. Adjournment

1-30-2020/sea




AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, March 4, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.

Members: Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft,

Michael Webster

Others: Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, lJennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,

VI.

The Saginaw News, WSGW

Call to order

Welcome

Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
Agenda

1. Katie A. Kelly, Register of Deeds, re:
= 3-17-2 Presenting its updated Remonumentation County Plan submitted to the State
of Michigan, Bureau of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Office

2. Jonathan T. Webb, President & CEO, Castle Museum, re:
= 3-17-3 Submitting millage renewal language for inclusion on the August 2020 ballot

3. Jamie Furbush, President, Frankenmuth Convention & Visitors Bureau, re:
= 3-17-6 Submitting its FY ending September 30, 2019 Audit

Miscellaneous
Adjournment

2-28-2020/cll/sea




DISTRICT #1
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DISTRICT #2
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DISTRICT #3
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DISTRICT #4
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DISTRICT #5
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DISTRICT #6
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DISTRICT #7
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DISTRICT #9
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DISTRICT #10
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DISTRICT #11
MICHAEL A. WEBSTER

STAFF—

Suzy KOEPPLINGER
BOARD COORDINATOR

CINDY L. LOUCHART

ASSISTANT BOARD COORDINATOR

Sue Arceo
Board Assistant

COUNTY OF SAGINAW
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Michael A. Webster, Chairman

Saginaw County Governmental Center
111 S. Michigan Avenue e Saginaw, Michigan 48602
Phone (989) 790-5267 ¢ Fax (989) 790-5569 ¢ Email boc@saginawcounty.com

STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF SAGINAW

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: The following committee meeting(s) that were scheduled
for the week of April 6 - 10, 2020 have been cancelled as follows:

COMMITTEE DAY DATE TIME

PLACE

Human-Services———— Menday———6%— 4:00 p.m—Rm-—200

Cancelled

Courts-& Public Safety —Fuesday———— 7% 4:00 p.m—Rm-200

Cancelled

County-Services— Wednesday—— 8% 4:00-p.m—Rm-—200
Cancelled

Budget/Audit— Thursday—— 9% 4:00-p-m—Rm-200
Cancelled

NOTE: Any committee matters to go before the Board at its April 21, 2020 session will be
reviewed at an Executive Committee meeting on Tuesday, April 14, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. via
Zoom.

PURPOSE: To consider matters pending before the committee, or as noted.

Meetings are open to all members of the public under Michigan's Open Meeting Act.
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Board Office
by writing to the address or calling the phone number listed on this letterhead.

Minutes available for inspection in the Board Office.

POSTED: April 3, 2020
Board Office Initials: sek
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STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF SAGINAW

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: The following committee meeting(s) that were scheduled
for the week of May 4 - 8, 2020 have been cancelled as follows:

COMMITTEE DAY DATE TIME

PLACE

HumanServices——— Menday—— 4% 4:00 p.m— Rm-200

Cancelled

Courts & PublicSafety TFuesday—— 5% 4:00 p.m— Rm-200

Cancelled

County-Services——— Woednesday——6%"— 4:00- p.m—Rm-200
Cancelled

Budget/Audit———— TFhursday—— 7% 4:00-p-m—Rm-200
Cancelled

NOTE: Any committee matters to go before the Board at its May 19, 2020 session will be
reviewed at an Executive Committee meeting on Tuesday, May 12, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. via
Zoom.

PURPOSE: To consider matters pending before the committee, or as noted.

Meetings are open to all members of the public under Michigan's Open Meeting Act.
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Board Office
by writing to the address or calling the phone number listed on this letterhead.

Minutes available for inspection in the Board Office.

POSTED: May 1, 2020
Board Office Initials: sek



AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, June 3, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER
EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-75

Members: Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Others: Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, Jennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,

VI.

Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.
As the County Building is closed to the public, the meeting is open remotely

to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:

County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below
Date/Time: June 3, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/i/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:
Dial: 1 (877) 853-5257 or 1 (888) 475-4499 US Toll-free and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

Call to order

Welcome

Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
Agenda

1. Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau, re:
= 6-16-8 Submitting its Audited Financial Statements for FY 2019 (Receive and File)

2. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be received and filed in committee)
= 6-16-3 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY forwarding the Preliminary State
Equalization Report for the 2020 tax year as approved by the State Tax
Commission

Miscellaneous
Adjournment

5-29-2020 /sea
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

May 8, 2020

To the Board of Directors
Saginaw County Convention
and Visitors Bureau, Inc.
Saginaw, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Saginaw County
Convention and Visitors Bureau (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

4855 State Strcet | P.O. Box 6457 | Saginaw, Michigan 48608 | 989.790.3900 | Fax: 989.790.3155



To the Board of Directors
Saginaw County Convention
and Visitors Bureau, Inc.
May 8, 2020

Page Two

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau's
2018 financial statements, and our report dated March 31, 2019 expressed an
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Saginaw County Convention and
Visitors Bureau as of December 31, 20198 and 2018, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Saginaw County
Convention & Visitors Bureau implemented FASB Accounting Standards Update
ASU 2018-08 Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Coniributions Made. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
that matter.

Mandnss, Provmgsme, Tormse ¢ Loptrr

Certified Public Accountants



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019
Assets
Cash $1,110,718
Accommodation tax receivable 485,461
Prepaid expenses 4,950
Due from Great Lakes Bay Regional CVB -
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 241,846
Total current assets 1,842 975
Fixed assets
Vehicles 141,409
Office equipment 286,227
Less accumulated depreciation (236,772)
Fixed assets, net 190,864
Total assets $ 2,033,839
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 400
Due to Great Lakes Bay Regional CVB 88,310
Total current liabilities 88,710
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Designated 150,000
Undesignated 1,795,129
Total net assets 1,945,129
Total liabilities and net assets $ 2,033,839

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2018

$ 035684
507,083
4,950
125,000
204,964

1,777,681

129,406
216,527

(231,862)

114,071

$ 1,891,752

$ 13,2086
366,709
379,915

————————

150,000
1,361,837
1,611,837

—_———

$ 1,891,752



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Operating activities
Saginaw County accommodation tax
Other income
Total support and revenue

Expenses
Advertising and promotion
Management and general
Total expenses

Change in net assets from operating activities
Nonoperating activities
Interest income
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments held by others
Change in net assets from nonoperating activities
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Without
Donor
Restrictions
2019

$ 1,910,449
5,450

1,915,899

1,343,667
178,039

1,621,706

394,193

4,821
34,278

39,009

433,292

1,611,837

$ 1945129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Without
Donor
Restrictions
2018

$ 1,901,643

— 1,001,643

1,370,833

173,875
1,544,708

356,935

4,125
22 211

(18,086)
338,849

1,172,988

$ 1,511,837



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(With Summarized Comparative Information for 2018)

Current Year Prior Year
Total Total
Program Activity Supporting Activity Expenses Expenses
Advertising and Management
Promotion and General 2019 2018

Salaries and wages $ - $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 25,000
Fringe benefits - 12,395 12,395 11,898
Payroll taxes - 2,844 2,844 2,481

Total saiary and related expenses - 45,239 45,239 39,459
Great Lakes Bay Regionai CVB 1,335,061 - 1,335,061 1,328,612
Community Spotlight Program 120 - 120 31,801
Champion program - - - 96
Economic development 8,486 - 8,486 10,312
Legal and accounting - 7,978 7,979 28,208
Postage - 434 434 659
Equipment and maintenance - 250 250 1,139
Stationary and suppiies - 6,851 6,851 1,188
Dues and subscriptions - 1,341 1,341 5,600
Meetings - 1,038 1,038 1,608
Rent - 59,400 59,400 54,000
Insurance - 3,502 3,502 3,123
Management fees - 2,218 2,218 2,255
Miscellaneous - 20 20 20
Depreciation - 49,667 49,667 36,828

Total functional expenses $ 1,343,667 3 178,039 $ 1,621,708 $ 1,544,708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Operating activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Gain on sale of fixed asset
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments held by others

Changes in operating assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash:
Accommodation tax receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Due from Great Lakes Bay Regional CVB
Due to Great Lakes Bay Regional CVB
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Investing activities
Sale of fixed asset
Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2019 2018
$ 433,202 $ 338,849
49,667 36,828
(5,450)
(36,882) 20,343
21,622 (34,253)
. (450)
(12,808) 6,679
125,000 :
(278,399) (156,261)
206,044 211,735
5,450 ]
(126,460) (43,484)
(121,010) (43,484)
175,034 168,251
935,684 767,433
$1,110,718 $ 935,684




SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--Nature of Acitivities and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Activities and Concentration of Revenue Source

The Saginaw County Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. (the “Bureau”) is a
nonprofit organization which derives substantially all of its operating revenue
from accommodation taxes collected from hotel and motel facilities in Saginaw
County. Its activities and resulting operating costs involve promoting overnight
tourism for Saginaw County.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Bureau have been prepared on the accrual basis
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit
Organizations” (the “Guide”). (ASC) 958-205 was effective January 1, 2018.

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and
losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein
are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. The Organization’s
board may designate assets without restrictions for specific operational
purposes from time to time.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors, and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Non-Profit
Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds by
maintained in perpetuity.

Contributions

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net
assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions, depending
on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Conditional
promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported with donor
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
the donated assets.
$



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of Presentation (continued)

When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement
of activiies as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are
reported as net assets without donor restriction support. Donations of property
and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, buildings, and
equipment are reported as net assets without donor restriction upon acquisition
of the assets and the assets are placed in service.

The Bureau had no contribution revenue during either of the years ended
December 31, 2019 or 2018. All operating revenue derives from accommodation
taxes.

Measure of Operations

The statements of activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes
in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those items attributable to the Bureau's ongoing activities. Non-
operating activities are limited to resources that generate return from
investments, endowment contributions, financing costs, and other activities
considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring nature.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On June 21, 2018, FASB issued ASU 2018-08, (Topic 958) Clarifying the Scope
and Accounting Guidance for Coniributions Received and Contributions Made,
as of the beginning of the year ended December 31, 2019. This has been
adopted using the retrospective approach. Net assets did not change as a result
of this change.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of a commercial checking account maintained in a federally
insured financial institution located in Saginaw County. Deposits for the
commercial checking and savings accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At December 31, 2019, the Bureau bank
balances totaled $1,415,568. The Bureau had uninsured bank balances of
$1,165,568 at December 31, 2019. Management believes that the Bureau is not
exposed to any significant interest rate or other financial risk on this account.

Cash and cash equivalents include all monies in banks and highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less. There were no cash
equivalents at December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Accounts Receivable

Management of the Bureau considers all accounts receivable to be fully
collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The direct costs of providing the Bureau’s program and supporting services have
been reported on a functional basis in the statement of activities. There were no
indirect costs that required allocation during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Income Taxes

The Bureau is exempt from federal income taxes under Section §01(c)(6) of the
Internal Revenue Code and is also exempt from similar state and local taxes.
The Bureau is classified as an organization that is not a private foundation.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the accompanying
financial statements.

Date of Management's Review

Subsequent events were evaluated through May 8, 2020, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Advertising

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred.



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2--Fixed Assets and Depreciation

The Bureau's vehicle, equipment, and leasehold improvements are stated at
cost. Expenditures in excess of $500 for new acquisitions and renewals and
betterments which increase the productive capacity or prolong service lives of
equipment are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs which do not enhance the
value or extend the useful life are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 was $49,667 and $36,828, respectively.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bureau’s vehicle, office equipment, and
accumulated depreciation related to those assets were as follows:

2019 2018
Vehicles $ 141,409 $ 129,406
Office equipment 286,227 216,527
Less: accumulated depreciation (236,772) (231,862)
Net fixed assets $ 190,864 $ 114,071

NOTE 3--Leases

The Bureau leases its office facility under an agreement with SSP Associates,
Inc. The lease agreement expires in December 2024. At the end of the lease
term, the Bureau has the option of renewing the lease for an additional five year
period at the terms of the original lease agreement adjusted by the change in the
Consumer Price Index.

Future commitments under this lease agreement are as follows:

Year ending
December 31
2021 $ 59,400
2022 59,400
2023 59,400
2024 59,400
Total $ 237,600

Rent expense was $59,400 for the year ended December 31, 2019 and $54,000
for the year ended December 31, 2018.



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4--Related Party Transactions

In January 2011, the Saginaw County Convention and Visitors Bureau entered
into a marketing partnership with the Bay County Convention and Visitors
Bureau, and the Midland County Convention and Visitors Bureau to form the
Great Lakes Bay Regional Convention and Visitors Bureau (GLBRCVB). The
partnership allowed those organizations to combine their resources under the
direction of the Great Lakes Bay Regional Convention and Visitors Bureau to
more effectively market the Great Lakes Bay Region to potential overnight
visitors. Under terms of the agreement, the SCCVB provides the GLBRCVB 75
percent of the accommodation tax received to fund the GLBRCVB’s marketing
programs and operating expenses.

The activity between the SCCVB and the GLBRCVB is summarized below.

Expense Expense
Year ended Year ended
12/31/19 12/31/18
Accommodation tax revenue transferred to the GLBRCVB: $ 1,335,061 $ 1,328,612
Due to/ffrom Due to/from
GLBRCVB at GLBRCVB at
12/31/19 12/31/18
Amounts due to the GLBRCVB: $ 88310 $ 366,709
Amounts due from the GLBRCVB: $ - $ 125,000

NOTE 5--Accommodations Tax

Accommodations taxes are collected by Saginaw County and are expended as
required according to the Accommodations Tax Ordinance.

NOTE 6--Economic Dependence

The Bureau receives a substantial amount of its support from accommodation tax
revenue. [f a significant reduction in the level of this funding were to occur, the
Bureau’s programs and activities may be affected.



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7--Reserve Fund with the Saginaw Community Foundation

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, the Saginaw County
Convention and Visitors Bureau transferred assets totaling $150,000 to the
Saginaw Community Foundation (the “Foundation”) for the purpose of creating a
reserve fund. This amount of assets without donor restrictions has been
designated by the Board of Directors of the Bureau for unforeseen emergency
cash flow needs. The Foundation maintains legal ownership of the agency fund
and administers and preserves the fund. Because this is a reserve fund, the
ability to draw from the fund’s principal is a negotiated and necessary element of
this fund. The Bureau has the ability to draw from the fund's principal under
specific conditions. If circumstances require the Bureau to draw down the
principal, a repayment strategy is required to be submitted by the Bureau to the
Foundation along with a request to draw down the principal of the fund. A
request for principal will require two signatures; that of both the Chief Executive
Officer of the Bureau and the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Foundation.

The Saginaw Convention and Visitors Bureau recognizes these assets held by
the Saginaw Community Foundation in the Statement of Financial Position as
beneficial interest in assets held by others. The market value of these assets at
the Saginaw Community Foundation at December 31, 2019 is $241,846 and
$204,964 at December 31, 2018.

NOTE 8--Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The following reflects the Bureau's financial assets as of the balance sheet date,
reduced by amounts not available for general use.

2019 2018

Assets at year end $2,033,839 $1,891,752
Less those not availabie for general expenditures

within one year:

Prepaid expenses (4,950) (4,950)

Fixed assets, net (190,864) (114,071)
Assets availabie fo meet general expenditures

within one year $ 1,838,025 $1,772,731

10



SAGINAW COUNTY CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9--Subseguent Event

As a result of the global coronavirus pandemic (COVID~19), many organizations
have found their financial picture take an unanticipated change. The duration
and full effects of the outbreak are currently unknown as the global picture
continues to change daily. While management is hopeful that the impact is
temporary in nature, a description of known and anticipated circumstances
expected to have a significant impact on the Organization as of the date of
management’s review is as follows:

Accommodation tax revenue - The Bureau relies heavily on
accommodation tax revenue that is generated by overnight hotel stays in
Saginaw County. As travel has been and continues to be restricted during
the COVID-19 crisis, the number of overnight hotel stays in Saginaw
County have declined significantly, resulting in a substantial decrease in
the revenue collected from the tax. The Bureau is closely monitoring this
situation; however, it is unable to determine the impact this will have on
operations at this time.

11
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Enclosed please find the Preliminary State Equalization Report for the 2020 tax year that
approved by the State Tax Commission at their May 11, 2020 meeting.

If there are any discrepancies in the enclosed report, please notify our office in writing no later
than 5:00 p.m. on May 22, 2020. Any objections to the Preliminary State Equalization Report by

the Designated Representative from any County Board of Commissioners will be heard at the
May 26, 2020 meeting of the State Tax Commission.

Should you have further questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office at (517) 335-3429

(ext. 5).
Sincerely,
David A. Buick, Executive Director
State Tax Commission
Enclosure

P.O. BOX 30471 « LANSING, MICHIGAN 48809

www.michigan.qov/statetaxcommission ¢ 517-335-3429
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GRETCHEN WHITMER
GOVERNOR

STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY RACHAEL EUBANKS
LANSING STATE TREASURER
May 11, 2020

We hereby certify that the valuations of the several counties in the State of Michigan as
equalized by the State Tax Commission at the regular session in the year 2020, as provided by
Act 44 of the Public Acts of 1911, as amended by Act 143 of the Public Acts of 1986, are as

presented by the attached report.

STATE TAX COMMISSION

Ap%gygd at Mayy 11, 8030 évfmﬂn&; Cutfpv
. Howard Morris, Commissioner sg'qnai

Leonard D. Kutschman, Commissioner

P.O. BOX 30471 o LANSING, MICHIGAN 48908
www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission e 517-335-3429



¥BE'21L'E0 906'816'000'F aIN aIN 908'668'€29'c 0L£'0S¥'01 06.'689'¥61 000'646'1L} neuejes
S¥.'188'282 029'LS¥'0¥0'Y 001'086'C JIN 661'8¥0'902'E 00¥'0S1'LL ocv'zee'ese 16¥'956'C9¥Y Igader]
00.'s2L'0¥ 00€'290'59L JIN N 00€'€96'€29 00£'208'L 00€'2#0'89 00¥'¥e'LE e
£82'¢29's 01£'919'2€2 JIN £19'2£6'2 965'6/2'942 9.1'202 £8.'v09'2) JIN MmBuUgaMa)|
LYB'BLY LFO'L 8v0'285'£02'0¢E JIN JIN 519'982°198'12 000°152'0€S' £EY'$08'LOY'D 000'0¥2'80¥ sy
00¥'£92'051 001'2/8'0v6 JIN O 00€'7.S'158 006'002' L1 009'€89'ES 00E'ELY'¥E Y
£05'296'589 906'291'60L'01 JIN IIN §21'198'085'L 059'6EY'99Y 008'SE2'92€'2 1£2'909'0€€E oozewsle),
LLL'EBS'ELS £81'1EB'SLL'S JIN OIN ¥19'289'Z1E'Y 91£'€6E'6T1 EIZ'P0L'8LL 086'099'G9¥Y uosyoep
008'S6E'ELZ 600'G9E'EEE'T 3N IIN 1£0'28L'81E"} 002'150'0€ 196'601'82S S¥8'120'ISY ellaqes|
£91'659'65 180°LLL'EYS aIN SSL'Elg'LE 8vv'¥58'y0S 689'816'LY 659'syl oy 0eL's.LE'8) uou|
001'562'v6 0s8'vEv'96e' ) 002'€99'¥ N 006'0¥0'S80°} 098'L28'L2 00%'980'94} 00591829 0980
00%'299'924 110'298'60¥'2 OIN IIN 966'129'805"} elv'seg'gy 00€'96¥'6¥} 00£'601'S0L Bjuo|
952'22€'899 996'822'509'6 000'1SL'2 o 060'609'6.€'9 v.6'092'022 #96'716'965'2 966'20€'L9¥ weybuj
810'916'22L 952'019'180'E JIN OIN 296'016'091'1 ¥16'225'8Y 00.'626'S2) 009'9¥Z'0VL'L uoiny
9¥6'¥5.'e9 989'815'¥b2'L L08'9¥S'L 192'1L0'91 26€'2EL'E00°) 09€'255'61 S18'80¥'281 §56'961'91 uoyBnoK
69+'0,9'08 980'0v8'256'} 000°'8¥S IIN $80'995'012'} 9/9'2y' Ly £.9'821'66 15¥'281'109 a[epsinH
£v8'992'6LY Zig'Lye'eyL) JIN JIN 069'099'2L9 006'S¥6'Sy 000'¥8L'0%1 Z2.'969'288 o8I0
050'410'9/2 §5€'20£'8L0'L JIN N 189'112'285'S 000'L¥1'€6 $10'20€'8¥2'L 00¥'286'¥51 asianey] pueio
262'162'28 zZ8v'80¥'809 JIN 962'29€'¥2 S99'LYLLLS 691'30%'1 929's.2'LS 925'922'} ajqefion
009'2L¥'v9 059'242'€12'} JIN IIN 00£'L6S'2¥0'} 002'069'0} 052'798'08 005'SE9'E0} uMmpBIo
000'822'9LL ¥20'120'¥21'2L JIN IIN 016'65.'8L1°6 00S'€LL'E0€E 009'99€'€2¥'2 pLO'LEL'BLE 258U
000'096'021 861'€L1'620'y JIN aIN 966'890'€09'C 00.'089'SL 00L'¥99'L LY 008'86.'8¥ Jswiwig
295'661'52€ L6Y'LEL'0ZY'Y 00L'20L'6 JIN 695'9/£'966'2 §6.'09.'252 .19'928'8€L 618'290'v8¥ uoje3
006'286'20} ZLY'189'sv8 JIN 009'080'¥Z /86'896'00L 001'€€2'1S 595'206'L¥L 002'9EY'12 uosupiolq
6.2'969'02} 89G'ELL'OLE'L 00€'s0} JIN 89€'211'610°} 001'1LL'02 002'e82'191 009'ELL'SY ejeq
001'209'LS 520'20€'06L JIN IN §2£'606'09 00¥'€18'56 00€'6.5'6¥F JIN pIoymMEID
LIy'PBO'YEL 6£1°002'216'E JIN aIN 009'€02'625'2 001'222'89 681'28E'98Y 052'.8¢'s28 oo
LEL'662'2E) gye'ZeL'SYE') JIN JIN £6'2LE'080'} ovi'gLe'sl 289'89.°06 085'288'¥0} ||y
008'26L'LL OvE'020'9¥E' ) aIN aIN Ov6'cr0'c80’} 009'298'SZ 009'sev'68) 002'089'Ly emaddiyn
00L'L2¥' VL 121'600'¥8.'L JIN 00000} 126'c0v'28G') 008'1L£'0 006'S€€'10) 009'86.'EE uebAogay)
002'108'9L 8.5'660'268'2 JIN aIN 8.6'210'909'2 008'¥8E'EY 00£'2,9'/8} 001'620'08 Xjonapey9
S¥5'886'652 00S'6£¥'996'2 aN aIN 009'8./8'682'2 009'€LS'2y 009'082'904 009'902'298 8580
2£9'08%°LSY 00L'v95'e52'y JIN JIN 01%'299'098'2 625'e¥0'212 8s¥'210'v19 20€'998'1LLS unoye9
8.8'vL¥'09) 188'289'8L0'C JIN IIN 1£6'68L'L1Z') 91£'656'Sy £55'810'S.1 SL0'9L¥'0v9 youeug
L09'L£6'LES 085'068'219'6 JIN JIN 8€€'260'926'9 ZvE'80€'E0E"} 006'20€'508 000'281'82S usiag
168'850'9Y 929'102'2¢8'} aIN 00%'216 69v'199'€69'} 008'1€8'y 006'€0°'90} 650'212'02 ojzueg
Lv'oLy'sLe $96'9E'C9E'E IN JIN SE1'G9E'202'C 002'290'29) 002'98%'10S 62y’ 1SV’ L6¥ feg
051'042'904 $0Z'915'LLL'E JIN JIN $09'298'2LY'2 009'292'0L 008'2€9'854 002'€SE'OLY Aueg
008'284'€S 689'0€9'1EE JIN ov0'LyL'ee B2 YEE' VST 999'8¥2'€Z 8v9's12'02 S¥0'166'01 ebeseg
059'290'05 §1£'620'€0L JIN aN SIY'PLS'LES 000°'2L£'8 008'7LE'8Y 00¥'618'¥4L srualy
002'012'48 yiL9'sz)'L28'T JIN aIN PLL'LLO'LEE'S 005',92'6 002'£25'201 008'c¥Z'v8 wuy
LBL'EYY'LL §29'086'190'L OIN OIN 08.'01v's28 001°192'€E §29'669'0L ) 0si'sii'o8 euadiy
8v9'/81'¥¥E 006'£6€'€68'9 001'69.°€ JIN S02'LIE'2I'S 05.'185'082 £86'0£5'2¥S 299'vE2'vS8 uebajly
085'065'22 €.€'7/8'10S JIN aN eLL'PPT'EEY 000'988'6 00¥'8EY'8Y 008'S0€'01 136y
00.'88L'LE 00.,'61'928 JIN JIN 006'99€°15. 009'612'4L 002'¥6'8e 000'999'9E BUOdNY
Auadoud [guosiad (8101 Auadoid (eay |ejo).  [ejuswdojeaaq J9A0IND Jaquiy] |Bguap|say [elsnpu| |elawwo) jenynouby

2/) abed 0202 - MAINTY 40 G¥VOd A8 GIAONddY SNOLLYNTYA A3SSASSY Wd 2€:2) 0202/82/¥0



z16'610'2¥8'0¢E 902'920°800'99Y  LES'SLL'EL zLE'192'602 896'221L'Z2V'IvE  2L0'919°'906'6L 9.9'v8L'L¥8'69 189'05.'699'v2 SIVLiOL
006°c19'6L 9.E'0LL°8E2'} O 9N 919'6.1'866 00L'€26'09 000'8€6°2¥L 001'689'e¥ pIopEM
8e0'gLL'0EY' Y 0£0°'926'689'c9 00¥'90e oM 109'8v0'261'8€ 098'Z98'¥EL'E 9ZE'6E1"LE0'LE 000°280°92 aukem
128'16€'0¥2'L 218'69€°'299'2C 00€'E10'9E oM gee'eyl'6er'ol 018'¥¥9'089 €LZ'19E'ELL'S 086°261'v¥g MBUBJYSEM
00¥'c92c1l9 00}'cot'028'e oM 9N 00€'190°'910'E 008'€04'22L 006°c68'69C aoL'viv'azy uaing uep
6¥P'HOL'YES 1SL'08V'8LE'T ON N 1PE'908'v8L'E oos'ize'ee 099'e¥9'g6 99€'066'966 Bjogsny,
69c'9p9'zeL 99.'298'29v'T om OMN 919'022'L19'L 00L'229'68 062'v9E'L12 002'0€9'8.9 agsgeme|ys
¥62'8vF've ope'gZL'ELY OIN 000'69%'} 9¥9'920°z0¢ 002'I¥2Z'1) 00£'£99°2€ 004°96%'9 yesojooyog
909°19L'ce2 08+'0,9'969°C N oM 28.'g28'950'L 902'69.'¢2 818',82'¥2! ¥z1'989'1€€'} asjjueg
syL'oye'aLe 02822y’ L6L°T N oM 625018'80L°} 009°228"LLL 00Z'cg9's6l LeL's0Y' LLL ydasor jues
08L'EL0'¥G0'L 109°'20¥'291°'L O oM Z¥9'982'ese's o¥g'syL'o8s 006'962'69. 929'920'18Y JBIO ujes
00.'691°119 £99°2¥0'L2L'9 ON 00812 160'/99'689°C 00¥'%09'291 008'014'660'L 99.'9¥9'08L maujfeg
00Z'699'05 09.°2e1'c29'L oM OMN 098'vE'PIS'L 006°198°1 00L°1€8°10L 009'v868'y UoWILOIS0Y
002'€08'cE 068'822'q18 OMN 000'¥8 088'92+'089 006'699'£2 00+'y16'92 00L'vPL'18 ajs] enbsaid
009°109°LE8 ¥29'289'v2e'9) 0ov'sel N ¥29'v29'e08'}} 00+'269'198 006'808°9.8°} 002'8.LE"L2L eMEJO
9¥9'692'v¥e 162'eee'vee'L N oM 186'606°980'} 00L'625'62 006'8249'202 00L'¥9E'SP obesi0
0o6'sLL'8y 9LL'6¥0'LEY N oM 916'620°68¢ ooz'zze'e 00901922 00#'980°2L BPO2SQ
009°'cL}'96 161'99v°268 N N 160'¥8L'9.L9 008°€EE'ZE 00€'0£9'S¥ 000°'869°LE} B|08950
¥19'609'€C y.2'ves'0ee oM g6v'98L' 12 169'c9g'0ve 0ZL'268°1 120'ev0'9L lec'evL'oL uofiBuouQ
0£0'opL'ye SEL'L0L'1E0') oM OMN 9£8'62.'928 006°128'9 008°184°201 00L'pLi'e8 mewabo
009'96£'99 ZIE'TLI'TEL') N OMN 2L0'861'6LE") 008'26.'6€ 1000°606'26 009°229'cZe BUB300
#96'921°600'e 096'892'269°LL oM N 0LL'28.'000'28 0¥6'899'89b°'2 aza'sL8'sb0'el 0£v'820'c8 puepiRO
108986021 288°'100'¥10°2 O N 289°218'809'} 00E'L¥E'eS 002892024 008'¥80'€€Z ofiAemaN
00g'Zke'9ee 008'200°619'S O/N OMN 008'990'2L9'y 008'7.9'g8) 009'v29'24L 009'vOL'LYL uoBaxsnyy
811°660°LE yE2Z'YPPO'2I9 N OMN Z1L'069'E99 008°2LL'8 008°1£9'82 226'e0e'12 fousiounuopy
000°ZEV'EET 089'26€'2rv'Z N OIN 09€'0v.L'59L"} 00a'z26'2y 000'v¥9'281 00€'9£0'L9Y wieajuop
189°664'c68 90.°216°£88'9 0EL'v2e' AN L¥8'191'ShL'y $6.'602'589 0¥9°2L9'098 £99'c99'¥69 ensuop
$¥9'LEB'EL 00€'199'828 N 9N 001°995'869 002'c69'6 009'229'e¥ 009'2LL'0L} amjness|iy
00L'98L'919 000'0ZE'9eY'e N oM 000'96}'65¥°2 00p'L9E"292 001'6E}'049 009'829'68} pueipiy
281'99y'vL 8¥2'v¥o'c86 OMN 9N 9z€'v88'c9L 66+'€68L'0p 6E8'ZEL'GL YeS'eYy'v0L eaujwouapy
00€’29€°L0} 621'699'029'L ON N 690°828'992'} 006°269'99 008'689'891 00£'c9e's61 Bjs0dapy
00£'9v0" Ly} LETHIY'PIZE N oM Le2'vee'ale’l 000'Z1L28G 00€°'LLG'951 00.'968'66 uosepy
68G°EpL'LLE 9+6°£06'896'Z OIN ooz'zve'ee 9E2'GHa'L0E'T 611'v90'69 080°210°229 ove'ySL'eL apenbiey
841'092'801 802'20L°2L¥'L OMN N 80L'2,6'962'} 002'989'L2 00.'g6%'904 001'669'LY aajsjuen
£6+'905'8¥8'} 920°246'629'9E N OIN 692'E62'209'8C 920°'809°9S¥°2 1#9'88L'L62'S 002'Ly8°112 quicaep
59€°v68'091 004°'129'981°L 2N 00L'198'e- 620'12L'906 ZLy'sva'el 981'9¥0'LbT £10°95€E'v) JBUPIIEKY
£86'¥9¢'0} 81¥'289'0¢eC oM 009'9LL 080'¥28'¥0C ooL'zes'e 8€1'209'9} 000'299'S 8aIm]
OEY'TYL'ELS 918°266'9.8'}) 009'v98's oM 886°L12°ZK00) 069°'L61°9EE 062'6L9'222') 0SE'¥PL'¥OE uojsbupy
920'686'99¢ £89'9¥8°2E'Y OMN aMN L0E'erliong'e 00L261'FL1 osi'gey'ver 2£9°'189'896 samaua]
Auadoid jeuosiad g0y, Apedaid B3y (el0).  (euawdojeaeg Jaaong Jaquigl {Bjuapjsay {eLasnpuy junynopby

[BRJBIAD

e -abed

0202 - MIINATY 40 QAVOd Ag GIAOUddY SNOLLYNTYA Q3SSISSY |

Nd 2e:¢l 020e/82/y0



¥BE'Z1L'E9 96'316'000'F JIN aIN 908'669'629'E 0.£'08¥'01 08.'685'v6} 000'66'LL) neuejea
gvL'/88'262 029'2S'0¥0'F 001'086'€ aIN 661'8r0'902'C 00v'094°LL 0Ev'Z2e'68e 16+'086'EO¥ 1aade
00.'92L'0% 00€'290'9.L aIN OIN 00€'£96'€L9 00£'208'} 00t'/40'88 00%'¥S2'LE e
£82'€29'S 01£'919'2€2 OIN £18'€€6'2 869'/2'912 9.1'202 €8.'¥09'21 aIN MEUBaMa)]
LR'8LY LYE'L 8v0'285'£92'0¢€ aIN IIN glo'ogz'le8'tz  000'162'0€9'} £EV'¥08'29¥'9 000'0¥2'80¥ uay
00¥'£92'0S} 001'2.8'0¥6 JIN aIN 00€'.5°198 006'002'}1 009'€89'c9 00E'ELY'VE Bisexe)
£09'256'599 906'291'60L'04 aIN aIN 921°188'986'L 099'6E%'S9Y 008'9€2'92E'2 1£2'900'0€€ oozeweley|
LLL'EBS'ELS €81'168'GLL'S JIN IIN ¥L9'289'CIEY 91£'26£'65} e12'v0L'8LL 086'059'S9¥% uosyoep
008'S6E'ELE 690'G9E'EEE'T JIN oM 1£0'281'81€') 002'190'9E 196'601'82S Sv8'L20'LSY efjaqes|
£01'999'69 180°LLL'EYY JIN gS1'e1g'Le 8vv'¥S8'v0S 688'816'LY 658'gpL 0¥ 0E.'8.£'8) uol|
001'962'%6 098'vEY'962'} 002'299'y 9N 006'0v0'980' 098'228'L2 00v'980'81 1 005'918'29 0980
00%'285'924 2.8°116'92¥'2 JIN aIN €9/'/6%'528') 619'926'0y 00€'96¥'671 00€'604'S0L ejuoj
992'z2€'899 996'92.'909'6 000'1SL'2 IIN 060'609'6.£'9 .6'082'022 $96'¥16'SES'T 966'20€'/0¥ weybu|
810'916'22L 892'019'180'E JIN N 286'016'891'} .6'225'8y 00£'626'52L 009'g¥2'0vL') uony
ov6'vs.'c9 908'001'L¥2') £08'9¥8'} 192'110'9) ZEE'ZEL'E00'L 09€'/55'61 990'166'681 96'561'01 uoBnoH
69v'0,9'08 980'0v8'296'L 00088 JIN 980'598°042'} 9,9'52¥' ¥ £.8'821'68 1S¥'281'109 a[epsiiiH
£v8's82'6.Ly ZIS'Lpe'erL') JIN oI 068'099'2.9 008'sv8'ay 000'¥62'0¥1 22.'999'288 1ones9
050'110'9L2 §9€'204'840'L aIN aN 189'112'289'g 000'¥1'€6 ¥.0'L0E'8VT'} 00¥'286'¥S1 asianal] puelo
262'162'28 961'20€'209 JIN 192'18v've £16'606'70S 691'S0%'¥} 028'e/2'/S 925'922't ojqe6o9
009'2LY'¥S 099'LLL'E1T'L aIN 9N 00.'26G°2¥0') 002'069'01 092'v48'98 009'5E9'E0L umpel9
000'822'9LL $20'120'¥24'2) JIN JIN 016'65L'8.1'6 009'ELL'E0E 009'99€'€2¥'C y10'LEL'BLE sasaus
000'086'021 861'eL1'6L0'F 9N N 866°890'€09'C 00£'089'S1 @0L'Va0'L LY 008'86.'8y jowuig
295'661'92€ L6Y'LEL'0ZY'Y 00£'201'8 JIN 699'9/£'986'2 96/'00.'292 #.9'929'9EL 618'290'¥8¥ uajeg
008'€86'€0} 2Ly'189'5¥6 o 009'080'¥2 196'896'00L 001'2€2'1S 989'296'L¥1 002'9e¥'12 uosupiIq
6.2'969'02) 88S°ELL'OLE') 00£'801 aIN 89€°LLL'6L0°} 004'1LL'92 002'e82'191 009'eLL'8Y eiea
004'€09'1S 920'20€'08L JIN JIN 52£'606'¥09 00v'€19'96 00£'6.5'6F OIN pioymMeID
LI ¥BO'YSL 6€1'002'216'E oIN JIN 009'€02'625'2 00422289 681'28¢'88Y 052'/8¢'628 uowy)
1£1'862'2EL Sye'zZeL'SPe'L N aN £98'2.€'080'} avi'8Le'sl 299'832'06 085'289'401 ameD
008'26.'LL OvE'020'9¥E') JIN o 0v6'sv0'e80'} 009'298'52 009'EEF'681 002'089'LY emaddiyp
00LL2¥' VL VZ1L'B00'¥BL L aIN 000001 126'20¥'285'} 008'1LE'Q 006'SEE'L9) 005'66.'€€ ueBAogqay)
002'108'SL 8.5'660'€68'2 JIN JIN 8.6'210'009'2 008'v8E'eY 00.'2.8'28% 001'620'9S XjonB)IBYD
9v9'886'652 0998'921'656'C JIN JIN 9e6'8va'1¥2'e ¥62'€29'er €8€'¥S.'00} €v2'861'89S 8880
Z£9'08y'LSY 00.'v98'eS2'y JIN O 014'259'098'2 629'ev0°L12 65v'ZL0'718 20€'998'1LS unoye9
8.8'VL¥'091 188'286'820'2 aIN aIN L£6'681'L12'} 91£'858'SY €99°8L0'GLL SL0'915'0¥9 youeig
109'/£6'L€S 089'068'219'6 JIN aIN g6£'260'9.6'0 ZHE'B0E'E0E' ) 006'20€'S08 000°281'82S uajuag
168'880'SY £e1'glL'zes't aIN 00¥'L16 69v'199'269't 008'168'Y 90v'£85'90} 650'L1.'02 ajzuag
LLL'0LY'8L2 96'G9€'€9E'E aIN JIN 9€1'99£'202'2 002'280'294 d0z'98y'108 62y'19¥'L6Y Aeg
0S1'0/2'90) ¥0Z'919LLL'E IIN o $09'29€'2LY'C 009'£92'0L 00829891 00Z'eSE'0LY Aueg
008'/81'€S 689'985' LEE aIN 9v0'LyL'ee Y82 ¥EE'YSE 999'8¥Z'€C 8¥9'612'02 9v0'166'0) efeseg
09929009 S1£'920'20L JIN oI SIY'PLS'LES 000'2L£'8 009'vLE'8Y 00v'818'711 oBualy
002'012'¥8 ¥19'92)'229'2 aIN aIN YLL'LLO'LEE'T 009'.82'6 002'€28'204 008'evZ'v8 wiuy
LBLEYY'LL 929'986'190'} JIN JIN 0S.'04¥'928 00419L°CE 929'669°941 0s1'gLL'08 suadly
8v9'L8L'vVE 006'L6€'€68'9 001'69.'E JIN S0Z'LIE'ZI2'S 0S.'159'082 £86'085'2¥S 298'vEZ'¥58 ueBaily
099'965'22 €LE'.8'108 JIN JIN eLL'PPE'EEY 000'988'6 00v'8EY'8Y 008'S0E'0} 1aBly
00L'88L'LE 00.'961'828 aIN I 006'99€"LSL 009'612°'L} 002'7¥6'92 000'699'9E BUOIJY
Auadoid [puosiad (Bj0y  Auadoid [eay [ejo).  [ejuawdojeaaq Janoing Jaquipl |enuapisay |eusnpuj |B10jawWwWwoD ([nynouby

2 afied 0202 - SUINOISSINWOD 40 SaN¥VOE ALNNOD Ag SNOLLYNTYA a3ZIvno3 Wd 9¥Z} 0202/50/50



216'610°2¥8'0¢E 86b'v90°'520°99y  LE9'SLL'EL 1£8'98€'602 Oca'BEE'OEY'IVE 1.8°229'0L6'6L #99'268'1¥9'60 £89'296'c99'¥2 SIVLOL
006'€15'6L SLE'0LL'8E2'} OIN N 9/5'6.1'868 00.'€26'09 000'8e6"2yL 001'699'0p PIOPEM
6e9'8LL'0EY Y 9.0'826'689°c9 00+'0e oM 109'8¥0°'261'8€ 098°Z9E'vEL'E 9ZE'6EL'LED'LL 000'290'92 aukem
Lza'1ee'0ve’L 219'69€'299'22 00€'€10'9E O 6ec'zvl'oz¥'ol 016'¥49'069 €L2'198°CLL'S 066'.6}'v¥S MBUJYSBAN
00b'ese'elg 00} ‘cov'g2s'e OIN OIN 00€'}50'910°C 008'€0}'22} 006'£68'692 001'¥it'92y uaing uep
8rb'y0L'YES 192°08p'81€T OIN OIN IyE's08'v8L'L 008°1.28'8 089'cv9'88 99£'066'068 8joasn,
8se'aro'zzL 90.°288'25v'2 QIN OIN 819'0z2'L19'L 08.'L29°6E 062'¥ee’Lle 002'0€9'8.L8 8assEMBYS
¥aZ'abr'ye Sre'geL'ELy OIN 00068’} 9+9'020'29¢ 00€'L2'LE 00€'699°2 00L'8EY'0 Yyenjooyos
S0S'19.'¢ee2 2986862652 OIN N 506'61$'890'} 99.°69.'€2 818'282'v2) £0€'906°0E€"} ag|ues
8hL'SYe'9Le ozs'zey'L6L'e OIN N 626'018'90L'} 009'229°LLL 002'c89'66} 18L'S0V LLL ydasor jues
08L'E10'¥S0") 209'20¥'291°L N OIN 2r9'e8z'9te's o¥9'evL'98g 006°962'69.L §29'620'18Y Je0 ujes
00£'691°L18 ¥29'880"22L'9 OMN 006'12 890'8v5'669'c 00+'¥09°291 008'91+'660'} 99.'9¥9'09L meujbeg
002'699'09 082°261'€29') OIN ON 080'vLE'VIS") 006'198'} 00.°1€8°101 009'v98'Y UoWW0asoy
00.°€08'ceE 068'g22'q1L8 OIN 000’8 0ea'szy'089 006'699'22 00v'¥16'92 00L'¥¥1'18 ays] anbsaud
009°105°2€68 08€'€02'92€'g) 00t'8EL OIN ¥29'v29'698'LL 892'c52'¢98 006'808'9.8'1 002'8.e'L2L BMBENO
9¥9'692' T 162'CEE'VEE'L OIN 9N 166'806'980°} 00.'629'62 006'829'202 00L'¥98'9¥ obasi0
006'6L 18P gli'eve’Ley JIN N glg'gzo'e8e ooz'zee's 009'019'2Z 004'980'2}) BpOYSO
009'c.1'98 161'99'z68 N AN 160'v6L'9L8 oog'eee’ze 00€'089'sP 000'868'LE} B|03080
¥.9'600'eZ ¥L2'yea'0ze oM g8v'98.L'12 L69'€SE'0v 02.°268'LE LL0'EV0'9L 16€'6¥L'0L uofiBucuo
0e0'8¥L'¥9 SEL'0L'180°) OIN OIN S£8'62L'928 008°'12E'8 006°181°20} 001'v.¥'88 mewsbo
009'96€'99 TLE'TLI'GEL') OIN OIN 2.0'861'62€'} 0092626 000'608'26 009'2L9'E2C BuBa2Q
#96'G21'c09'e 096'892'269°LL QIN QIN 0..'28.'000'20 0¥6'899'89¥'2 028'8.8'6¥0'EL 0ep'8.L0'c8 puepjeo
10€e'988'0Z1 L1S'€86'E10'Z QIN OIN Li12'80L'008'L 00€'1¥E'€9 002'89L'021 008'$80'e£2 abAemaN
009'Z¥a'see 008°£00'619°'G JIN OIN 008'980'2.8'y 008°229'98} 009'vL9°2LL 009'¥0L" Lt} uoBaxsnpy
811'€60'.8 ¥EZ'HIO'CI9 N AN 21L'0e9'cg 008'2L1'8 008'1£9'82 T2e'e0z' 12 Aauesounuop
000'ZEV'EET 099'26E'2YP'e oM 2N ose'opL'asL’) 006°226°2Y 000'¥¥9'98L 00E'SED°LSY wjBojuop
l8g'6eL'968 99.°216°/88'9 0eL'v2e'e N Lye'191'svl'y 96.'602'989 0v'L29008 £99'c99°'v69 QoiuonN
¥ra'le6'eL 00€e°195'928 OIN N 00}'899'869 002'€69°6 009°229'6¥ 009°2LL'0LL aayjnessiy
00.'g€.'919 000'02€'9E¥'S AN ON 000°96}'6E¥' 00+'28€'292 00L'6EL'0¥S 009'829'68} puBlpIy
ZB1'SSY'vL A OIN ON 926'¥68'c9L 66¢'€6L'0V 6€8'2LL'9L $89'evF'¥0L aaujwouay
00€'298'201 621'689'029'} QIN 9IN 690'8.8'992'1 008',£9'09 008689991 09c'ege'ssl 2j8093N
00L'9¥0°LYL 1e2'rbyie'e N OIN IeTveeaLe’) 000'¢}.'285 00€*L45'991 002'068'66 uosep
889'EVL' LI 80.'G9'906'2 OIN 00Z'2¥2'2e 9ET'9y8"L08' z91'8¥0'69 0LL'989'v2S ObE'PSLZL apanbiepy
8.1'092'804 802'20L°2L¥'L N N 80.'226'962'L 002'989'22 00.'86¥'901 001'668"L¥ agisjuey
£61'009'a¥8'} 920°2.£'629'9E OIN IN 892'€£2'200'82 920'809'9S%'2 199'88L'262'S 002'248'1 12 quicoep
S9€E'¥68'091 00v'129'981°) oIN 00.'198'€ 620°1LL'9068 TLY'BYe'elL 981's0' 112 £10'95€E'YL 2BUPREIY
£86'¥9€'0} 814'289'062 O/N 005°GLL 080'V28'¥0C .  00.°228'2 8€1'€00'91 000°289's aary
OEV'ZVL'eLE 818'266'S48'L) 009'v98'8 OIN 886°212'2¥0'0L 069°261'8EE oez'els'zee’t 09€'PYL'¥92 uojsBunf
§29'686'99¢€ £89'9¥E'26E"Y OMN oM 10€'ep1'988'2 00L°261'VL1 ogL'gey'ver 2£9'1,89'806 sameUaT
Auadoid guosiod oL  Apedoid [Bay [BloL  [ejuawdojaaaq JaAGINg Jaquil, (eguapisay {elasnpu) [B[OIBWIWI0D jemnapby

&e :abed 0202 - SHINOISSINWOI J0 SQUIVOE ALNNOD Ad SNOLLYNTVA Q3ZIvND3 Wd S¥2} 0202/S0/90



oo0o0oo [Nl =N = o000 o (== =] [~ N -Nol=N=] [~ NN =N = [=N=Nol=N=} ooooo (=N ===}

(=N =N==-]
[N ===

[N~ === oo0oo0oo (=N =N=N=N=} [=N=N=N=l=]

[=N=Nol=N=] oOoo0oo0oo (== =N = I =] (=N =N === (= =N~ N = -] (==l N = =]

[~ =Nl N=] (=N = =] (= === =] oOo0oo0o0oo

[~ =N=N-=N=} ooo0oo0o

[N ===

[= =R =N-=N=] (== I = I Y = (= =N === ooo0o0o [~ NN === oO0oo0oo0o [= =Nl =N=] [=N=N=N-N=]

o0oo0o0o

[= =0 == (=Nl =N =] o0oooo [N === [= N =Nl =] oo0oo0oo0oo (===l [~ NN ==}

[~ ===

oo0oo0oo0o [=N=N=N=N=] [= =N NN =] [~N=N=N-N-=] [= N =Nl =N=] (== = = =] 00000 [~ =Nol=N-=]

[l =l =N =N-=]

ooo0o0o [=N-N=N-N=] (=] =N =Nl =] oo0oo0Qo

(=M=l =N} [~ NN al=N=] 0O0o00O0o (=N ol=N=-]

neuejea
Jaade
e
MBUIBMI)]
uay

BYsE){B)
oozeweley|
uosyoBp
ejloqes|
uos

02s0]
B|uoj
weybuy
uoiny
uajybnoi

[N~ = =] [=N=N-Na=N=] [= R ===

alepsiiH
jofelo
9813nBl] puBld)
2)qafion
umpelo

gasauan
w3
uojeg
uosup|g
21 E]e]

o0O0o0o [N === =]

plojmelrd
uoo
aig[g
emaddiyo
usBAoqay)

XIOASHBYD
$889)
unoyjen
youeig
uaeg

ajzuag
Aeg
Aueg
efieieg
JBualy

wuy
euad(y
uefajy
188y
BUOI[Y

=N =NoN-=N-} [= =N =l=l=] [N =l = =] [=N=N=N==]

Auadoid {euosiad |ejol,

Apadoid [Bay (Elo1  [Ejuawdojeraq

JOAOIND JaquilL

|Bpuap|saY

fewgenpu]

[BIOJSWIWIOD

fInynopby

21 :afied

0202 - NOISSINNOD XV.L 3LVLS A9 SNOLLYNTVA G3ZITVND3 ALNNOD OL a3aav

Wd Zv:2) 0202/50/90



SIViOL

Piojxap
auksm
MBUSIYSEM

uaung usp
- Bloasn ).
29ssEMBIYS
yerjoops
oe)juBs

ydasop jujes
JB|O WS
meujbes
UOWWIOI80Y
ajs| anbsaid

BMENO
ofiesio
BpO9sO
8|09380
uoBeuojuQ

mewsbo
BUBATZO
puepeQ
ofifeman
uoBaxsny

Aouslounuopy
wiedauon
QoIuop
aaynessjy
PuelpiN

gaujwousyy
B}S0%ap
uosep
apanbiepy
agjsjue

quiodBpy
2BUPOBIN
8Im
uoysbuiny
sameuan]

=N =N-N-N- (=N === (== N =y~ [= NN 00000 (=N === =] (=N -=N-N=la=] [-N-N-1 =}
cooco0ooo 000 Oo (== NN [= =N =N [-N-N-N-N-] 00000 [=N=N-=N-N-} oo |o
(=N == N-] (=N =N === (=N =N-=N=N=] (=] =N =N =] (===l 0O0O0O0O0 [N =N-=N-N-} oo0o|o
(=== -] (===~ =] [=N =N (=N -N-N-N-] (=N =R =N-N-] 0O0000O (=N =N~} oo |o
(=== =N-=] (=== = =] [=-N=N-N=N-] [= N =N N =] (=== =]y 00000 [-N=N-=N-N-} (=N =N =0 N-]
(=== -] (=N~ =N-N-] (=== 00000 oooo0ooo (=N =N == =] o000 o oo0oojljo
[N =N =N-=N-=] (=N == =] 0O000O0 (=N =N =] (== NN (=N =N =N =] 00000 o0o|o
[~ =l =0-0-] (===~ =] 00000 (=== (== N=N=-] [=N=N-N-N=] (= - - =-] o000 |jo

Auadoid jsuosied fejo;,  Apadosd [eay (ej0)  jejuatudojaneq Jaaong sequugl [eguapisay {eigsnpuy (BUaWLICD jeunynoyby

22 -ebed 0202 - NOISSINNOJ XVL 2LVLS Ad SNOLLYNTVA 03ZITYND3I ALNNOD O1 a3aav Wd L¥:2} 0202/50/50



£1£'996°49 9€9'8.9'9€8°E JIN JN 959'92Z¥'0L¥'E 0LV 29g'L} 6e£'086'v8I1 0LlL'v68'691 neuejaa
16€'280'€€2 g91'sy2'08L'e 002'EL6'E J/N £66'¥85'9.6'2 00.'996' )L 28€'506°€92 088'v.E'vib Jaade
008'¥¥8'6E 006'6668'20.L JIN JIN 009'cey'vL9 006'€2S’l Qoz'vpL LS 002°806'6C e
evg'y1IE'e 960'010'02¢ OIN 106'v68'2 €89'2.1'¥02 Z16'sL 00.'998'C1 JIN MBUIINI)
001°952'099°} clv'ven'lse'Le J/N OIN 050'805°61 102 00zZ'1€2'8EY’L gze'eoe’L1e's 000'021'28¢ juay
00€'0e8'erl 000'€66°5.8 OIN J/N 002'evy'98L 006'c8y'6 00€'200'9S 009'e90'y2 exyseyey
16.'v£8'sS8 916'069'226'6 O/N 3N 6.6'216'6.,0'L 0S€'818'VEY 88.'€15°6.0'C 66.'0bv'82e oozewe|e)
196'69€'€09 891'cye'662'e 00€'v.9'L QIN €01'229'626'€ 6ve’'109'951L 68€'966'89. L10'6¥g'29y uosyoep
110'eez’L9L veL'vez'iie'e JIN JN 00¥'680'592"} 00.'869'vE 009°'L£6°€ES yel'669'LEY Bljeqes)
982'9.9'v9 LL¥'2S9'EE JIN £05'061'8€ rat) AR TN 1 £89'609'0F v8L'9Ly'6E 6LL'Les'8) uoJjj
009'116°L6 ¥81'6v¥6'6E2'L 009'289't JN 0cy'2L0'0%0') 000'982'g2 $9€'090'601 009'858'09 0980|
00€'€LE'LLL 002'200'262'2 J/N JIN $06'608'L0V'| 00€'809'EY 006'809'8¥1 $60'8.0°269 gjuoj
¥01°182°LL9 9ZL'1G1L°1p6'8 oot'iol’e JIN 8.2'¥99'v00'9 G9z'/92'602 122'69€'90€'2 936'898'8 1LY weybuj
006'69.'v8. £66'289'€S0'E JIN J/IN £62'9e9'901'} 000'9€9°09 005°€58'02} 002'859°SLL'L uonH
§.8'286'v9 gzg'ove'sie’t zes'ale’e g9zZy'veEL'SL $66'625°186 169's¥9's1 $18'860°181 89E'€99'9L uoygnop
LL0'sge'ze 188'89.'928'}L 00¥'299 JN g/e'coe'slL’) Spe'Lev'or 019'041'68 192'1L1'8L8 3eps|iiH
00}'61€'69€ 821'992'189°} JIN AN 282'086'€E9 185'899' LY Tva'ec0'velL €2¥'260'2.8 el
1E¥'629°192 1£0°169'9.89'9 JIN J/N 1£6'859'961°g 001'888'68 009°0€8'0¥L'L oov'ziIo'eyl 98I9ABI] pueld
£86'228'€L 28€'200°109 JIN evL'9es'ae LyZ'9EL v0S 0E£0'€00'v) 8€.'0£2'99 629'804°} a|qefon
09L'6LL'18 Lie'Lie'Lel’L JIN JIN 11S°0S€E'696 08v'2r6'6 0S0'Iw.'LS 002'.£€'96 UMpEID
9g1'09v'969 0eg'eol‘eee’sl J/N JN 91¥'209'v05'8 002'9v6'68¢ ¥90'2.€'9ee'2 0g1'e81'80¢ 2983uan)
000'¥81'80} 08S'€98'EY8'E JIN JN SZL'YO¥'EBE'E 009'629'v} 00z'69¥'68E SS1'00€'9P jawug
86.°0S)°LLE 088'020'S9}'y 00s'vLL'6 JN 96+'608'6S.L'2 S.1'9v0'902 SLL'89Y°L0L ¥86°1.5'98% uojeg
869'2L0'€0) 060'2.9'¥26 J/N 00s'08€'ve S8¥'€65'6.9 002'1S'6Y 885's€6°8YL LIe'e51 ‘22 uosupioia
gl9'vi0’ozt €0L'91¥'862'L 00160} JIN 10¥'281'2s0'} 92¥'v08'se 009'€58'2.1 9LL'L9E LY ejaag
000'G¥2'€S 080°126'60.L JIN AN 088°€9€°999 00.°661'S6 000'8€2‘8y gog'eel plojmes
oge'isy'avl 068'v08°129'E J/N 3N 0S€'¥2L'09E2 00z'eLe'Ls 0v0°'989'ShP 00€'280'808 uouid
809'80€°€2) $26°'090°0LL°L JIN 3N 9v1'60.'996 811'€90'6} $5.'1¥5'08 106°0S.'L6 a8[D
SLY'02e'SL 00}'80%°L62°L J/N J/N 00g'962's¥0'L 001'996'52 006°221'0L} 008'ezo'ey emaddiyo
054'916'09 oeg'aviies't 0o0v'608°c 000'00} 0€9'668°L19°} 009'2.8'S 059'90v'691 095'¥S8'€E ueBfoqayo
££€'809'9L 985'698'0EL'2 JIN JIN coL'esg'ery'e 00€°'1€8'Y 96e'62y'181L 889'60L'€9 Xjonapeyy
$65'96L'Ly2 986'9/5'8€8'2 J/N JIN 981'090" 1712 00.'68)'0F 008'839'c0L 006'2,99'€99 $88D
96+'c92' L9V g6z'L2y'2e0'y JIN N 992'096'€89'2 92¥'¥96'602 0.8'8.6'869 ¥1L'E€S°6ES unoyjed
9€0'26.'25) 686'819'v¥6'L JIN JIN oce'asg’zeL’t 269'09.°6€ cri'gLo'egl SE9'E8y'EL9 youeig
0£0°/86'009 608'986'66¢€'6 JIN ON 9.5°110'96L'9 00S'vL8'6.2'} £€1'9£.°68. 009°'c9E'¥ES uapsag
00g'eLL2y 89€'286'09L'L O/IN 004's0L°L 9ve'eey'0e9’t 008'092'e 005°086'.6 ({74 14 9jzuag
8lg'iyl'iee eLy'ges'ogl'e 3N 3N €9€'$68'690°2 008'e11'091 002'98€'8EY oLL'82s'eeg feg
0Zz's16'90} 98.'619'8€6°C JIN JIN 9ee'zLL'8ee'e 00560169 00.°889°6¥1 052°150'06€ Aueg
9.L'ypE'0Y 19¥'90+'62¢ JIN eLy'ove'ee 068°'..68'L52 Sge'0vL'ee 9v8'¢65'02 Ly8'vSL'0L efeieg
0S9'g19'0¥ 092',.€'299 JIN JIN 098'819'908 008'6.2'8 006°220'8y 004°08¥'v0L dsuary
006's¥1'06 9va'LIp' LyE'S JIN OIN 9¥0'8s+'59L'C 000'9€l'6 009'898'26 008'¥56'6L wuy
£22'989'89 92€'106'020°'L JN JN 92.'y9e'18L 00€'8EE'9E 00L'v88'vLL 009'cly'88 euadly
692'¥96'8¢2¢ #61'060'58¥'9 Lb'evo's JN 82¥'L65'€48'Y 189'269'852 628'2Li'9Ls 608'¥¥9'LE8 uebajy
ove'gez'ze 152'095'98y JIN N 9g1'629'vey 00S'182'6 10Z'9L2'ey 00¥'606'6 Jafily
00}'2e2'8e 00.°202°16L JIN JN 006°0LE'YLL 006'0S¥'L} 006'80v'L2 000°226'L€ BUOJY
Auadoid |euosiad {8101 Auadoid [Bay e10g, jejuawdoafEnraq JBAOINY JaquilL [{eguapisay {ewysnpuy |elRaWwWoD jeanynopuby

2/) -abed NOISSINWOD XVL 31VLS Ad SNOLLYNTVA G3ZIMYND3 2LVLS 6102 NV 20:01 0202/€2/v0



Nmo.nwm.wom.m 13>

809°TLE'1¥2'6C 2.9'010'v29'62y  £0.'Z8BE'6L £19'¥80'G12 699'¥62'019'6) e0v'gey'vi0'e9 982'L0L'/2L'Ve SV.LIOL
006°958'9L 199'vaL'spL’L oM OIN €1#'049°L 16 009°9LL°L9 009'¥06'3E) 8EL've0' Ly PIGPEM
2E8'¥20'c0e'y 209'cya'801'08 OIN OMN 0.8'6L0'pPL'9E 150'689°€99'E QE9'9¥S'VLE L 001'8.¥'92 aufem
TELTEV'BLL'L 89e'geL'ave’Le 004'200'82 OMN L6E'S6L V2E L 098'2£9'609 892'840'cS8'Y 0v1'62E'¥ES MBUSIYSEM
006'9¥9'899 8.8'c92'629'c QN QN 180'620'¥¥8'C 000°2}8'96 006'c18'L52 168'cey’Ley uang uep
#09'€90'St¥ 190'v.E'8¥2'2 N QN ¥E1'626'604'} 00€'8y8'LE 004'900'¥6 119'085°200°'} Bj0%8NL
00L'€8¥'¥LL S£9'6.6'11€'C QN OIN $80'€0#'009't 008'899°L€ 098'899°£02 001'6v2'999 93sSEMBIUS
8.2's€1'09 00¥'626'v0P 2N 0oe'sis’L 006'Z80°€G€ 00L'818'2H 0ov'e9g’Le 001'2¥8'S yenjooyag
8€2'16e'92e 891°2e6'eLP'T 00t'206'% 00L'EL} 0LL'€61'800'} 100'g.9'8L 092'828'1 11 Z10'8LL'GEE") Jejueg
£61'26.°082 Zg6'svg’sye’e OMN OMN 6i¥'69€£'969'L 096's56'22) 990'v.8'98) 129'699'SvL ydasop jues
865°01028L TLZ'esl'sl0'L QIN aIN 092'989'926'y 001°'c9¢'188 099'i88'22L CAXAA A 18]D Wes
#29'9¥9'609 00£'08¥'22a’s O odo'ss 052'009'815°C 002'c80'g¥} 050°269'060°4 008'020°29L meubeg
00L'sez'ey . Opv'vLe'Les’) OMN oM obg'z8c'aey’l 008°1€0°C 00€'£26'00} 008°'.26'¥ UOUALICISOY
YXINAVN: 14 009°2¥5'96. oM 000'¥8 000'8Lv'c88 005'20€'L2 00€'850'se 00.'€29'08 gjs{ anbsaig
#¥8°090°'098 £99'0¥1'860'v1 006'gGL OMN £59'v16'2,06'01 00£°29859L 008°99¥'089'}L 006'99L°¢L9 EMBIO
001089842 298'291'9.2') ON .OIN gva'egg'el0’s S90'9¥0'02 lgz'eve'sel 004°000°8% ofiesjo
008°'262'sh 0Ey'gzZo'oLy N OIN 0£8'¥69'PLE 00¥'yS1's 008'66€°12 00p'LLL'Z BpO9SQO
00%'809'06 199289098 JIN oM 10L'880°L€9 0ge'ege’oe 00£'€03'9¥ 00£°'99.°LE} 8]08280
999'221'1e 1go'Leg'ole N giv'izz'ze £08'v12'1E2 y0e°162'1e 628'/19'g) 18L'S¥9'01 uoBeuouQ
019'689°99 8€1'192'096 /N OIN 005'09%'28. 009'/22's 00L'¥9¥'90L 8e¥'819'e8 mewabo
00£°'896°6S 096°2.8'8¥9'L OIN oM £€6'920'20¢€'L 008'89L'9€ 009'161'16 119'6¥9'812 BUB390
00€'089°1ES"E S66°L2ZY'YBL'EL N oM SEv'08Y'209'89 0b¥'28E'80E'C 0.9'8L0'0€22} 095°08¥'8L puepeQ
198°109'04} 008'914'€68'} oM N 006'€S+'e6Y's 009'861°29 004'199'04) 0022 1E2 ofikemaN
0.9'0€2'92¢ ¥88°2'vL2'e N OMN +80°c81'8EC'Y 008'ge8'8L} 006'6¥9'11.L 000°'cL8'St} uoBasniy
oLe'L19'ey $£0'999'9.9 OIN N $E£L'828'619 008'LOV'6 00+'€09'82 000'zez'sl fouarouguopy
002'98.'e42 00¥'69€'2LeC O/N OIN 009'991°'000'} 008'099°ch 002Z'181'€8) 008°09%'gh¥ wiBJjLoN
181°'29.'s6¥ 1L1'628'296'9 002'S00°L OMN 069°'860°L9¥'y 066°620'0€}'} 050°20¢'818 Ie'eze’19s @aiuopy
001°892°0L 000°992'¥6. QN OIN 006'6€8°1L8 009'810'6 00L'8gv'sy 008'gea'09l aayness|iy
005°16€'8€9 g9z'9s¥'062'e QN oM 099°016'¥EE'T 001'10£'292 91£'985'009 00£'629'081 PUBlpIN
0.9'908'cL 0v5'992°296 QIN OIN 926'y¥0'28L 220's60'9e LizeLyL 18€'00¢'01 @aujwouapy
001°282'901 981°9£6°169°}L N oM SeE'vH0'L8L'L 009'092's9 009°910°£91 00.'c19'86L B]S008 I
009°S.24'00} 08H'6ES'ELL'T IMN OMN 0968'¥Z68'c2E’} 004'809°9€S 0021999} 009'92.'96 uosep
602'8ev'L02 109°190'€88°2 IMN 056°120'eS £68g'62L°222'C 1268'vL6'CL 289',L0'029 g95'LG2'cs apanbiepy
09.'6c6'68 0S.'¥81'8.8'L O oMW osy'zez'es)’t 009'252'08 0y'8L60} 00¥'c22'0F aajsjusp
lep'gez’108°L 260°Z42'880'%E N OMN ova'8Le'6¥9'02 089'¥9£082'2 999'¥9E'gV6'y 002'y28'242 quoaB
82€'9L9'LY} 10e'0e9'spL’} OMN 009'LLL'e ovy'yST'ee8 £29'02'8} 6€0'99€°.22 669'616'c4 28UPOBN
LoL'sve'ol 00#'c02'see N 000159 009°229'802 006'v9L'e 00%°'199°L} 005'8.2'S L]
956'cy8'209 68L'VLY'EL0'LL 005'99%'e aOIN 609'c9L'yEE's 085'v16'02¢ 0,0°288°L9}°) 0eL'yi0'sse uoysbuian
TEL'I9T'Ove 809°2L2'122'Y /N OMN ¥8L'911'06L2 00L'LI'LLL 6vL'Lv8'oLp 9.9'068°296 gameua
Apadosd jBuosiad ||gjo).  Auadoid [Bay [BI0L  [Ejuawidojanag Jaaqing Jaquig [epuapsay [emsnpu; [BRIBUILOD Jesmynapby

2re -ebad NOISSININOD XVL 31VLS A SNOLLVNTVA G3ZITvND3 31V.LS 6102 WV 20:0} 0202/E2/¥0



¥BE'ZLL'ED 596'316'000'% JIN aIN 508'668'€29'S 0L€'0S¥'01 06.'68S'¥64 000'66' 1L} neueea
S¥1'189'262 029'/SY'0¥0'y 001'086'€ JIN 661'850'902'S 00%'094'LL 0cEb'zze'e82 16+'956'Co¥ Jaade]
00L's2L'0F 00€'290°99. aIN JIN 00€'€06'€L9 00€'208'L 00€'2#0'8S 0ov'¥z'LE el
£62'€29'S 01£'019'2€2 JIN €19'2€6'2 965'S.2'912 9/1'202 £8.'709'2) JIN MBUIAMB)|
LY8'6LY LPO') 8+0'289'£92°0¢€ JIN OIN g19'082'198'L2 000'162'0€S'} EEV'¥08'LOV'D 000'0¥2'80¥ uay
00%'292'0S1 001'2/8'0v6 OIN N 00€'¥29°198 006'002'L 1 009'€89'€S 00E'ELY'Pe T
£09'296'999 906'291'60.'01 oIN N 921°199'08S'L 099'6E4'S9Y 006'9€2'926'2 1£2'909'06€ oozewe|e))
LLL'EBS'ELS €81'1€8'SLL'S IIN OIN ¥19'289°TIEY 91€'e6E'69) £12'P01'8LL 086'059'59¥ uosoer
008'S6E'€12 690's9€'eEE'2 JIN JIN L£0'281'81€'} 002'150'E 186'601'829 S¥a'L20' 1S gljages|
£91'559'69 180'LLL'EFD JIN SS1'E18'LE 8b¥'¥98'y0S 688'816'LY 6858'S¥1'0v 0cL'8LE'8) uoy|
001'S62'+6 0S8'¥EY'962'L 002'c09'Y JIN 006'0¥0'S80°} 058'228'L2 00'980'81} 005'918'29 00s0|
00%'£89'02) z.8'1L6'9eh'T JIN OIN €S.'/6p'92S’) 615'826'9y 00€'96¥'6¥1 00€'601'S0L ejuoj
892'22¢£'899 906'92.'509'6 000'18L'2 N 060'605'6.E'9 .6'052'022 #96'V16'SES'T g9€6'20¢' L9V weybu|
810'916'22L 992'019'180'E JIN JIN 286'016'994'} ¥.6'225'8y 00.'626's2) 009'syZ'ovL'L ucuny
9v6'vSL'e9 908'004'L42'} 108'9¥5'} 192'110'91 ZEE'2EL'E00") 09€'255'61 980°166'68) 556's61'9) uojybnoy
69%'0,9'08 980'0¥8'296'1 000'8y9 9N §80'995°012'} 9.9'GZ¥' ¥ £.8'821'66 1S¥'281'109 ajepsiiiH
£v8'982'6LYy ZIS'LIBTYL'L JIN JIN 068'099'229 006'Sy8'gy 000'¥6L'0¥1 z21'989'288 1op8I9)
050°'L40'9L2 99€'202'820'L aIN IIN 189'112'285'S 000'¥1'e6 10'L9€'8V2') 00%'286'¥S) eg1anBy ] puBID
z62'162'28 961'€0£'208 JIN 192'18%'¥2 £16'606'¥0S 691'S0¥'¥L 928'e.2'L8 9z5'922' ) 9iqabo
009'2L¥'¥S 099'LLL'ELE') JIN 9N 00L'268'2¥0'L 002'069'0} 0S2'¥58'98 009'SE9°€0} umMpBI9
000'922'9LL ¥20'120'v21'2L OIN IIN 016'692'844'6 00S'€LL'€E0E 009'89€'€2Y'2 vI0'LEL'BLE aasauag
000'096'0Z} 861'€L1'8.0'Y N N 866'850'€09'c 00.'089'SL 00L'%99'L LY 008'86.'8Y Jowwg
299'661'52¢8 L6V'LEL'OZY'Y 00L'201'6 N 695'9/E'SE6'2 96.'09.'292 ¥19'829'88L 618'290'8Y uojeg
006'€86'€01 2LY'189'SHE JIN 009'080'$2 186'896'00L 001'€€2'1S 985°'296'L¥) 002'9e¥'12 uosupialq
6.2'969'02} 895'cLL'91E'} 00€'80} JIN 89€'212'6.0°} 001'1L1'92 002'€82' 19} 009'sLL'8¥ 8o
001'€09'LS 920'20€'08L aIN JIN 2£'606'709 00%'18'56 00£'6.5'6 N pIojMEsD
LIV ¥89'bSL 6€1'002'216'C JIN N 009'€02'629'2 00122489 681'28c'g8y 0g2'28€'528 uouo
L£1'862'28} SYE'ZEL'SHT') IIN IIN £v8'2LE'080°} ov1'816'6l 289'89.'06 085'289'v01 aen
008'26L'LL 0v€'020'9vE'} N N Ov6'Ev0'e80’s 009'298'SZ 009'cEr'681 002'089'LY emaddiyo
00L'22v' 1L 121'600'v8L'L JIN 000'00} 126'c0¥'2ag't 008'LLE'9 006'cec’ 19} 009'66.L°EE uebAogayD
002'108'9L 8/5'660'¢68'C OIN OIN 816'210'909'2 008'¥8E'SH 00£'2L9'L81 001'620'9S Xj0AapeY)
Sv5'886'692 0958'921'696'C JIN JIN 9¢6'6¥9' 122 y62'€29'2y £8€'¥3L'90} £v2'261'80S 8880
269'08Y'LSY 00.'¥99'€92'y JIN IIN 01+'299'098°2 629'ev0'L12 asy'z10'v19 20€'998'LLS unoy(eg
8.8'v1¥'09) 188'€89'80'2 oIN JIN L€6'681'L1T') 91£'856'SY €55'810'SL1 gL0'9L¥ 0¥ youeig
£09'/£6'L€9 089'068'21L9'6 JIN JIN 8€€'260'946'0 ZYE'80€'€0E') 006'20€'308 000'281'929 usueg
168'850'9Y €e1'1L'2e8'} IN 00¥'LL6 69Y'199'€69'} 008'1LE8'Y 0v'289'901 690'21L'92 ajzuag
LLL'0LY'8LZ #96'99€'€9€'S OIN N S€1'69€'202'2 002'€80'291 002'98%'10S 62y’ LSY L6V feg
0S1'022'904 $0Z'919'LLL'E IIN 9N y09'29E'TLY'Z 009°'292°0L 008'2€9'8S} 002'€SE'0LY Aueg
008'81'€S 689'9€9'1EE JIN ov0'LYL'Te y62'¥EL'PSE 999'8¥2'cT 89'912'02 S¥0'166'04 ebeleg
055'290'09 S1€'520'20L OIN JIN SIY'PIGLES 000°LLE'8 00S'v1€'8y 0ov'618'7LL oeualy
002'012'v8 y19'921'225'2 JIN OIN pLL'LLO'LEE'E 005'282'6 002'€25'201 008'sy2'v8 wyuy
LBL'EVY'LL 928'986'190'} JIN OIN 0SL'0Lb'928 001'19L'€8 §28'669'941 0si'shi'en suadly
8v9'/81'PVE 006'L6€'€68'9 001'69L'E IIN S0Z'11E'2IE'S 09.'155'082 £86'0€9'Z¥9 298'¥EZ'¥S8 ueba|ly
095'969'22 €.€'7/8'108 JIN JIN eLL'PZ'EEY 000'988'6 00¥'8ev'8Y 008'S0€'0} Jaby
00L'88L'LE 00.'961'828 IIN IIN 006'99€"19L 009'612'L} 00Z'¥6'82 000'89'9E BUQDLY
Ausdoid [guosiad [gjoL Auadoid [y (€101  [ejuswdojanag Janoing Jaquil [eguapisay [eLISnpu| [R[oIBUILIOD [eanjnouBy

Z/) :abed 0202 - SNOILYIIVA 03ZIvYN03 FLVLS AHVNINITIYd Wd S€:2I 020Z/82/¥0



zle'sl0'zya'0e 860'v98'020'00F  LE9°GLL'SL 1£8'98E'60C 9e6'809°0EK' LVE  1/8'229°016'6L - #99°/68°Lp8'69 £09'296'99'v2 sIVioL
006'c19'6L SIE'0LL'SET L OIN ON 919'6.1'866 00.'626'09 000'8€6°2¥1 004'609°9F PIOPEM
6E9'BLL0EY'Y 920'820'685°'cS 00¥°90¢ - OIN 109'8¥0°'26)'8E 098°206'vEL'E 9Ze'881°L69'L L 000°290'9¢ audem
128'168'0VT'} z18'69¢'299'22 00E'eL0'9e "OMN ece'zyL'eey'ol 016'719'08S. SLT'1OE'ELL'S 086°L81'¥¥9 MBUBJYSEM
00p'ES2'EL9 001'€8¥'928'c OIN N 00€'190'010°¢ 008'€04°224 006°c68°'65¢C 004'vLP'82Y uamng uep
8FF'POL'YES 1SL'09¥'81LE'T N " OM MWE'S09'P8L'L 005'128'8 099°Ev5'96 99€'0686'066 Bjoasny
8gc’'obo'zel 00.°288°29v'T OIN oM 918'022'L19'} 09.'2.9'6E 062¥9e°L1T 002'0£9'8.9 aassemelys
¥62'8vi've ore‘szL'ely amN 000'68¥'L 9¥9'020'29¢8 Q0e'L4Z'tL 00€°€99'2¢ 00L'9Ep'9 yesoooys
909°19.'c22 298'c8E'L69'2 QIN OMN - 906'61¥'890°} 99.'69L'€2 818°282'42 £0€'906°0€E'L Jg|ueg
8YL'GVE'SLE 02522y’ L6L'2 N N 626'018'80L'L 009'229'LLL 002'£89'661 1BL'SOV'LLL ydasor jueg
081'€10'¥00'} 109'20p'294'L OIN | Z¥0'082'08¢'9 0r9'ePL'o8s 006'962'65. 929'90'L8Y 110 WEs
00.'891°119 ¥29'se0’LeL's N 00612 299'8¥9'660'c 00¥'$09'20L 009'014'680°L 99.°0¥5'00L meujfeg
00269905 09.'261'€29'L ON oM 0S9'vLE'V1S") 006°196'} 004°'1£8°1L0L 009'v08'y uowIWIoos0Y
00L'E06'€E 068'gze'sLe ON 000'+8 068'92¥'089 006°699'22 00¢'716'92 00L'7¥1'18 98| anbsaig
005'105'.€8 08€'€02'92E'g) oov'scl om ¥29'v29'608"L} 992'c92'e98 006°'808'a.28'} 002'8.€°22L BMBHO
org'ege'yre 18Z'CEE YOE'S N OMN 168'606°980°} 00L'625'62 008'829'20¢ 00L'vec'eY obesio
008'6LL'sy SL1'6v6°LEY IN M 916'620'68€ ooz'zee's 009'019'ZC 00+'980°Z1 BpodsQ
008'cL1'96 161'9gv'z68 DIN o) 160'¥6.'0.L9 008°cec'ze 00€0E9'a¥ 000'869°LE1 808380
#19'600'cC vLZ've8'0ee ON " 96v'98L'12 169'€9E'0¥C 0zL'268'LE 1L0'EF0'0) . 16e'ebLOL uofsuojuQ
0E0°8¥L'¥9 SEL'Z0L°1E0') N " OIN 9£8'6eL'928 008°128'8 006°181°20L 00}'vLp'68 mewabo
009'96€°ag eLL'TLO'SEL')L /N oM z.0'861'6L8") 008'c6.'6E 000'606'26 009'2.9'cee BUESI0
¥96's2L'c0g'e 086'892°269'LL oM - OMN 042°79L'000°29 0¥6'999'850'2 0Z8'8.8'6¥0'EL 0Eb'8L0'e8 puepieo
L0E'986'021 L18'€96°e10'2 oM QN Li2'89L'909'} 00S‘LYE'ES 002'88L°02} 008'¥80'2€C ofikeman
005'2¥8'9€e 008°200°619'S N  OIN 008'990°2L9"Y 009'2.5'981 009'v29°ZLL 009'v0L'L¥} uoBaysnyy
811°260°LE vEZ'VYO'TLY N ON Z1L'089'cS9 008'2LL'a 008'1£9'82 Ze6'e02'12 foualounuopy
000°2et'cEe 099°26E'2rY'2 OIN N 0SE'0vL'9SL'} 006'2L8'2Y 000’08} 00€'9€0°2SY wiejuop
189'66.'968 $0.°,16'289'9 ocL'vee's ON 1¥6'181'ShL'y 96.'602'989 - 0¥9'249'098 £99'699'v69 aouuop
b¥o'L86'EL 00€'199'928 IN N 001'895'869 00Z'c69'6 009'229°e¥ 00S'2LL'0L} aDNESS[N
00L'982°049 000°'02e"9ep'e IN oM 000'961 '6€¥'2 00¥°'289€'292 00L'6E}'0¥S 009'829'68} puBIpy
26L'59'pL 8be'yro'cea N oM 92€'v88'c9L 66v'e6L 0 6e8'2LL'9L yag'evi'voL asujwousyy
00€'29€'20} 621'699°00'L OIN oM 690'828'992'} 008'2£9'98 008°689'851 09e'egc'86) gjs00apy
002'9¥0"Lv) LES'PhE'p12T ON © N LE2'Pee'aLE’} 000°212'289 00€'L4g'09} 00.'968'66 uosep
699'EVL'LLT 80.'0/9'096°2 IN 00Z'2¥2'ey 9E2'918°206'C 291'8¥0'a9 © 0LL'989'¥29 OVE'YEL'ZL epanbien
8.1'092'60} 802'20L'2L¥') N ON 802'226'962'} 00.'9€9'22 002'86%'804 001'669'L¥ aaisjuep
£6¥'909'a¥8"} 920°LL8'629'0¢8 N OIN 8GZ'EE2'E00'92 920°809'9Sb'2 1#9'98L'L62'9 00Z'L48'LI2 quaoepy
99¢8'¥88'091 00¥'129'981°L 0N 002'198'e 620'1.LL'806 eLv'eva'el 981'90'L¥T £10'8E'y1 JBUPPBN
£86'v8E°0} 81$'289°08C N 005'92L 080'¥28'v0Z 00.°229'2 8E1'€09'0L 000°'299's sy
0Ev'eyL'eLe 81.8°266'G.8'}1 Q09'¥08'8 " OMN 886°L12'2¥0'04 069'261'86 062'€49'222'} 09€'¥¥l'vee uojsBupr
429'686'99¢€ £89'GHE'Z6EY IN ON LOE'EVL'S88'T 00.°264'PLL 0g1'82v'vey 2£9°189'806 sameua’]
Auedoid [euosied [ej0L  Apedoid sy (w0l  [euewdojarsg - JGAOIND JequiL [euapisay legsnpuy [B[OIBWIWOD jesnapby

e ebed

0202 - SNOLLYITTVA G3ZITVND3 3LVLS AHVNINITSNd

Nd SETI 0202/8eTv0



Members:
Others:

AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, August 5, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER
EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-154

Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, Jennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,
Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.

As the County Building is closed to the public except by appointment, the meeting is open remotely

to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:

County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below
Date/Time: August 5, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:

Dial: 1 (312) 626-6799 or 1 (929) 436-2866 and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

l. Call to order
Il. Welcome
M. Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)

V. Agenda

1. Annette Rummel, Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau, re:

= 8-25-1 2020 Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau Budget

2. Kelly Suppes, Purchasing/Risk Manager, re:

= 8-25-2 Revised County Policy #411, Policy on the Sale of Real and Personal Property

3. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in committee)

= 8-25-3 BAY CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS submitting revised Form L-4029 detailing the

2020 property tax levies for Bay City Public Schools

= 8-25-4 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY forwarding the Final State

Equalization Report for the 2020 tax year

= 8-25-5 BIRCH RUN TOWNSHIP submitting its Annual Tax Increment Financing (TIF)

Plan for FY 2020 for the Birch Run Township DDA

V. Miscellaneous

VI. Adjourn
7-31-20/cll/sea/sk
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https://zoom.us/j/8024441727

Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau
515 N. WASHINGTON AVENUE, 2nd FLOOR, SAGINAW, Ml ;8607

(P) 989.752.7164 * (TF) 800.444.9979 * (FAX) 989.752.6642 * GOGREAT
April 18, 2020 S ERVI C

Mr. Chuck Stack, Chairman
Mr. Robert Belleman, County Controller
County of Saginaw
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Dear Chairman Stack and Mr. Belleman, n %"“
@
(92}

In accordance with the Management Agreement by and between the County
of Saginaw and the Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau, I
request to be assigned time during an upcoming County Services Committee

Agenda to present the review the 2020 Saginaw County Convention &
Visitors Bureau Budget.

You have already received and filed copies of the 2019 Saginaw County
Convention & Visitors Bureau Audit. The 2020 budget for the Saginaw

County Convention & Visitors Bureau is attached. Please advise me of the
date, time and location or link that would serve you best.

Respectfully submitted,

e 2

Annette M Rummel, Ph. D. CEO

Attachment: 2020 approved SCCVB Budget
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Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau

Summary of Budget - Proposed

2020 Budget |2019 YTD Thru Juné 2019 Budget Account #
Income
Room Tax $1,901,643 $849,843| $1,817,000 1500
Interest Income] $200 S0 $800 1520
Other Income) $200 S0 $500 1525
Unrealized Gain (Loss) SCF Fund $200 $0 $500 1521
Total Income $1,902,243 $849,843| $1,818,800|
Expense
Administrative:
Grand Total Wage/Salary/Benefits $48,310 $22,621 $46,046
Grand Total Overhead]| $176,700 $93,039 $140,450
Total Administrative $225,010 $115,660 $186,496
Marketing
Mal’REtlng GLBRCVB $1,426,233 $599,533| $1,362,750
Marketing Other $133,000 S60 $10,000
Total Marketlng $1,559,233 $599,593| $1,372,750|
Tourism Development Project $118,000 $8,485| $259,554
Total Expense/Investments $1,902,243 $723,738| $1,818,800
Income/Expense $0 $126,105 $0




Saginaw County CVB Continued 2020 Budget 2019 YTD Thru 2019 Budget | Account#
Administrative June
Wage/Salary/Benefits
_ Salaries $31,500]  $15,000]  $30,000 1685
Payroll Taxes FICA $2,410} $1,148 $1,950 1693
Unemployment $550 $275 $550 1694
Retirement $950 $450 $900 1680
Health/Life/Disability Insurance $11,500| $5,748 $11,246 1645
identity Theft Protection| $350 $0 $350 1646
Medical Reimbursement $500 $0 $500 1677
Worker's Compensation Insurance} $300 $0 $300 1735
Penalities $250 $0 $250 1672
Total Wage/Salary/Benefits $48,310| $22,621] $46,046
Bullding & Equipment
Auto Expense $10,000 ] $10,000 1610
Office Space/Buildin $54,000 $29,700 $54,000 1652
Equipment Purchase $30,000 $29,349 $30,000 1635
Equipment Lease $1,000 S0 $1,000 1632
Equipment Repair/Maintenance $5,000] S0 $4,000 1634
Depreciation Expense] 543,000 $21,611 $5,000 1620
Content Insurance/Umbrella $2,000 $1,802 $1,700 1614
Telephone| ] $0 S0 1695
Office Supplies $2,500 $1,192 $600 1666
Postage $1,500 $434 $1,250 1675
internet Connectivityl S0 $237 S0 2650
Personal Property Tax $1,000 S0 $1,000 1673
Gain/Loss on Sale of Assets S0 S0 $0 1899
Total Bullding & Equipment $150,000 $84,325| $108,550
Contracted Services
Accounting]  $3,000 $1,050 $3,000 1600
Audit $3,400| $3,300 $3,200 1607
Director & Officer Liability Insurance $1,800 $1,700 $1,700 1615
Management Fee SCF $2,000 $0 $2,000 1636
Legal Fees $3,000 $1,487|  $10,000 1654
Total Contracted Services $13,200 $7,537 $19,900




Saginaw County CVB Continued

2019 YTD Thru

Account #

2020 Budget 2019 Budget
Administrative e June .
Memberships/Other
Education $6,500 S0 $6,500 1630
Membership/Administrative $2,500 $716 $1,000 1625
Meetings Administrative $3,000 $461 $3,000 1643
Travel & Mileage $500 S0 $500 1720
Miscellaneous $1,000 S0 $1,000 1660
Total Memberships/Other $13,500 $1,177 $12,000
Grand Total Overhead $176,700 $93,039| $140,450




Saginaw County CVB - Continued
2019 YTD Thru
Marketln! 2020 Budget e 2019 Budget Account #
Marketing GLBRCVB | $1,426,233] $599,533 $1,362,750 4601
Marketing Other:
Advertising] $120,000] $60 133000 4605
Visitor Guide $10,000 S0 $10,000 4686
Champlon/VFR Program $3,000 S0 $3,000 6692
Marketing Other]  $133,000] $60) $146,000)
Total Marketing $1,559,233] $599,593 $1,508,750}




Saginaw County CVB - Continued

2020 Budget zom;:::rhru 2019 Budget Account #
Tourism Development Project $118,000] $8,485| $259,554 1628




111 SoutH MICHIGAN AVENUE
SAaGINAW, MICHIGAN 48602

CouNTY OF SAGINAW COUNTY
Orrice Or CounTy CONTROLLER SERVICES

PHONE (989) 790-5210

ROBERT V. BELLEMAN
Controller/Chief Administrative Officer

June 22, 2020 tbelleman@saginawcopnty.cfih
2 =

B8
Commissioner Michael A. Webster, Chairman 2 o fg%?
Saginaw County Board of Commissioners 6 ol 5 - % o }; -
111 South Michigan Ave. ,2\ &: 2 1
Saginaw, MI 48602 8‘::.

BnoEo
Re: Revised County Policy #411 Sale of Real and Personal Property Policy =—EF: = 5

(L) ,<

(7.}

Dear Chairman Webster:

Attached for the consideration is revised County Policy #411, Policy on the Sale of Real and Personal
Property. The policy is being revised at the request of the Controller’s Office who handles the Sale of Real
and Personal Property.

Pre 2009 the County held an annual auction at the Saginaw County Mosquito Abatement Facility. It was
later determined to abandon the auction as vehicles and equipment had to be stored for a period of time
and moved just prior to the auction. Many of the vehicles were sitting for anywhere between 2-9 months
and were in rough condition from sitting idle.

Since that time, | have used a variety of selling options Including listing on Craigslist, EBay, GovDeals,
Marketplace, etc. to advertise and sell County Personal Property. The current sales methods nets more

of a fair market selling price than the old method. The policy revision reflect the current sales methods
used to dispose/sell County equipment.

| will be available at the August 5" County Services Committee meeting to answer questions about the
revised Policy.

Sincerely,
elly M. Suppes, Purchasing/Risk Manager

cc: Robert V. Belleman, Controller/CAO

FAX (989) 790-5566




Category: 400
Number: 411

Subject: POLICY ON THE SALE OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

1.

PURPOSE: The purpose of this Policy is to:

1.1 Formulate a formal written County Policy with respect to the Sale Of Real And Personal
Property; and,

1.2  Define and dlarify proper procedure to be followed in the event that conditions
necessitate The Sale of Real or Personal Property by County officials.

AUTHORITY: The Saginaw County Board of Commissioners.

APPLICATION: This policy applies to all Elected Offices, Departments and Agencies of Saginaw
County.

RESPONSIBILITY: The Saginaw County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the Saginaw
County Controller’s Office to implement The Sale of Real or Personal Property that is titled to
the County of Saginaw when such sale is proper and appropriate. The Purchasing Division of the
Saginaw County Controller's Office will administer this Policy and the sale of such property using
the following procedures.

DEFINITION(S): NONE

POLICY:

61 Sale of Personal Property and/or surplus supplies or equipment shall be sold or
otherwise disposed of using the best online option deemed by the Purchasing Division.
This will include determining fair market value and listing the personal property using
online or auction sites, i.e. Cralgsllst, EBay, Marketplace, GovDeaIs, etc. a—eempet-lt-we

6.3  The Purchasing Division of the Saginaw County Controller's office is further authorized
to sell and/or dispose of real estate using-a-competitive-process. Before such process is
begun, the Purchasing Division of the Saginaw County Controller's Office will determine
the fair market value of such residential and/or commercial real estate by using a
professional appraisal firm or the County's Equalization Department. Once a fair market

Policy 411
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value has been determined, the Purchasing Division of the Saginaw County Controller's
Office shall use either of the following procedures to sell and/or dispose of real estate.

6.3.1

6.3.2

Use of a Professional Realtor: When the Purchasing Division, in consultation with
the Saginaw County Controller, has determined that it is optimal to use a
Professional Realtor for sale of real estate, the Purchasing Division will engage
the services of a realtor serving the geographical area where the property is
located. The Purchasing Division shall negotiate a commissioned rate for the sale
and shall authorize the Professional Realtor to market the property for a period
not to exceed six (6) months.

6.3.1.1  The Purchasing Division of the Saginaw County Controller's Office
shall be authorized to accept cash offers that are not lower than
twenty (20) percent of the fair market value as determined by the
Professional Appraisal Firm. (If the Purchasing Division of the Saginaw
County Controller's Office receives an offer which is less than 20%
under the fair market value as determined by the Appraisal Firm and
believes it is in the best interest of the County to accept such offer,
the Saginaw County Controller is authorized to accept such offers.) If
the Purchasing Division believes it is in the best interest of the County
to accept an offer which is lower than 30% below the fair market
value of the property, the Saginaw County Board of Commissioners is
hereby authorized to accept such offers.

Selling of Real Estate through Competitive Sealed Proposals: In the event that
the Purchasing Division of the Saginaw County Controller's Office determines it
is appropriate to sell and/or dispose of real estate through competitive sealed
proposals, an invitation for proposals shall be issued by the Purchasing Division
of the Controller's Office and shall include all contractual terms and conditions
applicable to the sale.

6.3.2.1  Public Notice: Adequate public notice through a—newspaper—of
general-circulation the County website of the invitation to purchase
such real estate shall be published in a reasonable time, not less than
14 calendar days prior to the date set forth for the opening of
proposals. Public Notice shall state the place, date and time of such
proposal opening.

6.3.2.2  Proposal Opening: Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence
of one or more witnesses at the time and place designated in the
invitations for proposal. The amount of each proposal and such
relevant information as deemed appropriate, together with the name
and address of each proposer shall be recorded. The record of sealed
proposals received shall be open to public inspection.

Policy 411
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6.3.2.3 Proposal Acceptance: Proposals shall be unconditionally accepted
without alteration and correction. Proposals, which do not comply
with the criteria set forth in the invitation for proposal, may, at the
discretion of the Purchasing Agent, be deemed not qualified
proposals. Also, proposals that do not meet or exceed fair market
value of the property being sold, as determined by a real estate
appraiser, may, at the discretion of the Purchasing Agent, be deemed
not qualified proposals.

6.3.2.4 Correction or Withdrawal of Proposals: Correction or withdrawal of
inadvertently erroneous proposals, before or after proposal opening
or cancellation of contracts based on such proposal mistakes may be
permitted where appropriate. After proposal opening, no changes in
proposal prices or other provisions are allowed.

6.3.2.5 Award: Award shall be made to the responsible offerer whose
proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to the County
of Saginaw.

6.3.2.6  Reservation: The County of Saginaw shall reserve the right to accept,
reject, or negotiate and amend any proposal submitted with the high
proposer, or to accept or reject any proposal received If doing so
would be in the best interests of the County of Saginaw, and to waive
any irregularities and/or informalities in the proposal process.

6.4 Earnest Money

6.4.1 In the sale of real estate through either the use of a professional realtor or the
use of competitive sealed proposals, an earnest money deposit shall be required
of the successful vendor. The amount of such earnest money deposit shall be
determined by the Purchasing Agent in consultation with the Saginaw County
Controller.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES: NONE

CONTROLLER/CAO LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW: The Controller/CAO has determined that this
policy as submitted to the Board of Commissioners contains the necessary substance In order
to carry out the purpose of the policy. County Civil Counsel has determined that this policy as
submitted contains content that appears to be legal activities of the Saginaw County Board of
Commissioners.

Approved as to Substance: Approved as to Legal Content:
Saginaw County Controller/CAO Saginaw County Civil Counsel
ADOPTED: Nevember23,-1999—june 18, 2020

Policy 411
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Saginaw County L

Board of Commissioners
111 S. Michigan
Saginaw MI 48603

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please find a revised L-4029 for the current year. The revision is due to a notice of
change from Bay County Equalization Department that we received May 28, 2020. Please note,
that the rate is now 18 mills and disregard our previous submission.

The District’s Board of Education approved the Revised L-4029 during the Regular Board
meeting held on June 8, 2020.

Should you have any questions regarding this form, please feel free to contact me at
comptonj@bcschools.net.

Sincerely,

-

Jolene L. Compton, CPA
Director of Finance & Accounting

Enc.

File
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Enclosed please find the Final State Equalization Report for the 2020 tax year that was approve
and certified by the State Tax Commission at their May 26, 2020 meeting.

Should you have further questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office at (517) 335-3429

(ext. 5).
Sincerely,
David A. Buick, Executive Director
State Tax Commission
Enclosure

P.O. BOX 30760 » LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan govi/treasury « 517-335-4410



5102 (Rev. 01-19)

STATE OF MICHIGAN

GRETCHEN WHITMER DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY RACHAEL EUBANKS
GOVERNOR LANSING STATE TREASURER
May 26, 2020

We hereby certify that the valuations of the several counties in the State of Michigan as
equalized by the State Tax Commission at the regular session in the year 2020, as provided by
Act 44 of the Public Acts of 1911, as amended by Act 143 of the Public Acts of 1986, are as
presented by the attached report.

STATE TAX COMMISSION

Sy

eggy Rolde, Chairperson

W. Howard Morris, Commissioner

Leonard D. Kutschman, Commissioner

P.O. BOX 30471 ¢ LANSING, MICHIGAN 48809
www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission e 517-335-3429
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Birch Run Townsh@OUNTY

8425 Main Street ¢ P.O. Box 152 * Birch Run, MI RVICES
Phone: (989) 624-9773 « Fax: (989) 624-1177
RECEIVE & ELES
S

2
o
o
’
June 10, 2020 6 2 b g 5

RE: Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Tax Increment Financing Report

NIOVYS

A

92 :2l Hfl L1 NOP
IWINOD
NNOD

Sc'!. ANOI

Dear Saginaw County Board of Commissioners,

Pursuant to MCL 125.4911 ‘Recodified Tax Increment Financing Act’; as an authority that is capturing tax

increment revenues shall submit to the governing body of a taxing unit levying taxes subject to capture by
an authority, a report on the status of the tax increment financing account. Enclosed please find the

Annual TIF Report for Birch Run Township DDA. If you have any questions regarding this report or
otherwise, please feel free to contact me.

Regards,

&KCLLLV\

Karen Parlberg, Treasurer
Birch Run Township

(989) 624-9773
treasurer@birchruntwp.com

Enclosure: Copy of Annual Report on Status of TIF Plan



Annual Report on Status of Tax increment Financing Plan

Send completed form to: For Feocal Years
T StateS pT: & igan.gov Birch Run Township TIF Pian Namw in
s e Bl s s e Authorty : 2020
mshonty's fiscal year ending n 2020
Yaar AUTHORITY (not TIF plan) was creatad .
Yexs TiF pian was crostad or las! amended to extend 017
its duration:
Cusrent TIF pion ot el
O TIF plan expirs In FY207 i
Yew of frat bax Incramont revenus caphus: 1950
Doss the mhorty capture tams from local or
intermexiats school districts, or capturs the state Wy
education tax? Yes of na?
yes,
Yoer "
Revenue: Tax increment Ravenua 5 183035
Property taxes - from DDA levy 5 -
Interast 13 1453
State reimbursement for PPT loss (Forms 5176 and 4650) )
Other income {grants, fess, donations, eix.) ¥ 3282
Total $ 187,770
Tax Increment Revenues Received
From counties ] 138,538
From muntcipalities {city twp, viilage) 3 13518
From libraries (if levied separately) $
From community colleges s 28970
From reqional authorities {tvpe nama in next cefl} $
From reqional authonties {type name in next celt) s
From reqional authonties {type name in next cel} $
From lacal school districts-nperating 5
From tocal school districts-debt $
From intermed:ate schoot distncts $
From State Education Tax (SET) $
From state share of IFT and other specific taxes {school taxes) -
Total $ 183,035
Expenditures Contxchual Eervices - Pdce Pralachion $ 41913
Contrachud Services - A s 5000
Corbactut Servess Engneeng s 197
Publcaton & Halces s 145
ampes Progct Cupphes i EmM
5
3
$
1
5
1
Trunafars o other municipal fnd (it A rame)  Walet joontnbuton bwad Wt Towet paymert] : 18000
Trarwters to other municipal fund (kst fund name) 3
Viansfers jo Geresal Fund 5
Tokal ] 100,963
non-bonded Principal 3 234900
Intarest 3
Qutstanding bonded indebtednass Principa) 3
ttevest L]
Total 5 234,000
Bond Reserve Fund Balance ]
CAPTURED VALUES ‘Overall Tax rates captured by TIF plan
PROPERTY CATEGORY Current Taxable Value Initial {base year) Assessed Value Captured Value .1 TIF Revenue
Ad vakorem PRE Real 5 1960563 § 75381 § 1.224.170 12 4718000 $1529232
Ad valorem non-PRE Real ] 15248668 § 1806420 § 13,442 248 12 418000 S$167 649 DO
Ad valoram industrial persona) 3 $ s 00000000 $0.00
Ad valorem commurcial personal $ 3 3 00000000 $000
Ad valorem 18y personal 3 e ) - 3 00000000 3000
Ad valorem other personal 3 L 3 00000000 $000
IFT New Facilly real property, 0% SET exempton 1} - 8 3 00000000 $000
IFT Naw Faclity el property, SO% SET sxemption 1 $ 3 - 00000000 $000
IFT New Faciity real property, 100% SET exemption L} - 8 ] - 1 0000000 $000
IFT New Facilly personal property on sxdusirial class lnd 1 L 3 - 00000000 3000
IFT New Faclity personal proparty on commercal class land ~ § § - 00000000 $000
IFT New Facilly personal property, el ofhet $ 3 s - 00000000 $000
Commercial Facilty Tax New Faciity 1 5 s - 00000000 $000
IFT Replacement Facilty (frozen vakues) 5 § $ . 00000000 $000
Commercial Facilty Tax Restored Faclly (frazen values) ] ] $ 00000800 $000
Commercial RehabxRtation Act 1 L} K ] 120000000 3000
Neighborhood Enterprise Zone Act $ L] 3 00000000 $000
Obsoista Propesty Rehabiitation Act $ ] 00000000 $000
Eigibie Tax Reverted Property (Land Bank Ssie} § $ $ - 0.0000000 $000
Exempt [from all property tax) Real Property $ ~ &8 s - 0.0000000 $000
Tom Capurea ke T T TR« 1sTe e $183041.33 Total T Revenoe




AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, September 9, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER
EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-154

Members: Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Others: Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, Jennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,
Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.
As the County Building is closed to the public except by appointment, the meeting is open remotely

to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:
County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below

Date/Time: September 9, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:
Dial: 1 (312) 626-6799 or 1 (929) 436-2866 and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

l. Call to order

Il. Welcome

M. Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
V. Agenda

1. Greenfelder Law Office, re:
= 9-22-6 Submitting a Petition for Change of Boundaries requesting approval of a
Resolution to detach the property known as 15414 McKeighan Road,
Chesaning, Michigan 48616 owned by Brenda Tithof from the Village of
Chesaning

2. Brian Keenan-Lechel, Director, Parks and Recreation, re:
= 9-22-9 Requesting approval of a Resolution accepting a grant from the Michigan
Natural Resources Trust Fund in the amount of $300,000 for development of a
splash pad at William H. Haithco Recreation Area, with local match of $125,000
provided by the Saginaw Community Foundation and $75,000 from
Saginaw County Parks fund balance, for a total project cost of $500,000

9-4-20/sea/cll



https://zoom.us/j/8024441727

MANAGEMENT ASSISTANT, re:

= 9-22-24 Forwarding a request from Kylie Kienitz, Life Scout Troop 366, who is working
on her Eagle Scout Project and would like to place a First Responder Monument
on Saginaw County Property at 219 S. Michigan Ave.

4, Kathy Dwan, Commissioner District #1, re:
= 9-22-7 Submitting for approval amended County Policy #241 titled “Purchasing Policy”
with all references to “prevailing wage” deleted
5. Robert Belleman, Controller/CAOQ, re:
= 9-22-20 Submitting amendment of County Policy #241 titled “Purchasing Policy” and
adoption via Resolution of new County Policy #244 titled “Responsible
Contractors Policy.”
6. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in committee)
= 9225 SAGINAW CHARTER TOWNSHIP sending notice that the State Street Corridor
Improvement Authority (CIA) held an informational meeting for the benefit of
taxing jurisdictions subject to tax capture on Tuesday, August 11, 2020 and has
scheduled a second meeting for October 6, 2020
= 9-22-8 CITY OF SAGINAW sending notice of a Public Hearing on the application of
217 Washington LLC for creation of a Commercial Rehabilitation Act (CRA)
District for property 218, 222, 224 and 226 S. Washington Ave., Saginaw,
Michigan, to be held September 14, 2020
V. Miscellaneous
VI.  Adjournment

9-4-20/sea/cll




AGENDA
COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, October 7, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER
EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-154

Members: Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Others: Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, Jennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,
Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.
As the County Building is closed to the public except by appointment, the meeting is open remotely
to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:

County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below
Date/Time: October 7, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/i/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727
INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:
Dial: 1 (877) 853-5257 or 1 (888) 475-4499 and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

l. Call to order

Il. Welcome

Il Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
V. Agenda

1. Jamie Furbush, Frankenmuth Convention & Visitors Bureau, re:
= 10-20-5 Submitting for discussion and approval its FY 2020/2021 Budget

2. Dennis Borchard, Director, Saginaw County Road Commission, re:
= 10-20-6 Submitting its 2019 Annual Report (Receive & File)

3. Denise Babbit, Director, Equalization, re:
= 10-20-8 Submitting for approval the 2020 Saginaw County Apportionment Report

4. Steve Jonas, Executive Vice President, Saginaw Future, re:
= 10-20-10 Requesting an appearance before the County Services Committee to discuss a
Commercial Rehabilitation District approved by the City of Saginaw for
218 S. Washington Ave., Saginaw, Ml and Saginaw County Policy #254

= 10-20-11 Submitting notice of a virtual Public Hearing on the application of
218 Washington LLC for a Commercial Rehabilitation Act (CRA) Tax Exemption
Certificate for property located at 218, 221, 224, and 226 S. Washington Ave.,
for Monday, September 28, 2020 at 6:30 p.m.

10-2-20/sea/cll/sek



https://zoom.us/j/8024441727

5. Robert Belleman, Controller/CAO — Dave Gilbert, Civil Counsel, re:
Tabled at September County Services Committee
= 9-22-20 Submitting for approval amended County Policy #241 titled “Purchasing Policy”
with all references to “prevailing wage” deleted

= 10-20-16 Forwarding information received in response to the draft Responsible
Contractor Policy submitted in September for discussion and modification of
the policy

6. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in committee)

= 10-20-2 BIRCH RUN TOWNSHIP submitting notice of a special meeting of its Downtown
Development Authority on October 7, 2020 at 8:00 a.m. to discuss and take
action on various issues

= 10-20-3 BRIDGEPORT CHARTER TOWNSHIP submitting notice of a Public Hearing on
the request of Amigo Mobility Products for an Industrial Facilities Tax
Exemption at 6693 Dixie Highway, Bridgeport

= 10-20-4 VILLAGE OF BIRCH RUN submitting the Downtown Development Authority
Annual Report on Status of Tax Increment Financing Plan for fiscal year ending
2020

V. Miscellaneous
VI.  Adjournment

10-2-20/sea/cll/sek




Members:

Others:

V.

VI.

AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, November 4, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER PA 228 of 2020

Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, lJennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,
Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.

As the County Building is closed to the public except by appointment, the meeting is open remotely
to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:

County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below
Date/Time: November 4, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/i/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:

Dial: 1 (877) 853-5257 or 1 (888) 475-4499 and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

Call to order
Welcome
Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
Agenda
1. Annette Rummel, CEO, Saginaw County Convention & Visitors Bureau, re:
= 11-17-4 Submitting for discussion and approval its FY 2021 proposed Budget
2. Denise Babbitt, Director, Equalization, re:
= 11-17-7 Submitting information for Saginaw County to enter into an agreement for a
Designated Assessor pursuant to PA 660 of 2018
3. Dave Gilbert, Civil Counsel, re:
= 11-17-8 Submitting for approval a Responsible Contractor Policy and Resolution and
revisions to the Saginaw County Purchasing Policy
4, INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in committee)

= 11-17-5 ROBERT BELLEMAN, Controller/CAO submitting the 2020 Third Quarter
Finance and Program reports for the Historical Society of Saginaw County and
its four out-county museums

= 11-17-6 CITY OF FRANKENMUTH submitting Public Hearing Notices to establish an
Industrial Development District and Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate
for Star of the West, 245 S. Main St.

Miscellaneous
Adjournment

10-30-20/sek/cll/sea



https://zoom.us/j/8024441727

Members:
Others:

AGENDA

COUNTY SERVICES COMMITTEE
111 S. Michigan Ave., Room 200, Saginaw MI 48602
Wednesday, December 2, 2020 - 4:00 p.m.
VIA TELECONFERENCE PER PA 228 of 2020

Charles Stack — Chair, Cheryl Hadsall — Vice-Chair, Kyle Harris, Dennis Krafft, Michael Webster
Robert Belleman, Civil Counsel, Koren Thurston, lJennifer Broadfoot, Board Staff,
Media

The County Services Committee meeting will be held via Zoom online meeting platform.
As the County Building is closed to the public except by appointment, the meeting is open remotely
to the public to follow along and participate during the public portion of the meeting, as follows:

County of Saginaw is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.
Topic: See Agenda below
Date/Time: December 2, 2020 04:00 PM EST

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/i/8024441727 Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

INSTRUCTIONS using ZOOM audio conferencing:
Dial: 1 (877) 853-5257 or 1 (888) 475-4499 and enter Meeting ID: 802 444 1727

l. Call to order

Il. Welcome

Il. Public Comment (Speakers limited to 3 minutes)
V. Agenda

1.

11-25-20/sek

(Held over from October County Services Committee)
Dennis Borchard, Director, Saginaw County Road Commission, re:
= 10-20-6 Submitting its 2019 Annual Report (Receive & File)

Brian Wendling, Public Works Director, re:

= 12-15-3 Requesting approval of (1) Resolution Approving Apportionment of
Operational Costs and Accepting for File the FY 2021 Budget of the Saginaw
Area Storm Water Authority; and (2) Resolution Appointing Trustee and
Alternate Trustee of the SASWA Board of Trustees

= 12-15-4 Submitting for discussion its “Stormwater Management Design Requirements”
document that will be offered to each of the County’s municipalities for
adoption

Brian Keenan-Lechel, Parks & Recreation Director, re:

= 12-15-5 Requesting approval to utilize an additional $100,000 from the Parks &
Recreation Commission’s fund balance account to enhance the development
of a splash pad and playground installation at William H. Haithco Recreation
Area



https://zoom.us/j/8024441727

4. INFORMATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS (To be Received & Filed in committee)
= 12-15-6 BAY CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS submitting a Resolution by the Board of Education
of the School District of the City of Bay City that has determined its summer tax
levy on all school district property

= 12-15-7 BIRCH RUN TOWNSHIP submitting notice of a Public Hearing on Wednesday,
December 9, 2020 at 8:00 a.m. for the Birch Run Downtown Development
Authority to provide public information, appointment of new members and
officers, and a streetscape project update

= 12-15-8 VILLAGE OF BIRCH RUN submitting notice of a Public Hearing on Thursday,
December 17, 2020 at 7:30 a.m. for the Village of Birch Run Downtown
Development Authority to have an informational meeting

V. Miscellaneous
VI.  Adjournment

11-25-20/sek
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD
COMMISSIONERS OF SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2019

John Sangster Dave Adams Richard H. Crannell, PE Todd M. Hare Deb Kestner

Chairperson Vice-Chairperson Member Member

—— Member

The Saginaw County Road Commission takes pleasure in submitting to you and the people of Sagi-
naw County our fiscal year 2019 annual report in compliance with the provisions of Public Act 283
of 1909, as amended. Information in this report covers the fiscal year of January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2019.

Respectfully submitted,
BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS
OF THE COUNTY OF SAGINAW

Vol Samgater, Llainperson




MANAGING DIRECTOR

As Managing Director, Dennis Borchard is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day
activities of the Road Commission. The Manager has several department heads
who report to him to keep him abreast of the operations of the Road Commission.

The goal of the Saginaw County Road Commission remains steadfast: using our
Dennis L. Borchard expertise, energy and funds to provide the safest and most convenient road system
possible, and to contribute to economic development and a high quality of life

throughout the county.
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FACT SHEET

200,169

Saginaw County residents:

Residents of townships served: 142,059

Road Commission employees: 72

Commissioners: 5

Total miles of road 1,851.03
Miles of primary road 507.27
Miles of local road 1344.18

Albee

Townships served: 27
Birch Run
Blumfield
Brady
Brant
Bridgeport
Buena Vista
Carrollton
Chapin
Chesaning
Frankenmuth
Fremont
James

Jonesfield

Total Revenue

Michigan Transportation Fund (MTF)
Federal, State, Twp. & Other Revenue
Miles of 2019 construction projects
Bridges replaced

Miles of local roads chip sealed

Miles of primary roads chip sealed
Miles of gravel placed roads

Tons of salt used

Kochville
Lakefield
Maple Grove
Marion
Richland
Saginaw
St. Charles
Spaulding
Swan Creek
Taymouth
Thomas
Tittabawassee
Zilwaukee

$ 30,187,221.00

$ 20,622,748.00

$ 9,564,473.00

28.94

7

66

104

32

15,425




PRIMARY ROAD PROJECTS

Primary Roads - Preservation/Structural Improvements

Township Road Name Project Type Amount
Albee Twp Fergus Bridge Replacement $ 1,407,290.86
Albee Twp Gasper Bridge Replacement $ 77,672.79
Brant Twp Dempsey Resurfacing $ 22,906.61
Bridgeport Twp Dixie #1 Rehabilitation $ 386,144.26
Bridgeport Twp Dixie @ Mill Traffic Signal Upgrades $ 20,219.74
Bridgeport Twp Williamson @ Southfield Traffic Signal Upgrades $ 71,317.25
Bridgeport Twp Dixie #2 Resurfacing $ 1,236,436.31
Bridgeport Twp Williamson Bridge Replacement $ 520,592.86
Buena Vista Twp Portsmouth Drainage $ 9,103.07
Carrollton Twp Tittabawassee @ Michigan |Intersection Improvements $ 465,732.66
James Twp Swan Creek @ River Safety $ 870,373.65
James Twp Swan Creek @ Weig| Drainage $ 6,071.16
Lakefield Twp Swan Creek Cross Culvert $ 41,130.91
Maple Grove Twp Gary Drainage $ 28,183.74
Richland Twp O'Hara Cross Culvert $ 12,610.89
Saginaw Twp Brockway Traffic Signal Upgrades $ 97,152.69
Saginaw Twp Center @ Seidel Traffic Signal Upgrades $ 80,382.27
Saginaw Twp Shattuck Resurfacing $ 731,958.60
Saginaw Twp West Michigan and Center Resurfacing $  405,347.90
Saginaw Twp Tittabawassee Resurfacing $ 21,991.11
Spaulding Twp Sheridan Resurfacing $ 925,933.63
Taymouth Twp Seymour Rehabilitation $ 33,648.51
Taymouth Twp Sheridan Bridge Replacement $ 91,797.05
Tittabawassee Twp [Freeland @ River Roundabout $ 140,916.20

$ 7,704,914.72




LOCAL ROAD PROJECTS

Township Road Name Project Type Amount

Albee Twp Briggs Cross Culvert $ 6,803.19
Albee Twp \Verne Cross Culvert $ 42.636.11
Albee Twp Sloan Drainage $ 3,788.16
Albee Twp Burt Resurfacing $ 104,358.48

$ 1567,585.94
Birch Run Twp Dehmel Cross Culvert $ 14,219.46
Birch Run Twp Beyer Cross Culvert $ 10,220.97
Birch Run Twp Willard Drainage $ 28,596.10
Birch Run Twp Burt Resurfacing $ 86,458.19

$ 139,494.72
Blumfield Twp Beyer Box Culvert $ 167,654.40
Blumfield Twp Mueller Box Culvert $ 157,432.93

$ 325,087.33
Brant Twp Schroder Cross Culvert $ 8,543.67
Brant Twp Raucholz Cross Culvert $ 5,567.72

$ 14,111.39
Bridgeport Twp Gabel Cross Culvert $ 3,194.06

$ 3,194.06
Buena Vista Twp Hack Bridge Replacement $ 11,658.32

$ 11,658.32
Chapin Twp Fenmore Cross Culvert $ 4,878.17

$ 4,878.17
Chesaning Twp Stuart Cross Culvert $ 8,311.50
Chesaning Twp Volkmer Cross Culvert $ 6,835.16
Chesaning Twp Stuart Cross Culvert $ 8,058.69
Chesaning Twp \Volkmer Cross Culvert $ 6,790.03

$ 29,995.38
Frankenmuth Twp  |Tuscola Cross Culvert $ 2,661.72
Frankenmuth Twp  [Tuscola Cross Culvert $ 21,541.28
Frankenmuth Twp Baker Resurfacing $ 661,628.83

$ 685,831.83
Fremont Twp Ederer Cross Culvert $ 11,049.10
Fremont Twp Raucholz Drainage $ 10,859.45
Fremont Twp Ridgewood Cross Culvert $ 3,631.04
Fremont Twp Grabowski Return to Gravel $ 47,413.38
Fremont Twp Orr @ Marsh Creek Bridge Replacement $ 1,068,791.94

$ 1,141,744.91
James Twp River Drainage $ 4,923.61
James Twp Weigel Drainage $ 94,235.36
James Twp Miller Return to Gravel $ 44,264.39
James Twp Hart Resurfacing $ 99,953.70

$ 243,377.06
Jonesfield Twp Chapin Cross Culvert $ 8,619.76




LOCAL ROAD PROJECTS

Township Road Name Project Type Amount
Jonesfield Twp Meridian Resurfacing $ 596,761.05
Jonesfield Twp Chapin @ Weeks Dr Bridge Replacement $ 475,810.30
$ 1,081,191.11
Kochville Twp Davis Resurfacing $ 257,972.68
$ 257,972.68
Lakefield Twp Ederer Cross Culvert $ 5,392.87
Lakefield Twp Nelson Cross Culvert $ 8,239.04
$ 13,631.91
Maple Grove Twp Maple Drainage $ 113,286.82
Maple Grove Twp Swan Creek Resurfacing $ 256.261.63
$ 369,548.45
Marion Twp Brant Cross Culvert $ 2,154.97
[Marion Twp Burt Cross Culvert $ 5,149.36
|Marion Twp Fenmore Drainage $ 1,333.63
Marion Twp Chapin Drainage $ 39,751.44
$ 48,389.40
Richland Twp Pangborn Cross Culvert $ 4,896.00
Richland Twp Raucholz Cross Culvert $ 6,058.63
Richland Twp Pruess Cross Culvert $ 11,197.15
Richland Twp Raucholz Cross Culvert $ 9,385.54
Richland Twp Pruess Cross Culvert $ 12,978.53
$ 44,515.85
Saginaw Twp Various Concrete Repair $ 100,036.47
Saginaw Twp \White Beech Drainage $ 16,542.42
Saginaw Twp Cambridge Village Resurfacing $ 850,526.07
Saginaw Twp Barnard Resurfacing $ 295,893.85
Saginaw Twp Autumn Ridge Resurfacing $ 614,171.60
$ 1,877,170.41
Spaulding Twp Ambrose Design $ 4,998.61
Spaulding Twp Tom Cresswell Return to Gravel $ 33,739.44
$ 38,738.05
Swan Creek Twp Baumgartner Cross Culvert $ 1,5631.18
Swan Creek Twp \Wahl Cross Culvert $ 12,475.98
Swan Creek Twp Stello Cross Culvert $ 14,684.13
Swan Creek Twp Stello Cross Culvert $ 13,733.86
$ 42,425.15




LOCAL ROA

D PROJECTS

Township Road Name Project Type Amount
Taymouth Twp Dorwood Cross Culvert $ 10,437.31
Taymouth Twp Burt Cross Culvert $ 2,989.83
Taymouth Twp Canada Cross Culvert $ 12,038.64
Taymouth Twp Moorish Cross Culvert $ 4,532.87
Taymouth Twp Seymour Drainage $ 87,186.08
$ 117,184.73
Thomas Twp Gladstone Cross Culvert $ 3,194.06
Thomas Twp Gleaner Cross Culvert $ 1,410.75
Thomas Twp Thomas Drainage $ 7,320.20
Thomas Twp Tittabawassee Cross Culvert $ 7,902.10
Thomas Twp Orr Culvert $ 11,248.66
Thomas Twp Dice Drainage $ 104,800.45
Thomas Twp O'Hern Non-Motorized $ 534,684.73
$ 670,560.95
Tittabawassee Twp |Graham Cross Culvert $ 4,321.29
$ 4,321.29




COUNTY OF SAGINAW

BRIAN J. WENDLING SE RVICE
PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSIONER
Governmental Centel
111 S M1ch1gan Avenue

Saginaw, M1ch1gan 48602 2086
Phone 989-790-5258 @ FAX 989-790-5259

November 12, 2020

Honorable Chairman Michael Webster
Saginaw County Board of Commissioners
111 South Michigan Avenue

Saginaw, MI 48602

Dear Chairman Webster,

Please allow this letter to serve as my request to meet with the County Services Committee
at its December 2, 2020, meeting regarding the following matters:

e Request to approve by resolution and forward the annual Saginaw Area Storm
Water Authority cost apportionments and 2021 budget.
e Appointment of trustee and alternate trustee to the SASWA Board.

Attached for your review is a copy of the 2020 annual membership apportionments as well
as the proposed 2021 apportionments. I will be in attendance on December 2" to answer
any questions you or the committee may have.

Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully,

L tdennll 5
Brian J. Wendling

Public Works Commissioner

Enclosure



SASWA

Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority

Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority Apportionment 2021

Total Number of Members

$5,674.00 $387.32 6,061.32
6.667 $5,674.00 4.4% $1,091.55 6,765,55
6.667 $5,674.00 8.7% $2,183.10 7,857.10
6.667 $5,674.00 6.3% $1,584.51 $7,258.51
6.667 $5,674.00 23.8% $5,950.70 $11,624.70
6.667 $5,674.00 5.6% $1,408.45 $7,082.45
6.667 $5,674.00 11.1% $2,781.69 $8,455.69
6.667 $5,674.00 2.3% $563.38 $6,237.38
53.33
6.667 $5,674.00 0.0% $0.00 $5,674.00
6.667
60.00
6,667 $5,674.00 9.4% $2,359.15 $8,033.15
6.667 5,674.00 14.6% $3,661.97 $9,335,97
6.667 $5,674.00 9.2% $2,288,73 $7,962.73
y ty - 6.667 $5,674.00 0.0% $0.00 $5,674.00
Swan Valley School District 6.667 $5,674.00 3.0% $739.44 $6,413.44
S.CRC. 6.667 $5,674.00 0.0% $0.00 $5,674.00
{Pre Determined Total 40.000
|Total 100.00 $85,110.00 100% $25,000.00 $110,110.00

WSAG-DATAArchive Projects\proj20011104466.01 SASWA\project_mgt\Budget - Apportionment\2021\2021_Budget_Apportionment_draft_EAM
10/1/2020




SASWA

Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority

SASWA ANNUAL BUDGET

2021
Cost estimate
Public Participation Process (PPP)/ Public Education Plan (PEP) Implementation $1,000.00
Surveys for PEP (year five of permit) $0.00
Website (upload documents, utilization fee, etc.) $1,000.00

lllicit Discharge Elimination Program (IDEP) Implementation

Water Quality test supplies $1,000.00

Dry Weather Screening $5,600.00

Spill Documentation and follow-ups $3,000.00
Post Construction Controls (Documentation) $2,000.00
Construction Site Controls $0.00

Pollution Control and Good Housekeeping Controls

Employee training (IDEP & spill refresher) $1,000.00

Catch Basin Inspections $25,000.00

PIPP / SWPPP Updates $2,500.00
Progress Report - 2021 Documentation & Submittal via MiWaters $13,000.00
Administration, consultation & meetings $24,000.00
EGLE Audits $5,000.00
Insurance, mailing, miscellaneous $6,000.00
Accountant and Auditor $9,000.00
Legal consultation $1,000.00
Conferences for officers $0.00

TOTAL = $100,100.00
Contingencies (10%) =  $10,010.00

Carry over from 2020 Budget

Budget for 2021 = $110,110.00




2020

Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority

Total Number of Members 15

Standard 2020 Budget

Member Name Apportionment | Apportionment

Municipalities

Bridgeport Charter Twp. 6.667 $6,893.33
Buena Vista Charter Twp. 6.667 $6,893.33
Carrollton Twp. & Schools 6.667 $6,893.33
Saginaw - City 6.667 $6,893.33
Saginaw Charter Twp. 6.667 $6,893.33
Thomas Twp. 6.667 $6,893.33
Tittabawassee Twp. 6.667 $6,893.33
Zilwaukee - City 6.667 $6,893.33
Sub-Total 53.33

Agencies

Saginaw County 6.667 $6,893.33
Sub-Total 6.667

Area Apportioned Total 60.00

School Districts / University

Bridgeport/Spaulding Schools 6.667 : $6,893.33
Saginaw Twp. Community Schools 6.667 $6,893.33
Saginaw I1SD 6.667 $6,893.33
Saginaw Valley State University 8.667 $6,893.33
Swan Valley School District 6.667 $6,893.33
Agencies

S.C.R.C. 6.667 $6,893.33
Pre Determined Total 40.000

Total 100.00 $103,400.00

‘ B:\proj2001\104466.01 SASWA\project_mgt\Budget - Apportionment\2020\2020_Budget_Apportionment_FINAL
10/24/2019




SASWA ANNUAL BUDGET
2020

PPP Implementation

PEP Implementation
Surveys for PEP
Website (upload documents, utilization fee, etc.)

IDEP Implementation
WQ test supplies
Dry Weather Screening
Spill Documentation and follow-ups

Post Construction Controls (Documentation)
Construction Site Controls

Pollution Control and Good Housekeeping Controls
Employee training (IDEP & spill refresher)
Structural stormwater control effectiveness
Roadways, Parking Lots and Bridges
Fleet Maintenance and storage yards - PIPPs
Managing vegetated properties

Progress Report - 2020 Documentation

Administration, consultation & meetings
MDEQ Audits

Insurance, mailing, miscellaneous
Accountant and Auditor

Legal consultation

Conferences for officers

Grant Match
MS4 Permit Application Revisions

TOTAL =
Contingencies (10%) =

Carry over from 2019 Budget

Budget for 2019 =

Cost estimate
$0.00

$1,000.00

$0.00
$1,000.00

$1,000.00
$5,000.00
$3,000.00
$2,000.00
$0.00

$5,000.00

$8,000.00

$26,500.00
$500.00
$6,000.00
$9,000.00
$1,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$25,000.00

$94,000.00
$9,400.00

$103,400.00

(Only used if scheduled)




SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION: APPROVING APPORTIONMENT OF OPERATIONAL COSTS and
ACCEPTING FOR FILE THE FISCAL 2021 BUDGET OF THE
SAGINAW AREA STORM WATER AUTHORITY

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the , held on the
day of , 2020, at o’clock . m. Michigan Time.
PRESENT:
ABSENT:

offered the following resolution and moved for adoption. The motion was

seconded by

WHEREAS, has previously joined the Saginaw Area
Storm Water Authority, hereafter “Authority”, and is a constituent municipality pursuant to the Articles of
Incorporation adopted by the Authority and

WHEREAS, two-thirds (2/3) of the legislative bodies of the Member Municipalities are required
to approve the apportionment of the annual operating costs of the Authority and

WHEREAS, the authority is required to file with the legislative bodies of the Member
Municipalities an annual budget for the next fiscal year covering the proposed expenditures to be made
for the organization and operation of the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of
Trustees as follows:
1. The apportionment of the 2021 annual operational costs for the Authority is approved as
presented.
2. The 2021 annual budget of the Authority is received and accepted as presented.
YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:




The Supervisor declared the resolution duly adopted.

, Supervisor , Clerk
IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, I have hereunto fixed my official signature on this day
of , 2020.
, Clerk

B:\proj2001\104466.01 SASWA\project_mgt\General Membership Folder\Resolutions\Resolution Approving Apportionment.doc




SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION: APPOINTING TRUSTEE AND ALTERNATE TRUSTEE
SAGINAW AREA STORM WATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

I, the undersigned, at a regular meeting of the Township Board of , held on
the day of , 2020, at , Michigan Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

offered the following resolution and moved for adoption. The motion was

seconded by

WHEREAS, has previously joined the Saginaw Area
Storm Water Authority, hereafter “Authority”, and is a constituent municipality pursuant to the Articles of
Incorporation adopted by the Authority and

WHEREAS, each constituent municipality is required to periodically designate a constituent
member and alternate constituent member to serve on the Authority Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of
Trustees as follows:
1. The following are hereby appointed as trustee and alternate trustee, respectively of this
Trustee:

Alternate Trustee:

2. The above appointed trustee and alternate trustee will serve a four-year term from
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2024, or until otherwise replaced by the

Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of
Trustees as follows:

1. is hereby appointed as Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority

Trustee on behalf of

2. is hereby appointed as Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority

Alternate Trustee on behalf of




YEAS:

NAYS:

ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

The Supervisor declared the resolution duly adopted.

, Supervisor , Clerk
IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, I have hereunto fixed my official signature on this day
of , 2020.
, Clerk

B:\proj2001\104466.01 SASWA\project_mgt\General Membership Folder\Resolutions\Resolution Appointing Trustee.doc




OATH OF OFFICE
SAGINAW AREA STORM WATER AUTHORITY

The undersigned, having been appointed Trustee/Alternative Trustee, by the following

member municipality: , do hereby solemnly

swear (or affirm) that | will support the Constitution of the United States and the
Constitution of the State of Michigan, and that | will faithfully discharge the duties of the
office of the Trustee/Alternative Trustee of the Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority,

according to the best of my ability.

Dated this day of , 201

CERTIFICATION OF CLERK

| hereby certify that the foregoing Oath of Office was made and subscribed before me this
__ dayof , 201

Clerk

Name of Member of Municipality



COUNTY OF SAGINAW 5
PUBLIC WORKS COMMISS S%ORSI'\({‘.E :
SIONER

Governmenfal Center
111 S Mlchlgan Avenue

Saginaw, Michigan 48602-2086
Phone 989-790-5258 @ FAX 989-790-5259

November 12, 2020 - L,L

Honorable Chairman Michael Webster
Saginaw County Board of Commissioners
111 South Michigan Avenue

Saginaw, MI 48602

~
=
~
==
=
O
=
nNo

Dear Chairman Webster, el s
Please find enclosed a copy of the “Stormwater Management Design Requirements”
recently completed by my office. This document is being submitted for informational
purposes only and is in follow up to a revenue generating concept that I discussed with the
Board last December.

As a quick recap, these Design Requirements will be offered to each of the County’s
Municipalities for adoption. If adopted, my office will then provide development plan
review services, using these requirements, on behalf of the Municipality. This service to
the Municipalities will not only provide a revenue source for my office, but will
significantly reduce the possibility of future long term flooding issues that many of the
Municipalities are currently dealing with due to little or no plan review for stormwater.

I will be in attendance on December 2™ to answer any questions you or the committee may
have.

Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully,

m_. %Wé@
Brian J. Wendling
Public Works Commissioner

Enclosure



SAGINAW COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
COMMISSIONER
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN
REQUIREMENTS

Prepared on behalf of:

SAGINAW COUNTY
SAGINAW COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSIONER (SCPWC)

Brian J. Wendling
Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner
Saginaw County Courthouse
Address: 111 8. Michigan Ave, Saginaw, MI 48602
Telephone: (989) 790-5258
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1. INTRODUCTION

A. NPDES Phase IT Requirements for Stormwater

The Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner (SCP\VC), Saginaw County, and the following

municipatities have implemented their own Storm\vuter Plans and/or
M Design Requi (PCC) for new development and/or re-develop and have the
following NPDES stormwater discharge permits:
Table 1. Stornneater Management Plans andlor A Design Requi
Member Old NPDES Permit #
Saginaw County (SCPWC) MIG610171
Saginaw County Road Commission | MIG610178
Carroliton Township MIG610165
City of Saginaw MIG610161
Saginaw Charter Township MIG610166
Thomas Township MIG610174
Bridgeport Charter Township MIG610181
Saginaw County Public Works C: issi servesasa dary reviewer for i of the
ultimate outlet discharge mto any county drain wnhm Sagmaw County from sites which meet review

criterion for all with impl Plans, listed above.

These members must attain compliance with the National Poltutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) Phase II requirements as they relate to stormwater discharge in Saginaw County’s
jurisdictional area within the urbanized area based on the most recent Census Data. Members of the
Sagmaw Area Storm Water Authority (SASWA) who do not have establlshed paost construction controls
in their jurisdictional boundary may adopt these design req by resolution, They
must provide the resolution to the SCPWC,

These S(ormwater Maunagement Design Requirements are only for industrial, commercial, non-
or platted subdivisions or inium complex orre-
developmeut These Design Requirements are not to be applied to single family or duplex
residential structure or other multi-family residences that are constructed on a parcel that is less
than an acre and not part of a subdivision or condominium project. Any questions regnrdmg this
should be referred to the Saginaw County Public Works Ci fssi *s office for clar N

These Design Requirements for Saginaw County are adopted pursuant to the general authority granted
under the Michigan Drain Code of 1956, Public Act No. 40 of 1956, as amended, M.C.L. §§ 280.1 —
280.630 (hereinafter “Drain Code”) and other applicable faws, to protect the public health, safety, and
welfare regarding drainage matters over which the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner has

Jjurisdiction. These requirements are meant to assist in maintaining the County’s drainage
systems, waterways and watersheds, focusing on the legally established drainage districts and drains
within Saginaw County.

Specifically, these Requi are d d to provide guid in order for project design to

minimize flood damage, to preserve farm drainage, to promote best management practices relating to
drainage, to protect the quality of surface and ground waters, to protect Saginaw County residents’
natural flow rights under common Jaw and to manage the County’s drams, dmmage resources, and
drainage districts for multiple purposes including drainage, ion, scenic
beauty, and fish and wildlife habitats. These Requi are applicable to all it orre-




development projects that disturb at least one or more acres, including projects less than an acre
*that are a part of a Jarger common plan of development or sale and discharge into the
nppllcant’s MS4 and are within the current census defined Urbanized Areas within the

ju y of Sagi County. These proposed developments are subject to review and
approval and either the Sagmaw County Public Works Commissioner has jurisdiction, or the local
jurisdiction has adopted these design requi by resolution and have an with the
Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner to act as their review agency for water quality Best
Management Practices (BMPs).

Additionally, if a project takes place in a township outside of the Urbanized Aven which has
adopted these stormwater Design Requirements by resolution, the SCPWC will provide review
services as nceded {o assure the development meets the requirements.

Other communities within the Urbanized Area which have adopted their own Stormwater Design
Guidelines will be doing their own site plan reviews per their own standards or using the SCPWC
design standards. The SCPWC will only oversee the allowable discharge rate and deteation
volumes in these situations, the community will review for water quality treatment trains, water
quality BMPs along with the allowable discharge rate and detention volumes,

These

qui provide mini i for d b covered under the Stormwater

Design Requi However, the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner
reserves the right to deviate from the specific desxgn requirements set forth when, on a case-by-case
basis, such deviation is appropriate or necessary in order to accommaodate the goals and purposes
underlying these Design Requirements. For example: 1. A site which has an existing storm water
management plan in place, but is just re-doing their paved parking lot with a new surface (0% change
in impervious area); 2. A site which has a storm water manageient plan in place and is removing
impervious areas to add green space, or 3. A site which is discharging to an MDOT MS4 where the
County Public Works Office has no jurisdiction.

The Design Requi and their impl ion are designed to promote low impact designs such
as green infrastructure or other site controls of stormwater. The Saginaw County Public Works
Commissioner is committed to working with those developing projects or applying for permits to use
alternative drainage methods which help meet local landscape ordinance requircments and improve the
quahty of water in our environment. The review of these procedures is the same as it is for any site
review process. The submittal of the deviations is ted and reviewed by the SCPWC engineer or
designee and then a final decision is made as to whether this proposed design will be accepted,

The following outlines basic ideas and principals of stormwater management, and provides a
coneeptual foundation for the design requil ined in this d

1. Impacts of Development on Water Quantity

The hydrology of a watershed changes in response to site clearing and development of the natural
landscape displays itself with an increase in the quantity of runoff. A site’s existing stormwater
storage capacity can be lost as vegetation is removed, naturat depressions are graded and both topsoit
and wetlands are eliminated. As the soil is compacted and d with impervious materials such
as concrete and asphalt, rainfall may no longer penetrate into the ground and runs off of the land.
These modifications, along with the installation of drainage facilities, alter natural drainage patterns
within the area drained. The ing are just a few {es of changes in hydrology in site
development:

» Increases in runoff volume from a site.

¢ Direction of stormwater discharges to open grassed areas such as swales and lawns rather than
allowing stormwater to run off from impervious areas directly into the stormwater conveyance
system,

«  Careful design and installation of erosion control mechanisms and rigorous maintenance
throughout the construction period. Effective erosion control measures include minimizing the
area cleared, leaving a minimum ten (10) foot wide vegetated buffer between drains/streams
(with appropriate additional BMPs as needed) and the site construction area, minimizing the
fength of time that a site is cleared and graded, and the timely vegetative stabilization of
disturbed areas.

5. Site Controls

Site controls are the subject of this d After the impl of source controls, site
controls are then required to convey, pre-treat, and freat (e.g., detain, retain or infiltrate) the
stormwater runoff generated by development. The range of engineering and design techniques
available to achieve these objectives is to some degree dictated by site configuration, soil type, and
the receiving waterway. For le, flat or ly steep top hy may preclude the use of
grassed swales, which are otherwise preferable to curb and gutter systems. But while each site will
be unique, some universal guidelines for controlling stormwater quality and quantity can be utilized.

6. "Drain” and “Drainage District” Defined

The term “Drain” as used in these Design Requirements shail have the meaning as proscribed in
Section 3 of the Drain Code as follows:

The word *drain’, whenever used in this act, shall include the main stream or trunk
and all tributaries or branches of any creek or river, any waltercourse or ditch, either
open or closed, any covered drain, any sanitary, storm, or combined sewer or
conduit composed of tile, brick, concrete, or other material, any structures or
mechanical devices, that wilt properly purify the flow of such drains, any pumping
equipment necessary to assist or relieve the flow of such drains and any levee, dike,
barrier, or a combination of any or all of same constructed, or proposed to be
constructed, for the purpose of drainage or for the purification of the flow of such
drains, but shall not include any dam and flowage rights used in connection
therewith which is used for the generation of power by a public utility subject to
regulation by the public service commission.

The term “Drainage District” as used in these Design Requirements shall have the following meaning:

A Dramage District is any county or inter-county drainage district legally

d pursuant to applicabl ions of the Drain Code. Drain Code Section
5 provides that each such dmmage distriet is & body corporate with the power to
contract, to sue and be sued, and to hold, manage, and dispose of real property, in
addition to any other powers conferred by law. Generally, a drainage district is

comprised of all lands which drain to a legally established Drain.

7. Goals of these Design Requirements

1t is the goal of these site devel qui inimize impacts on ities and/or
adjacent properties. The goal is to establish minil qui to
meet the following objectives:

* Increases in bankfull events crea(mg erosion issues in streams, rivers and open drains.

* I in flow velociti hydraulic surfaces which can result in shorter times of
concentration.

s Dramatic stream flow ions from d runoff from improperly designed sites.

s Lessinfiltration into the underlying groundwater table which can reduce base flow to rivers and
streams.

LI ¢ d sedi loads from ion sites into drains, streams or rivers, with resultant

effects on aquatic habitats,
2. Impacts of Development on Water Quality

As development occurs, changes in land use may contribute new or additional pollutants to storm-
water runoff ... In addition, some accompanying impervious surfaces may provide efficient delivery
of these poilutants into receiving waterways. Leaves, litter, animal droppings, exposed soil from
construction sites, fertilizer and pesticides are all washed off the land. Vehicles and deteriorating
urban surfaces deposit trace metals, oil, and grease onto streets and parking lots. These and other
toxic substances may be carried by stormwater and conveyed through creeks, ditches and storm
drains into our rivers and lakes,

In short, the ecology of drains and waterways may be re-shaped by the shifis in hydrology,
morphology and water quality that can accompany the development process. The stresses that these
changes place on the envuonment are often grﬂdual and invisible, yet they may produce significant
effects over time, The Michif Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) has
identified streams in the urban and urbamzmg areas as requiring special initiatives to restore
degraded habitats, and to improve water quality,

3. Strategy for Design of Stormwater Management Systems

Comprehensive site planning can reduce envi ! and drainag impacts
associated with site development. To achieve this, iti latory agencies, and d

must evaluate the impact of each individual development project over the long termand ona
watershed scale. Such an approach requires it of Best B Practices (BMPs)
that function together as a system to ensure that the volume, rate, timing and pollutant load of runoff
remains stable and sustainable. A “BM:P" isa practice or combination of practices that prevent or
reduce runoff and/or 1 ‘This can be achieved through a di
network of structurat and nonstructural BMPs, In such system, each BMP by itself may not provide
major benefits, but becomes very effective when developed as a treatment train on the site.

4. Source Controls

Source controls reduce the volume of runoff generated on-site and eliminate initial opportunities for
poilutants to enter the drainage system. By working to prevent problems, source controls are the best
option for controlling stormwater, and include the following key practices:

. Use of ex:s!mg on sxte natural features that perform stormwater management functions, such as
ds and vegetative buffers along drains or stream banks.
. The mlmmlzatmn of impervious surface area through site planning that makes efficient use of
paved, developed areas and maximizes open space, ing flexible street and parking
standards and the use of permeable ground cover materials can also reduce impervious surfaces.

» Ensure that stormwater drainage systems and BMPs for water quality and quantity are in place at
site developments.

¢ Reduce the risk of urban flood damage from site developments.

»  Minimize impacts on county drains and natural stream courses where storm systems may
discharge.

«  Reduce non-point source pollution from site

« Maintain existing site hydrology to avoid environmental impacts.

«  Ensure compliance with site planning efforts and compliance with the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) stonmwater discharge permit.

= Ensure adequate drainage systems are being d for future devel in which the
Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner has jurisdiction over, including projects which
disturb at least one or more acres, and projects less than an acre which are a parfof a
larger common plan of development or sale and discharge into the SCPWC drainage
system or MS4 under these design gunidelines by resclution.

Measurable goals will be unplemented and assessed on a yearly basis to determine the effectiveness of
the Design Requi The fc g fe goals will be reviewed annually:

+ How many site design plans are reviewed,

o The number of SESC permits that are issued by the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner
(CEA),

s The Low Impact Devel ices impl d and the effectiveness of each,

s The number of any complaints reeelved mvesngated and/for passed on to the Saginaw County
Public Works Commissioner, CEA, that are related to site developmem and stormwater issues
from that development.

Further documentation of the impacts of development on land and water resources and the
importance of stormwater management can be found in Chapter 2 of the Low Impact Development
Manual for Michigan (SEMCOG, 2008).
httpsi//semeog.org/Reports/LID/files/assets/basic-htm/page-1. htmi#

OR, the following:

httpsi//www semcog.org/Green-Infrastructure

8. Enforcement of Stormwater Management Design Requirements

Each municipality or township that has adopted these design requirements for stormwater must initiate

the action of enforcement through their zoning regulations or another y

FOR NEW DEVELOPMENTS or RE-DEVELOPMENTS of 1 acre or more in area (including
projects less than an acre that are a part of a larger common plan of development or sale and
discharge into the applicant’s MS4):

If a site is not in compliance with the design requi and has not completed the site review
process successfully, the county will rely on the locat building inspector to withhold an occupancy
permit for the structure until it is in compliance with the requirements,




If the site is already occupied, then a letter will be issued from the zoning

staff to bring the site into compliance within the specified period dictated on the letter. Ifthesite isa
High Priority site (hunan health and safety hazard) it must be brought into compliance immediately
upon receiving either verbal or written notice. If the site is considered a Medium Priority (flood and
property damage hazard to nearby parcels/siructures) action must start within 5 days of receiving
written or verbal notice and be completed within 10 days after action has started. If the site is Low
Priority (nuisance site, no inuminent property damage can occur, no water quality issues) the site
must come into compliance within 30 days of receiving written or verbal notice.

9. Goals for Water Quality Requirements

Table 2. Stormwvater Management Criteria
Description
All site development projects are required to detain the water
quality (first flush) volume. The WQ Volume is determined by
the Sapinaw County Public Works Commissioner's guidelines
and site applicability. Design for a minimum removal of 80%
of TSS as compared to uncontrolled runoff or a discharge
concentration not to exceed 80 mg/L Total Suspended Solids
(TSS). This criterion is assumed to be met if extended
detention time of the Channel Protection (CP) Volume is
provided,
‘The Channel Protection (CP) Criteria was developed to prevent
or minimize the channe! enlargement process in streams and
rivers. The post construction runoff rate and volume for a site
must not exceed up to the 2-yr 24-lir storm event, In areas with
C/D soils, the site should be maximized for opportunities to
reduce runoff (i.e., smended sails, harvesting, reuse) prior to
allowing the option for extended detention. HOWEVER; in
Saginaw County with its high seasonal water table and the
effects of Lake Huron's water level these methods will need to
be proven to work in HIGH WATER conditions with NO
ADVERSE effects to neighboring properties’. Extended
detention should focus on maximizing the volume reduction
onsite and then detaining the remaining volume of the 2-yr 24-
hr storm event with the release rate of 0.2 cfs per acre or the 1-
yr 24-hr storm whichever is the lower rate. The CP is NOT
requived for the following waterbody:
s Saginaw River
NOTE: See Engineered drains; see table 1 in Section Il - Definitions

“The SCPWC will require ground borings for determination of groundwater table on sites they feel

may have issues with extended detention, This will be especially in times when the Lake Huron

WSEL is above 579-ft (IGLD8S). Also, use of the NRCS/USDA soils data banks and soils

descriptions in the Saginaw Valley must be used to evaluate the groundwater table. This data will

indicate seasonal water tables.

A, Water Quality (WQ)

B. Channel Protection (CP)

10. Design Criteria for Existing and Proposed Stormwater Collection

Proper sizing of storm sewers and open drains is accomplished by examining past rainfall data and
projecting the amount of surface water nmoff that can be expected from a precipitation event. In this
study, the design rainstorm was chosen with a recurrence frequency of 10-years (10% recurrence
interval). The amount of surface water runoff to be collected in storm sewers and open drains will be
estimated using the Modified Rational Method.

11. Tampering or Removal of Stormwater Controls or Best Management Practices

No property owner or other party shalf remove or modify any stormwater device or best management
practice designed to restrict the flow of stormwater into a stormwater conveyance system or waters of
the State. The removal or modification of a device or best management practice to restrict flows of
stormwater can only be performed if the party responsible for the removal has had a detailed
hydrology & hydraulic study done that provides proof of no significant impact on neighboring
properties up or d of the site. The County Eng or other appointed desi

must approve this study. The party removing such a restrictor will be held liable for any water
damage incurred on neighboring properties.

No property owner or other party shall remove or modify a best management practice that protects,
preserves, or improves stormwater quality. The owner or their designee must obtain permission from
the County to remove or modify a best practice, Ifp is not received in writing
from the County, the owner or other party must replace the best management practice at their expense.
It is the responsibility of every parcel owner to discharge the cleanest possible stormwater from their
site as this water drains to the Great Lakes, and we all must take care to protect this water resource to
the maximum extent possible.

B. Codes / Laws for Enforcement of Stormwater Management Requirements for Pollution of
Surface Waters or MS4

Municipalities within Saginaw County have adopted or have the following as fal /
building enforcement procedures:

« 2012 or newer versions of the Michigan Plumbing Code,
« 2009 or newer versions of the Michigan Residential Code, or
e The International Property Maintenance Code of 2012, or newer versions,

These administrative procedures when adopted by a community provide the “right of entry” for the

icipality’s insp code staff, or their designes to enter private property if a violation
of the code is witnessed, visible, or quantifiable evidence is present to suggest that a violation exists on
the property. If access is denied, and evidence of violation is present, then staff will obtain a warrant for
entry if necessary.

Enforcement Venues for Townships, Cities and Villages:

PA245-1999 which amended PA230-1972 (the Stille-Derosseit-Hale Single State Construction Code
Act) established the “Single State Construction Code” whereby the entire state of Michigan is subject to
a single “family” of construction codes without exception. This means that every portion of the State is
subject to the 2012 Michigan Plumbing Code or most recently adopted version, and the 2009 Michigan
Residential Code, or most recently adopted version, enforced either locally (as an authorized enforcing
agency) or by the State Bureau of Construction Codes (BCC).

Since Code and Property N is not a function enabled by PA230-72 and not
otherwise mandated by state law, a local governmental unit would have to locally adopt the
International Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) to lawfully enforce its provisions. If a municipal
member has adopted, by ordinance, the IPMC then it enforces the IPMC through its Code Enforcement
Program. See Table I below.

10
Bridgeport-Spaulding
School District A NA A
Saginaw ISD NA NA N/A
Saginaw Township .
Community Schools NA N4 NA
Saginaw Valley State
University N4 NA N
Swan Valley School NA NA NA
District

9
Additionally, if the icipality has a Code E Log that is marked above also. The Code
Enforcement Log is a tracking used by jties to track violations and their out
and will be used by that community as its tracking mechanism.
Table I: Ce ities with latory Mechanisms in place, NOTE: these can be found in the
Collaborative Enforcement Response Procedure of the SASIVA.
Building Code
Community/County Code/Ordinances/ | Enfarcement Ordinance or Code
Agency Code Enforcement Log
Hunicipalities
Chap. 8, 14, 20,32
N http:f bridy i.org/index.plp/code
Bridgeport Charter Yes Yes of-
Township Jewdoc&id=99
Litpetfvwis. byctnetfivp:
B Vista Chart content/uploads/2013/03/ord-jnter.prop-
" owastip Yes Yes codenpiated.1.23.15.pdf
Chapter 34
de.conlibrary/mifcarroll
. fon township, {saginaw co.Veod de of
CarrSolI‘:nnl'Il‘)o.\vn.shlp & Yes Yes ordinances
chool Pistrict Section 14 & 58
Dtip:/fibrary.amlegal.com/uxt/gateway.dll/df
City of Saginaw Yes Yes nees?f=templatesSfu=defanit im$3.08vid=a
8 wilegal:saginaw _mi
Chapter 51, 52,94
I . com/Mbrary/mifgihvay
k of nodeld=C
City of Zilwnukee Yes Yes RZIMI
Chapters 6, 10, 30
Itps:fpvwwmunicode.comAibrany/mi/saging
" w_charter_township, (saginaw co.)/codes/co
Sng'l;l:‘\‘:'"(;}l‘;nner Yes Yes de_of ordinances
P Clrapers 2, 14, 26, 78
onlibrany/mithoma
§_township, {saginaw co.)/code de of or
‘Thomas Township Yes Yes dinances
Tifle 1, 8 and 9 (chap.8)
http:tfwww.tittabawassee.org/code-of-
Tittabawassee Township Yes Ves ordinances. htinl
& School District Chap. 14, 38,42, 66
., Yes, at local level Yes, at local Use of Local Qrdinance, Drain Code, or
Saginaw County / level County Health Code
SCPWC
. Yes, at local level Yes, at local Use of Local Ordinance or Connty Health
Saginaw County Road level Code
Commission

Enforcement Venues for County Agencies/Departments:

The Saginaw County Road Commission (SCRC) and the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner
(SCPWC) do not have ordinance authority. However, the SCPWC has some authority to control water
poilution in county drains provided by the State of Michigan Drain Code of 1956. The following are
pertinent excerpts:

The Michigan Drain Code Public Act 40 of 1956 states:

Sec. 423. (1) A person shall not continue to discharge or permit to be discharged into any county
drain or inter-county drain of the state any sewage or waste matter capable of producing in the drain
detrimental depasits, objectionable odor nui. injury to drainage conduits or structures, or
capable of producing such pollution of the waters of the state receiving the flow from the drains as to

injure livestock, destroy fish life, or be injurious to public health.

(10} Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this section subjects the offender to the penalties
described in section 602.

Sec. 602. If any person shall willfully or maliciously remove any section or grade stake set along the
line of any drain, or obstruct or injure any drain, he shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and
upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not exceeding $100.00 and the cosis of
[prosecution, or in default of the payment thereof, by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding 90
days.

The SCRC has limited authority under state law to control water pollution in statutory road right-of-
ways. When evidence of an illicit discharge to a Road Commission ditch or drain is found, and
voluntary correction is not forthcoming, the SCRC will contact the appropriate agency, depending on
the nature of the illicit discharge, and work with the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner, the
County Health Department, the local unit of government, the Jocal policing authority and/or the
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) to require elimination. The EGLE has
broad authority to control poltution, either ditectly or indirectly, to waters of the state provided by Part
31 of Act 451 of 1994,

Additionally, the Saginaw County Health Department has an enforceable County Public Health Code, as
follows:




Excerpts from the SAGINAW COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH CODE:
Section 2— Authority, Jurisdiction and Administration

2.1 Authority. By virtue of the power vested in the Saginaw County Department of Public Health
under Act 368, P.A. 1978, as amended, there are hereby provided regulations affecting the pubtic
health, safety, welfare and environmental quality of Saginaw County, including the provisions for
violations of said regulations.

2.2 Jurisdiction, The Saginaw County Departiment of Public Health shall have jurisdiction throughout
the County of Saginaw, including all cities, villages and townshlps inthe admmlslratmn and

enforcement of these regulations and relevant State Laws i all 1 or
hereafter adopted unless otherwise specifically stated.

2.3 Enforcement. All premises affected by the requirements of these regulations shall be subject to
the inspection by the Health Officer and the Health Officer may collect such samples for laboratory
examination, make tests or take such photographs as he deems necessary for the enforcement of these
regulations.

2.4 Right of Entry. No person shall refise to permit the Health Officer, after proper identification, to
mspect as deemed necessary in the enforcement of this Code, any pmperty, public or pnvale, locuted
in the County of Saginaw for the purpose of obtaini ing surveys or i

collecting samples, inspecting sewage disposal or water supply systems, or evaluating a premise to
ensure compliance with any permits, requi es, ] and enft actions at
reasonable times nor shall any person molest, interfere, or resist the Hea[th Officer in the discharge of
his duty,

2.5 Abatement of Nuisances. Nothing stated in these regulations shall be construed to limit the power
of the Health Officer toward the i diate at of a public nui or menace to the public
health or of & condition, which in the opinion of the Health Officer may become a menace to the
health of the community.

2.6 Interference with Notices. No person shall remove, mutilate, or conceal any notice or placard
posted by the Health Officer, except by written permission of the Health Officer.

2.7 Validity. If any section, subsection, clause or phrase of these regulations is for any reason
adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, it is hereby provided that the remaining portions of these
regulations shall not be affected.

CHAPTER II Penalties Section 1— Penalties

1.1 Any person who shall intentionally fail to comply with the provisions of these regulations as set
forth in the Code or any part thereof shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon
conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not exceeding the sum of $200.00 or by
imprisonment in the County jait, not exceeding 30 days or both such fine and imprisonnent at the
discretion of the Court. Each day a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate and
distinct violation.

See, 3103,

(1) The department shall protect and conserve the water resources of the state and shall have control
of the potlution of surface or ground waters of the state and the Great Lakes, which are or may
be affected by waste disposal of any person. The department may make or cause to be made surveys,
studies, and investigations of the uses of waters of the state, both surface and underground, and

P with other g and gov 1 units and agencies in making the surveys,
studies, and investigations. The department shall assist in an advisory capacity a flood control district
that may be authorized by the legistature. The department, in the public interest, shall appear and
present evidence, reports, and other testimony during the hearings involving the creation and
organization of flood control districts. The department shall advise and consult with the legislature on
the obligation of the state to p ipate in the costs of construction and maintenance as provided for in
the official plans of a flood control district or inter-county drainage district.

{2) The department shall enforce this part and may promulgate rules as it considers necessary to carry
out its duties under this part. However, notwithstanding any rule-promulgation authority that is
provided in this part, except for rules authorized under section 3112(6), the department shall not
promulgate any additional rules under this part after December 31, 2006,

(3) The department may promulgate rules and take other actions as may be necessary to comply with
the federal water poltution control act, 33 USC 1251 to 1387, and to expend funds available under
such law for on or imp: of the state or § program for p and control of
water pollution. This part shall not be construed as authorizing the department to expend or to incur
any obligation to expend any state funds for such purpose in excess of any amount that is appropriated
by the legislature.

"

) ding the limitations on rule p under subsection (2), rules p ) d
under this part before January 1, 2007 shall remain in effect unless rescinded.

History: 1994, Act 451, Eff. Mar. 30, 1995; -- Am. 2004, Act 91, Imd. Eff. Apr. 22, 2004; -- Am.
2005, Act 33, Imd. Eff. June 6, 2005

Compiler's Notes: For transfer of authority, powers, duties, functions, and respunsnbllmes of thc
Environmental Assistance Division to the Director of the Michigan D of E

Quality, see B.R.O. No. 1995-16, compiled at MCL 324.99901 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. For
transfer of authority, powers, duties, functions, and :esponstbllmes of the Surface Water Quality
Division to the Director of the Michigan D of 1 Quality, see E.R.O. No. 1995-
16, compiled MCL 324.99901 of the Mlchlgan Compiled Laws. For transfer of authority, powers,
duties, functions, and responsibilities of the Waste Management Division to the Director of the
Michigan Department of Envirorunental Quality, see E.R.O. No. 1995-16, compiled at MCL
324.99901 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Popular Name: Act 451

Popular Name: NREPA

Admin Rule: R 323.1001 et seq. and R 323.2101 et seq. of the Michigan Administrative Code.

CHAPTER IV. - Sewage ( ) Di IR
Under Section 2 - Definitions:

2,10 Nuisance. “Nuisance” shall include but not be limited to any condition where effluent from any
sewage disposal facilities is exposed to the surface of the ground or is permitted to drain on or to the
surface of the ground, into any ditch, storm sewer, lake or stream, or when the odor, appearance or
presence of this material has an obnoxious or detrimental effect on or to the senses or health of
persons or when it shall obstruct the comfortable use or sale of adjacent property.

Section 6. — Individual Sewage Disposal Systems:

6.3 In the event of a failure of an existing onsite sewage disposal system, the Health Officer must be
notified of the failure, Upon investigation of the cause of failure, the Health Officer may require
repair specifications necessary to correct the problem and upgrade the system to be in compliance
with this Code. At the discretion of the Health Officer, modifications to the required isolation
distances, materials or size as stated in this Code may be applied if local conditions warrant and in
cases where dimensions, site development, features, or site suitability create a challenge to comply
with the requirements of this Code. In such event, modifications will be applied if the Health Officer
finds that the public health would not be jeopardized,

Section 9 - Sewage of Unknown Origin

9.1 Whenever the Health Officer shall determine that improperly treated sewage is flowing or is being
discharged from the outlet of any public or private drain into any public drainage system or surface
water body so as to create a public health hazard, water poliution or nuisance, he shall notify in
writing the person owning, leasing, or residing on such premises from which such sewage originates
to connect such sewage flow to a sewage disposal system which complies with these regulations. At
the end of such reasonable time as specified in the written notice, which has been served on the
owner, lessee, or resident, the Health Officer shall cause the outlet of such drain carrying sewage to be
plugged until such time as the source(s) of sewage have been eliminated or the sewerage system
complies with the provisions of this Code.

Section 11 — Injunction

11.1 Notwithstanding the existence and pursuit of any other remedy, the Health Officer may maintain
an action in the name of the County for injunction or other process against any person, firm, or
corporation to restrain or prevent the construction, enlatgement, or alteration of a sewage disposal
system without a permit therefore, or the operation or conduct of a residence of a habitable building,
structure or premise contrary to this regulation or the discharge of waste actually or potentially unsafe
or hazardous to public health, life, property values or the public welfare into public stream, county
drain, road ditch or upon the ground surface, creating a health hazard or nuisance.

STATE OF MICHIGAN - Responsibility
Public Act 451 of 1994 (NREPA) — Part 31 Water Resources

324.3103 Department of environmental quality; powers and duties generally; rules; other
actions,

1L DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Stormwater M Design R

for the Saginaw County Public
Works Commissioner, the following definitions are adopted: .

1. Allowable Discharge: The maximum flow rate that can be discharged from a site, as
calculated for design eriteria in accordance with this Stormwater Management Plan.

2. Base Flood Elevation: The 100-year flood elevation as d ined from Flood
Rate Maps (FIRMs) or the best available information.

3. Bankfull or Channel Protection: The purpose of bankfull or channe} protection criteria is to
prevent habitat degradation and erosion in urban streams caused by an increased frequency of
bankfull and sub bankfull stormwater flows. Channe} protection seeks to minimize
déwnstream channel enlargement and incision thatis a of urk
The post construction runoff rate and volume for a site must not exceed up to the 2-yr 24hr
storm event, In areas with C/D soils, the site should be maximized for opportunities to reduce
runoff (i.e., amended soils, harvesting, reuse) prior to allowing the option for extended
detention. HOWEVER,; in Saginaw County with its high seasonal water table and the effects
of Lake Huron’s water level during high water level cycles (WSELs above 579-ft IGLD-85)
these methods will need to be proven to work in HIGH WATER conditions with NO
ADVERSE effects to neighboring properties, For additional evaluation designers need to
determine historical situation on the sites, especiatly near the rivers. Also, use of soils
drainage data and groundyater tables from the soil's descriptions from the NRCS/USDA
soils data bases. Extended detention could focus on maximizing the voluine reduction onsite
and then detaining the remaining volume of the 2-yr 24-hr storm event with the release rate of
0.2 cfs per acre of the 1-yr 24-hr storm whichever is the lower rate Typical desiga is not to
exceed the pre- development rate and volume for all storms up to the 2-yr, 24-hr storm at the
stte At a mmxmum, pre- development is the last land use prior to the planned new

or fusions to this standard are the following; The Great
Lakes or connecting chansnels of the Great Lakes; Rouge River downstream of the Tuming
Basin; Saginaw River; Mona Lake and Muskegon Lake (Muskegon County); and Lake
Macatawa and Spring Lake (Ottawa County). Source: MDEQ WRD — M54 Program — Post
Construction Stormwater Runoff Controls Program, compliance assistance document, pg 12

4. Best Management Practices (BMPs}: Structural, vegetative, or ial practices used to
protect and improve the quality of sutface water and groundwater.

5. Bio-filtration: A system of native plants and amended soils with an underdrain that
goes to a detention area. The system is designed to receive stormwater runoff and clean it via
a filtration process and slow the runoff by letting it percolate through the amended soils to
reach an underdrain, which then conveys it to a detention area. The system is designed to
remove sediment and pollutants from stormwater before discharge.

6. Bio-swales: Drainage channels that divert runoff water from the storm sewer into a natural
area where native wetland plants help absorb and recycle it. Plants like grasses, rushes,
native plants, other water and drought tolerant flowers and bushes are commonly found in
bio-swales because they help to trap the water and force it to absorb, rather than flowing
through the bio-swale to the other side. It should be noted that these systems are generally
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dry most of the time and do not have standing water in them.

Conduit: Any channel, pipe, sewer, or culvert used for the conveyance or movement of
'water, whether open or closed,

Control Elevation: Contour lines and points of predetermined elevation used to denote a
detention storm area on a plat or site drawing.

Detention Facility: A facility constructed to provide detention storage.

Detention Storage: The or storage of in a storage basin, on
rooftops, in streets, parking lots schoo) yards, parks, open space, or other areas under
predetermined and controlled conditions, with the rate of drainage regulated to the allowable
discharge by appropriately installed devices, These detention storage areas shall not be
considered regulated wetlands as there is no connectivity other than man-made.

Developer/Owner Engineer: The engineering company formally designated by the
Developer/Owner to act as their Engineer,

Development: The construction of a building, parking lot, structure, etc. on a piece of land or
otherwise changing the use of a piece of land.

Discharge: The release or outflow of water from any source.

Drainage Area: The area from which stormwater runoff is conveyed to a single cutlet (i.e. a
watershed or catchment area).

Easement: A parcel of land on which the owner has granted rights-of-way to make surveys,
construct, maintain, operate, alter, replace, repair, and remave at any time that part of the
storm drainage system located within the easement. The landowner will not be allowed to
construct buildings or other structures on said easement without the written consent of the
easement grantee.

Emergency Overflow: A hydraulic control structure used to control the location and flow
direction of stormwater which is either in excess of the required detention storage or is due to
a failure in the site's system. The overflow shall be
directed to a public road right-of-way or to an availab) icipal storm drainage system,
This feature must be labeled on the design plans and an elevation provided. It is the design
engineer’s responsibility to assure no detrimental effects to neighboring parcels.

Emergency Overflow Elevation: The elevation at which overflow is activated.
This elevation is recommended to be at least one foot below finished floor elevation of
nearby buildings, even if on adjacent parcels. This elevation must be labeled on the design
plans.

Engineer: A civil engineer that is licensed to work in the state of Michigan or a person who
is working under the direct supervision of a civil engineer licensed to work in Michigan.

Engineered Drains: These are designed or engineered drains in Saginaw County which are in
extremely flat areas with little slope and discharge into the Saginaw River by pump stations,
they are linear detention areas and in periods of high-water elevations only flow when pumps

Peak Flow: The maximum rate of flow of stormwater runoff at a given location,

Percent Imperwvmness (IMP): The actual proposed percentage of impervious surface fora

or re-devel The IMP is used fo calculate the design discharge
(Qd) ‘The design discharge is used to determine storm sewer sizes and required detention
volumes.

Pervious Surface: A surface that allows infiltration or penetration of water. During
rainstorm events, a percentage of water will infiltrate into the surface with the remaining
stormwater running off. The percentage of runoff is dependent on the type, slope, percent
saturation, etc. of the surface. (i.e. lawns, farm fields, parks, wooded areas, golf courses,
etc.). Design personnel should attempt to maximize these surfaces as much as possible.

Rain Gardens: A depressed area of a size that is detennined by specified engineering
guidelines with amended soils and specific plants, shrubs, and trees that have a specific
volume to store stormwater runoff. The site can be underdrained to increase performance,
Use of Michigan’s Low Impact D Design Manual is recommended for design
purposes, focated at:  http://www.semcog.org/LowlmpactDevelopment.aspx

Rear lot drainage: A system d d to provide drainage in rear lot areas to
prevent water from ponding for extended periods of time. It must be noted that these systems
are not designed to convey stormwater in a rapid manner. These systems are NOT part of the
MS4 or a county drain, This system is a deliberately designed system which can provide
additional detention capabilities during severe runoff conditions, It is a system that in condos
or subdivisions is the responsibility of the | 's / condo iation to maintain, Itis
constructed for the benefit of homeowners to assist with property drainage. It is not the
Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner's responsibility. However, the township or
municipality may repair the system if necessary, to prevent damage to neighboring properties,
but all associated repair costs, plus a 25% administrative fee will be assessed to the owner or
homeowner / condo association.

Restrictor: A hydraulic control structure used to restrict the stormwater discharge from the
site to the allowable discharge of the site as determined by this plan. Simple restrictors such
as the orifice or metering line are outlined in this plan. For more complex restrictors a
stage/storage/discharge relation shall be required in the complete submittal and may alter the
storage requirements for the site.

Re-devel Altering, improvi ing or otherwise the use of an

ex:stmg developed property. Asite wtll be considered a re-development for this Stormwater
Design R ts when an area greater than or equal to 5% of the existing

developed portion of the site (i.e. roof, gravel, & paved surfaces) or, an area greater than

20,000 square feet is § d or d with roof, p , or any other impervious
surface.
NOTE: this p is lative. If re-devel is 2% one year and 3% at another

time, this wﬂl meet the 5% rule, Also, at times, less than 5% can create drainage problems,
and the County Engineer or designated designee may require additional detention or storage
based on historical or anecdotal problems on a site.

R ion Storage: The p or storage of in a storage basin, on
rooftops, in streets, parking lots, schoolyards, parks, open space, or other ateas under
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are activated. If the pumps are shut off the only flow may be as the linear detention is filling
or if the flap valve can allow water to flow out of the drain into the river during low water
levels. The following is a list of those drains in Saginaw County.

Table 1. Engineered Drains in Saginaw County

Drain Location Latitude Longitude
™ (W)
Bridgeport Drain  { Bridgeport Charter 43.356222 -83.880870
Township
Gage No. 1 Drain | Buena Vista 43.469995 -83.907335
Township
Saginaw City of Zilwaukee 43.493830 -83.906618

Zitwaukee Drain
Universal Drain City of Zilwaukee 43.468888 -83.917127

These drains are also considered waters of the state and direct discharges from new
development or re-development are not subject to the MS4 permit requirements and therefore
the post construction control requirements,

Excess Stormwater Runoff: The volume and rate of flow of stormwater discharged from a
drainage area, which is in excess of the allowable discharge.

Floodplain: The special flood hazard lands adjoining a the surface elevation of
which is lower than the Base Flood Elevation and is subject to periodic inundations
determined from Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs), or the best available information. A
parcel of land can be located within a floodplain without being shown on 2 FIRM map.

Impervious Factor (TF): The percentage of impervious surface specific to a site that the
existing storm drain outlet has been historically designed to convey. The IF is used to
calculate the allowable discharge from a site. Proposed developments or re-developments
will not be allowed to discharge stormwater at a rate, which is greater than the runoff that
would oceur from the site with the percentage of impervious surfaces defined by the
impervious factor. Refer to the County for established IF values, if applicable.

Impervious Surface: A surface that does not easily allow the infiltration or penetration of
water. During rai events, a large p ge of water will runoff. (Typically
considered as rooftops, paved walks, roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots, etc.)

I Impl ion of devel 1 or best

Low Inpact D
practices in a manner that £Y, or runoff .
quantity, and improves runoff. quallty Itis recommended that the Low Impact Develapment
Manual of Michigan be used as a design standard. This d is

from the following website: http//www.semcop.ore/lowlmpactDevelopment.aspx

NPDES: National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System. In 1987 the Clean Water Act
(CWA) was amended and required to implement a program that would address pollutants
being discharged to the nation’s waters. This now includes stormwater discharges into waters
of the nation/state. The Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner has an NPDES
stormwater discharge permit as required by the State of Michigan in compliance with the
CWA.

predetermined and led diti The only disct of from the
retention storage area is by ground infiltration, evaporation, ete. An emergency overflow
must be provided in the event the capacity of the retention facility is exceeded. These
retention storage areas shall not be considered regulated wetlands, as there is no connectivity
to surface waters,

Saginaw Area Storm Water Authority (SASWA): The SASWA was formed by the NPDES
Phase Il communities in Saginaw County. The Authority provides communities with
information on stormwater education, issues and regulations. The website address is:
WWW,.SaSWA.0TE

Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP): Also known as post construction controls, thisisa
site specific stormwater runoff drainage plan developed specifically for mdwu‘lual sxtes The
plan includes calcut of allowable and ! 1 rates, d

volume, restrictor sizing, size of pipes, or conveyance devices and a train of best management

practices to provide for discharge of clean stormwater runoff from a site.

Stormwater Runoff. The water from a rainstorm or snowmelt, which flows over the surface
of the ground or is collected in a drainage system,

Sub-Swrface Detention Storage: Detention storage that is provided in underground storage
facilities such as pipes, arch systems (Cultec, Stormiech, or similar), or tanks, Detention
storage within aggregate bedding will not be accepted unless geo fabric is used to keep
sediment out of the void spaces. Use of underground storage facilities warrants calculations
submitted for the system along with maintenance of the system included in the submitted
Operation and Maintenance Plan and signed agreement.

Ten-Year Design Storm: A precipitation event with a duration equat to the time of
concentration, having a ten percent probability of occurring in any given year or occurring
once every 10 years on average. This amounts to approximately 3.46 inches of rain in 24
hours, But, brief, intense storms of 10-year design can range from 1.71 inches in 1 hour to
3.05 inches in 12 hours. (Source

http://hdse.nws.noaa. g map_conthtml?bkmrk=mi)

Time of Concentration (Tg): The elapsed time for stormwater runoff to flow from the most
hydraulically distant point in a drainage area to the outlet or other predetermined point.

Engineer: The civil engineer or civil firm formally d d by the Saginaw
County Public Works C: issi or another des d designee to act as their

This person or firm must have qualifications suitable for review of stormwater management
plans and knowledgeable with NPDES Phase I in the State of Michi

Underdrain: Consists of perforated drainage tile with either slot cuts or holes along the lateral
haunch and covered with a sock or other means to prevent sediment from entering the pipe.
‘These drains are placed below the grade of detention basins that have flat slopes to assure
complete drainage of the detention basin or other structure. This will prevent the basin from
being continuously wet and allow for mowing of the basin or care of the structure. Also used
in underground storage systems to prevent ground water from taking up storage volumnes,
This will apply to basins that do not meet the 1% minimum slopes for the bottom of the basin.
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Upland Area: Land located in the upper portion of a watershed whose surface drainage flows
toward the area being considered for development.

Urbanization: The develog change, or impi of any parcel of land consisting of
one or more lots for ial, ial, industrial, insti ional, or public
utility purposes,

Urbanized Area: An area designated by the US Census Bureau, which has specific rules and
regulations concerning stormwater under the NPDES Phase I regulations. This regulated
area may require adherence to specific water quality requirements.

Waterconrse: Any natural or artificial stream, river, creek, channel, ditch, canal, conduit,
culvert, dmm, waterway, gully, ravine, street roadway, swale or wash in which water flows
in & definite direction, either i ly or il

Waters of the State: Means any of the following: The Great Lakes bordering the State and
their connecting waters, all inland lakes, rivers, streams, impoundments, open drains,
wetlands, and other surface bodies of water within the jurisdiction of the state, including
wetlands as defined by Part 303 of PA 451 of 1994, In Saginaw County, that would include
streams that have a defined bed and bank, and established flow, naturally established and
engineered county drains, and including but not limited to, the Saginaw River, Cass River,
Flint River, Bad River, Swan Creek, and the Tittabawassee River.

Water Quality volume: Is the volume of one (1) inch of rain from the area contributing storm
runoff. The water quality volume (aka first flush) of a rain event typically carries the most
poliutants to our storm sewer system and ultimately to our rivers, lakes and streams. This
water quality volume must be discharged over a 24-48-hour period of time to se(tle out
pollutant loads (minimum 1-inch diameter} or di: through an engi d

system or treatment which can meet water quality goals. The Low Impact Design Manual for
Michigan has an option to treat the first one inch of runoff from all impervious contributing
areas and 0.25 inches of runoff from all disturbed contributing pervious areas.

III. REVIEW PROCESS AND PROCEDURES
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A, Review Procedures

These Design Requi are applicable to all devel projects that disturb at least one or

more acres, including projects less than an acre that are a part of a larger common plan of

¥ into the appli

or sate and d *s MS4 subject to review and approval of the

Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner and over which the Saginaw County Public Works
Commissioner has jurisdiction or the local jurisdiction has adopted these requiremenls and have an
agreement with the Saginaw County Public \Voxks Comxmssmner to act as thaxr mwew agency.

These Design Requi are only for i , il or

platted subdivisions or infum complex develop or These Des1gn
Requirements are not to be applied to smgle family or duplex residential “structure or other multi-
family residences that are constructed on a parcel that is not part of a subdivision or condominium
project. Any questions regarding this should be referred to the Saginaw County Public Works

Commisstoner’s office for clarification. These Design Requi provide
for developments covered under the Stormwater b Design Requi provided,
is of the developer. Conceptual stormwater alternatives can be

discussed and po‘t’entml problems addressed prior to the design phase of the project. The goal of the
meeting is to eliminate potential problems up front and reduce the time and costs needed for the
design and review of the project.

‘This meeting will be required for all platted developments, condominium projects, and site

developments larger than five (3) acres. Itis

other site

projects have

this meeting or ata mlmmum correspond with the County’s Engineer, or other designee, by phone,

e-mail, and/or

ptual design all ives prior to submitting for format

review.

The Developer’s Engineer and/or SCPWC's Engineer, or other appointed designee, should have in

his/her p ion, or have an

of, the following information prior to attending the

pre-design meeting:

a.

‘The drainage district or area in which the proposed development is located and the outlet
dition for the proposed This i ion can be abtained from the Saginaw
County Public Works Commissioner.

Small location map showing where the site is situated.

Location and description of activities that may impact or be impacted by the proposed
development or re-development both on and off the site.

Acreage of the total site and an estimate of the area tributary to the proposed storm drainage
system, including offsite runoff. (Include detention, retention, etc.)

The size and location of the proposed storm drainage outlet and information on contributing
area,

Ifknown, a ptual layout of the p
re-development.

d storm drainage system for the development or

If required, the Owner/Developer and his’her technical Itant shall attend a land development
advisory commmee (LDAC) meenng The intention of this meeting is to obtain uniform direction
and
proprietors, developers, and consultants,

to ion of early construction and minimize financial losses to

1f the conceptual layout of the storm drainage system is agreed upon by the County Engineer or
other app gnee and the Developer’s Engi the Owner/Developer shall begin
completing plans and caleulations for formal review by the SCPWC or another appointed designee.

2. Formal Review

a.

‘The Owner/Developer or representative shall submit one (1) set of plans, one (1) setof

calcu]ahons, one (1) dlgnal copy of plans & it a copy of the pleted checklist, a
t Permit Application, an opernﬂon and maintenance plan
with signed mam(ennnce agreement for the M Plan, if applicable, and

any other supporting information for the site to the SCPWC’s Engineer, or other appomtcd
designee. The plans and calculations shall comply with the requirements of these Stormwater
Management Design Requirements. The checklist, design calculations, and design

however, that the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner reserves the right to deviate from the

specific design requirements set forth in the Design Requi; when, ona by basis,
such deviation is appropriate or necessary in order to accommodate the goals and purposes underlying
these Design Requil These req; and their impl are designed to promote

low impact designs such as bio-swales, rain gardens or other types of management of stormwater
runoff,

The Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner, or another appointed designee, shall review alt
plans for development of subdivisions, multiple family projects, commercial, and industrial sites for

compliance with the County's lations for as ded in the
Stormwater M: Design Req
The Saginaw County Public Works C issi or another appointed desi shall desi| a

review Engineer who will provide the services required to assure that all the requirements of the plan
and the ordinance are being met. The Engineer shall review the Developer’s plan and submit a report
to the Sagma\v County Public Works F issi showing the accep ar rejection of the

d site drai; plans, cal best practices for discharge of clean
stormyater and an operauon and maintenance place with signed agreement.

A site will be idered in li with the Runoff’ lation and Control
Ordinance when an approval of the site’s M Plan and post: i
stormwater runoff BMPs has been completed. The County will not accept runoff into drainage
systems located within the County’s Junsdlctwnal areas from new!y developed or re-developed sites
without it with the Design Reqr D pers or
Builders should not install the stormwater system unless they are working from a set of plans
that have been stamped as “APPROVED” with appmpmte 5|gnature from the Saginaw County
Public Works C: ’s Engi: or other i

To comply with the Sagmaw County Public Works C: issi s Stormwater M Design

the following process and deliver or mail all submittals to the Saginaw
County Public Works Commissioner, Saginaw County Courthouse at 111 South Michigan
Avenue, Saginaw, MI 48602:

A pl bmittal package for a review consists oft
»  Associated fee for stormwater review for the site
» A completed Stormwater Disct Permit Appli
» A completed Drainage Checklist
s One (1) set of Site Plans
*  One (1) set of calculations
*  One DIGITAL set of site plans and calculations, which may be emailed or delivered ona

digital storage device (e.g. flash drive, CD, DVD, etc).
+ If applicable, a signed Stormwater M. Operation and Mai Plan and
Agreement. This will include the mai and schedule for all 1

controls being implemented on the site (i.e. basins,
basin systems, catch basins, vegetated swale, restrictors, spill plan, etc.).

d storage di

1. Pre-Design Meeting/ Conceptual Review

This meeting, at a minimum, shall consist of the Developer’s Engineer and the County's Engineer,
or another appointed designee. The purpose of the meeting is to address the various stormwater
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requirements that will be used during the formal review process are established by these
) Design Requil

b. Submit deposit/fee for Stormwater Management Plan review and inspection to the Saginaw
County Public Works C issi Office in ds with the current fee schedule
established by the SCPWC’s Engineer.

¢. Formal review and approval will not begin until all items required for application have been
received. The proposed drainage system will be either approved or rejected with reason and
returned to the owner/ developer.

d. The SCPWC's Engil or other inted designee will review all plans, calculations, and

other information for comphance with the County’s design gmdelmes All materials will be

iewed for 1 Calculations will be checked. The muumum desi; gn calculations
and design requirements outlined in this d and additional supporting d
pertaining to required calculations will be used for review. The drainage plan checklist will be

reviewed,

e Furthexmore, the SCP\VC’ i or other appointed des will review how the

loper meets the perf dards and ensures long-term operation and maintenance
of BMPs based on the signed maintenance plans submitted with all construction pluns The
SCPWC's Engineer, or other appointed desi; wili review the submitted of cost~
effecnve structural and non-structural BMPs, if applicable, and the BMPs utilized on all new or

1 sites to minimize post jon impacts on waterquahty

f. A typical review will take approximately two (2) weeks to complete from the date the plan is
submitted in complete form,

If the proposed drainage system i5 rejected, one (1) set of revised plans and one (1) set of
revised calculations will need to be resubmitted; this can be done digitally via email. A
completed checklist will also have to be resubmitted along with any revtsmns to the operation
and maintenance plan with signed mai g , if

B. Plan Approval

Once the Stormwater Management Plan has been recommended for approval by the SCPWC's

or other app dation for approva] Tetter will be sent to the
Saginaw County Public Works Commlssmner only if the review is performed by another designee. A
copy of the letter will be forwarded to the Developer and Iocal govemmen(‘s planmng and bu)]dmg
departments. The approval Iener will include, if necessary, insp and
and any additi fc ion for the site. Additionall, S(ormwater
Discharge Pesmit Apphcanon wilt be provided to the Developer by the Sagmaw County Public -
Works Commissioner. It is the developer’siowner’s responsibility to assure the APPROVED plans
are provided to the contractor for construction. Any errors in resulting from the use of unapproved
plans is the financial responsibility of the owner or developer and must be corrected to reflect the
approved plans,

C. Changes to Plan after Approval

1. Any changes made to the approved plan after issuance of the stormwater permit shall require one
(1) set of plans submitted to the SCPWC’s, or other appointed designee, for review and approval.
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2. Upon receipt of this i fon, it will be d ined if additional information, such as
calculations, revised checklist, updates to the operation and maintenance plan and signed
agreement, if applicable, etc. will be required.

3. A building or occupancy permit will not be issued until all changes have been approved and the
SCPWC, or other appointed designee, has received all review fees.

D, Inspection/Letter of Certification Requirement

Inspection of storm sewer systems and/or ion facitities (includi ds d storage
detention basins/vaults) will be requmad on all development and re- developmem projects. The extent
of the inspection will depend on the size and type of the development or re-developiment,
Descriptions of these inspection requirements are outlined below. Specific inspection requirements,
including the of inspections, will be outlined on the approval letter. The fees associated
with this mspectmn are included in the original deposit.

1. Small Developments/ Re-developments (! acre or more or less than 5 acres or less than one
acre that is part of a larger comnion plan of development or sale) - A general site inspection of
the restrictor and the detention storage areas by the SCPWC’s Engineer, or other appointed
designee, will be required. This one-time inspection will be performed at the completion of the
project. Subsequent inspections may be required if deficiencies exist. The fees for inspections
will be established by the SCPWC.

A letter of certification will have to be leted by the developer’s engineer indicating the
stormwater drainage system and structural stormwater controls have been constructed as shown
on the app d Stormwater A Plans and all structural stormwater controls are

included in the operation and maintenance plan with signed agreement. A building or
occupancy penmit will not be issued until a letter of certification has been received by the
SCPWC's Engineer, or other appointed designee, and the final approved inspection of the site
has been completed by the SCPWC’s Engineer or designee.

N

Large Developments/ Re-developments (5 acres and greater) — Periodic site inspections of the
stonn sewer, outlet, restrictors, and detention storage areas may be required by the SCPWC’s
Engi or other appointed desi Specific items needing inspection prior to the completion
of the project will be identified in the approval letter (i.e. installation of restrictors, restricting
pipes, ete.). The SCPWC's Engi ar other appointed desi, shall be informed twenty-
four (24) hours in advance of the placement of items requiring inspection as outlined on the
storwater management permit.

A final inspection of the restrictor and the detention storage areas by the SCPWC’s Engineer, or
other appointed designee, will be required. This one-time inspection will be perforined at the
completion of the project. Subsequent inspections may be required if deficiencies exist.

A letter of certification wilt have to be completed by the developer’s engineer indicating the
stormwater drainage system and structural stormwater controls has been inspected during
construction, the drainage system was constructed as shown on the approved Stormwater
Management Plans and all structural stormwater controls are included in the operation and

maintenance plan with signed A building or ) permit will not be issued
until the SCPWC’s Engmcer, or other appumted desxgnee has received a letter of certification
and the SCPWC’s Engil ar ather app gnee, has pleted the final app d
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permission must be obtained from the Saginaw County Road Commission. A copy of this permit
must be provided to the SCPWC and local municipality.

C. Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) - There are several drains that are located along
M-52, M-13, M-46, M-81, M-47, M-58, M-83 and M-84 which fall under the jurisdiction of
MDOT. Any development that proposes to use these drains for a stormwater outiet must obtain a
permit from MDOT. As part of this permit, stormwater detention and water quality BMPs may
be required. A copy of this permit application is available at the website address located in
Appendlx B of this document. The Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner must

litionally review the devel and/or re-d as well for approval. The Developer
must provide the SCPWC and local icipality a copy of the app: § MDOT permit once it
has been received.

D. Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) - The EGLE regulates
any work done within the 100-year floodplain, wetland, and/or any inland lakes or streams. A
copy of the EGLE /USACE Joint Permit application for a site to discharge to waters of the State
of Michigan or within 500 feet of inland Iakes or streams, as well as wetlands, is provided from a
website address that can be found in Appendix B. These EGLE Joint Permit Applications must
be completed and submitted on the EGLE’s MiWaters online database system. A copy of this
permit must be posted on the construction site and a copy should be provided to the SCPWC if it
involves their drainage system and the local municipality.

Each of the agencles llsted previously have thexr own design criteria for reviewing proposed

and d P . These criteria are not always consistent
with the stonnwater requirements of the County as a whole. For example, the MDOT is concerned
about the proper drainage of the roadway and sub-base of the road; a permit may be obtained to
discharge a large quantity of water to a road side drain not causing a problem now, but may not leave
any additional stormwater outlet capacity for future devc!opmen( upstream. For these reasons, itis very
|mponan! that the SCPWC’s Engi or other i review all p

q

and drainage imp: to assure that the prop is
consistent with the future plans of the County or local municipality.

V. DESIGN CALCULATIONS
A. Allowable Discharge Rate (Qa) and 10-Year Design Discharge (Qai0)

" The NPDES Phase II program requires that the post-construction runoff rate and volume of
discharges do not exceed the pre-development rate and volume for all smrms up to the 2-year, 24-

hour storm for the site. The peak stormwater disc} from any prop or re-
development as required in these Design Requi shall be icted to an aftowable disch
{Q.). The allowable disch from the proposed area of devel or P cannot

exceed the fated disch from the proposed site based on methods listed within the SCPWC’s

excel calculation spreadsheets. The method resulting in the lowest allowable discharge from the site

shall be used in d ining the required detention. If it is determined the existing runoff from the

dmmage district is at or exceeding the capacity of the downstream storm sewer or drain the proposed
or lop will, at a mini have to be restricted to existing conditions.

The storm water discharge rate from any proposed devel or site in Saginaw

County discharging to a county drain under jurisdiction of the SCPWC shall be restricted to an
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inspection of the site.

3. Any Single anilg, ’l‘\vo anily, or Mnltl-Famllg Development Projects (Plats) — Weekly,

bi-weekly, or i of the storm sewer and
drainage system fon for plaﬁad Lo s SPEEY

or The
municipality / township may require more mspecuon time. ’I}us inspection shall be performed
by the SCPWC’s Engineer, or other appointed designee. Daily inspection reports shall be
completed for all days on which construction of the stormwater drainage system and structural
stormwater controls occurs, These dmly mspecuan reports do not have to be submitted to the
SCPWC’s Engi or other appo However, they should be on file with the
design engineer and made available upon request.

A final inspection of the best practices, structural conttols, restrictor and the
detention storage areas by the SCPWC’s Engil or other d desi; will be required.
This one-time inspection will be performed at the letion of the project. Subseq:
inspections may be required if deficiencies exist.

A letter of certification will have to be completed by the developer’s engineer indicating the
stormwater dmmagc system and structural stormwater controls have been constructed as shown
on the Plans, A bmldmg or ocoupancy permit will not be
issued unul the SCPWC's Engii or other appo: i has received a Jetter of
certification and the SCPWC’s Engi or other inted d has leted the final

approved inspection of the site.
E. Fee Schedule

The fee schedule for reviewing storm drainage submittals and performing inspections of drainage
system construction shall conform to the current fee structure established by the Saginaw County
Public Works Commissioner. This fee schedule will be reviewed on an annual basis and fees may be
adjusted if deemed necessary. Communities adopting these design standards may set up their own fee
schedule to cover their costs as necessary and should be reviewed annually.

The fee schedule for reviewing storm drainage submittals and performing inspection of drainage
system construction can be found in Appendix A.

IV. STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEMS WITHIN SAGINAW COUNTY

Within Saginaw County there are drains that fall under several different agencies jurisdiction. These
include the following:

A. Bstablished County Drains - Work done directly on or connected to these drains falls under the
jurisdiction of the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner, Preliminary and final plat
approval requlres asignature and review from the Public Works Commissioner. However, many
site plan devel d j etc, that impact ished county drains are not
submitted for review to the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner, but are reviewed at the
township or municipal level.

B,

County Roadside Drains - There are many drains that fali under the jurisdiction of the Saginaw
County Road Commission. When a crossing is installed over a county roadside drain, a permit or
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allowable discharge rate (Qa). The allowable discharge required by Unit Allowable Discharge (qa) as
provided herein,

Calculate the atlowable discharge (Qa) in cubic feet per second (cfs):

Q. = (qa)(Asix)

a - Allowable Discharge Rate (cfs).

qa = 0.2 cfs/acre is the Unit Allowable Discharge rate!
A - Proposed site area or contributing area in acres

The site’s p\pc stzcs, and emergency overflow must be able to convey the 10-year storm event (Quio}
under prop This disc? can be d ined using the rational or modified rational
method.

Q=) x(Dx(A)

Q is the runoff rate in cubic feet per second (cfs).
C is the coefficient of runoff.
Tio is the intensity of rainfall in inches per hour (in. / hr.).
A is the contributing area of the site in acres (acres).

Please refer to the excel spreadsheet for the required desngn ca]culat\ons that must be submitted for
review to the Saginaw County Public Works Ct i d This is

st the following websites: hitp:/www.sagi com/Pubhc\Vorks/Defaul( aspx (or contact the
SCPWC’s Engineer or app sointed designee for the excel spreadsheet) and http://wwiy.saswa.org,

'NOTE: this rate is more restrictive than the 2yr-24hr discharge rate for a 1 acre parcel HSG of C and
Open Space —RCN 74 (0.58 cfs).

B, Stormwater Detention Requirements

The stormwater detention storage required for a site is to be calculated using the Saginaw County
Public Works C issioner’s excel spreadsheet; this can be obtained at the following websites:
httpa/fwwy saginawcounty. com/PublicWorks/Defanlt.aspx
hitp:/iwww.saswa.org

In order to meet the quality disct quil of Phase Il of Sect\on 10 of the Clean
Water Act and to meet the Envi [ P ion Agency's lines, designs must
provide for ‘This can be lished by impl ion of one of the
following measures:

1. On systems that utilize a stormwater i l;asin, a sedi forebay ion area or

engineered filtration can be utilized within the detention facility. This forebay area, if required,
may be in addition to the stormwater 10-yr design detention requirements equal of 1-inch of
runoff from the contributing area of the site (see the calculation spreadsheet). The forebay must
be designed to remove a minimurn 80% of total suspended solids.
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2. Rain gardens or an equivalent low impact design approach can be utilized that provides a soif or

media filter for the water prior to entering the storm drainage system or storm detention system.
The utilization of this type of treatment measure does not require the additional capture of 1-inch
of runoff from contributing surfaces above the detention requirement for the site.

3. Mechanical devices d d to remave ded solids and other debris,
Mechanical treatment devices include specially designed treatment units that will remove 80%
of the total suspended solids for a 2-year 24-hour storm event from the site’s contributing area.

Discharge Restrictor Requirements

Restrictors are required to regulate the disct of to the atl rate

established for a site. The circular in-line restrictor is sized based on the orifice formula.

a= 9
S oerea A A0S
0.62*(64.4*Ah)
a = areaof orifice (sq. f.)
Ah = head differential from center of orifice to Hydmulic Grade Line of
detention pond at maximum capacity, (ft.).

Water Quality Requirentents
All site development projects are required to detain the water quatity volume, which is defined as 1-
inch of runoff over the area contributing storn runoff (A) for new development or re-development,
Cyy is the weighted runoff coefficient for the site. Use Table 1, Appendix D to calculate this
variable, This volume will be calculated as:

3630 x A x Co = WQ volume

‘This volume must be held for more than 18 hours but not more than 24 hours. The average
allowable release rate for runoff resulting from 1.0 inch of rain in 24 hours is calculated as follows:

2 Volume \4
J =
(24hr) + (36005ec/1 hour) 86,400s¢c

Please refer to the excel spreadsheet for the required deslgn {culations that must be submitted for
review to the Saginaw County Public Works C i inted desi| This is
ilable at the following ites: http//www. sagma\vcoungy com/PublicWorksDefault, aspx (or
contact the SCPWC’s Engineer or appointed designee for the excel spreadsheet) and
hitp:/Awww.saswa.ore.
Channel Protection Criteria (Discuss with SCPWC Engineer if site needs this requirentent)

The purpose of bankfull or channel protection criteria is to prevent habitat degradation and erosion
in streams caused by an increased frequency of bankfull and sub-bankfull stormwater flows.
Channel p ion seeks to mind channel and incision that is a

of urbanization. Typical design is not to exceed the pre-development rate and
volume for alt storms up to the 2-yr, 24 hr storm at Lhc site. Ata minimum, pre-development is the
last land use prior to the planned new d 1 Waterbodies excluded to
this channel protection performance standard are the followmg, Sagmaw River, based on the

shall be located in easements dedicated to the public, and shall be subject to continual
inspection during the construction period.

h. Proposed storm sewer enclosures must be designed so they will not adversely :mpac( any
adjacent prop ord and must be designed to the impervious factors of
the lands based upon zomng, not necessarily existing conditions.

"

i.  Soil erosion and control must be impl d per Part 91 of Public
Act 451 of 1994 (NREPA). SESC Part 91 permits are issued by the Saginaw County Public
Works Commissioner (CEA).

j.  The use of infiltration BMPs wnll not be impl d for new develop or
projects in areas of soil or g ination. When ing these conditions,
the SCPWC or municipality will contact and coordinate with local EGLE staff. The local
EGLE must be made aware of the contamination. Any storm pipes used in these areas must
have joints which prevent seepage of groundwater into the storm system.

. Best Management Practices will be implemented to address the associated pollutants in
potential hot spots as part of meehng the water quality treatment and channel protection
dards for new 1 projects. These hot spots include areas with
the potentia! for signifi feant pollutan( loadmg such as gas stations, commercial vehicle
maintenance and repair, auto recyclers, recycling centers, and scrap yards, whether existing
currently or throughout the duration of the five year permit. Hot spots also include areas with
the potential for contaminating public water supply intakes.

2. Storm Sewer Piping Requirements
a. Proposed storm sewers shall be designed to have capacity to pass the 10-year design storm
runoff rate (Qaro). Please refer to the Design Calcutations section of this document along with
the additional supporting documents pertaining to calculation requirements.

b. Class il or IV concrete pipe must be used for the following:

i, Storm Sewers within township, county, and state right-of-way
ii. Combined sewers (Combined sewers must have premium joints)

¢. Provide 2-ft Minimum cover with minimum $-ft cover in M.D.O.T. R.O.W.

d. Provide 18-inch Vertical separation between all other utilities including, sanitary sewers and
water mains. Provide 10-R Horizontal separation from other utilities, such as sanitary.

e. A minimum of 4-inch of sand bedding is required beneath the pipe and a minimum of 6-inch of
sand backfill is required above the pipe.

f. Manhole/catch basin shall be p]uced at a maximum distance of 300-ft from any other
h basin for access/ purp

g. Provide a sump discharge outlet for each individual property/lot in all developments. Sump
leads shall not be connected to rear lot drainage systems unless they are designed to handle the
flow and back flow valves are placed. This outlet shall be a catch basin (minimum 3-ft.
diameter) or a storm sewer lead extended to the Right-of-Way/Property line of each lot

document sited in the definitions section. Contact the Saginaw County Public Works

Commissioner’s Engineer upon determination of bankfull flood requirements when dealing with
Saginaw County drains. Drains which may be excluded are specifically engineered drains which
discharge to the Saginaw River via pump stations, e.g. Universal, Gage, Saginaw Zilwaukes, etc,

see Engineered Drains in definition section.)

Please refer to the excel spreadsheet for the required desxgn calculalmns that must be submxtted for
review to the Sagmaw County Pubhc Works C i This is

com/Pubhc\Vorks/Default aspx (or

contact the SCPWC’s Engmeer or

ilable at the foll t : http://wy i
d designee for the excel spreadsheet) and

hitp:/fwwiy.saswa.org,

V1. DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

A. Requirements
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1.

Ly

. There shall be no d

General Requirements

Stormwater d for any new fon devel devel or
land use change occurring within Sagmaw County wnll be delcm\med accoxdmg to thcse

esign req PP ¥
to caloulation requirements,

The peak runoff rate during a 10-year storm event from a developed or improved site shall not
exceed the allowable discharge rate (Q.). This rate is determined as outlined i in the design
lations section and additional supporting d ining to calcul

requirements,

1 effect on the floodway or the floodplain el during a 10-
year design storm up or do of the proposed devel area as a result of the
proposed development.

ing ions must be submitted with the proposed stormwater drainage system
plans. The calculations shall follow the procedures outtined in this document and the additional
supporting documents pertaining to calculation requirements.

Roof drains may be connected to a storm sewer system if the flow through the outlet to the
SCPWC system is properly restricted. Unrestricted runoff from a roof drain directed off of the
property onto an adjacent parcel will not be accepted; there are no exemptions.

The developer and/or Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner shall make a determination
as to whether any or all of the facilities proposed are to become private or part of the Saginaw
County Drainage system or part of any other regulating agencies storm sewer system.

. 'The SCPWC Engineer shall in the case of a proposed subdivision, make a determination as to

those control elevations that shall be entered on the final plat or make a determmatwn asto the
necessity for deed restrictions on any p far lot in said subdivisi the
preservation of mandatory drainage facilities. Where a non-subdivided parcel of land is
proposed for development, the SCPWC Engineer shall make a determination as to the need for
covenants to maintain responsibility for mandatory drainage facilities. All the said facilities

{minimum 6-inch diameter).

Place a catch basin (minimum 3-ft diameter) between each pair of driveways, if curb and gutter,
driveway culverts, and/or valley shaped ditches are not proposed.

Minimum pipe grades must be such to produce minimum scouring velocity of 2.5 ft. /sec when
pipe is flowing full without surcharging.

Concrete pipe (C-76-111, 1V) shall have fabric wrapped joints.

. For private storm sewer systems Plastic pipe may be used. This plastic pipe shall be either

smooth walled HDPE or SDR 35 P.V.C. Pipe. If pipe is pecforated a manufacturer’s “Sock”
shall be used over the pipe.

Private storm systems in areas with i d soils or gr
prevent seepage into the storm system.

must have joints which

m. Minimun pipe diameter for cafch basin leads is 10-inch diameter.

3.

a.

b.

. Minimum pipe size for sewer main is 12-inch diameter.

‘When two pipes or more of different sizes come into a structure, the 8/10th flow lines shall
match when possible.

Catch basins will have a minimum sump depth of 18-inch. It should be noted that some new
systems using “end of pipe” BMPs may require systems with no sumps. This type of system
requires less maintenance of each individual catch basin, but requires routine maintenance of
the BMP.

Detention Requirements

Ifa separate lot or parcel is used for daten(mn or retention, the outer limits shall be delineated
on the Exhibit B drawings of a C 1 or on the Final Plat.

i. Condominium Developments - Detention or Retention areas shall be designated as general
common areas,

ii. Platted Dx 7P - Detention or areas shall be d d as a stormwater

detention/retention area. (See State Requirements)

Requirements for all Detention / Retention Areas

i. Proposed stormwater detention facilities shall be designed to detain the 10-year design storm
runoff volume from the entire contributing area in excess of the allowable discharge from the
site (See Design Caleulations, Section V along with additional supporting documents
pertaining to design calculation requirements).

ii. The maximum design storage elevation in a detention area must be a minimum of one (1)
foot below the lowest ground elevation adjacent to the detention area.




il

. The required volume in a detention basin must be achxeved in the basin. At no time \Vl“

velumes of stormwater stored in Y pipes be dered as part of the d
volume.
iv. In areas of high water table, the detemmn volume must be calculated from the ground water
levation to the one foot freeb
The design i storage ion in a d area must not exceed a coordinate Survey, fill out

forms, develop plan for survey, mapping
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Y.

AL

vi

vi.

depth of mne (9) inches above any paved surfaced in non-residentia! developments. In
the i ponding elevation in the ion pond shall not

exceed the lowest rim elevation in the development.

If parking lot detention is used the owner or lessee must be aware of this detention and sign a
letter of understanding that the parking lot will flood during design storms and be flooded for
periods of time.

ii. If common ateas such as play lands, recreational fields, school yards are used for shallow

detention areas the owner or home owner or property owner associations must be made aware
of this storage area. This notification will prevent the owners from thinking something is
wrong with the drainage system as it detains stormwater.

ii. The design i storage ion ina d
below the finish floor elevation of the prop

area must be {ly one (1) foot
d structure(s) or existing facilities.

ix. Anemergency overflow shall be provided at the detention basin to insure the maximum

ponding elevation does not exceed the depths outlined in items iv, v, and vii above. This
overflow shall be able to allow drainage from the site in the event the 10-year storm is
exceeded, or the restricted outlet is obstructed. The emergency overflow elevation shall be
labeled and its location clearly shown on the plan set. The maximum elevation of the
emergency overflow is one (1) foot below the sur ding top of ion of the

basin,

NOTE: Sites with no acceptable emergency overflow outlet available MUST hold the

k

fii.

L

m.

xi.

xif.

volume of two (2) 100-year design storm events. Please contact the SCPWC and/or
designee if site needs this requirement,

Designs of d facilities shall i safety features, particularly at inlets, outlets,
on steep slopes, and at any attractive nuisances. These features may include, but not be
limited to, landscaping, fencing, handrails, lighting, steps, grills, signs, and other protective or
warning devices so as to restrict access as required by the SCPWC.

Side slopes and the bottom of detention basins must receive a minimum of 3 inches of
topsoil, and seeded. Side slopes should have erosion control blankets placed to prevent
erosion and establish vegetation faster.

The side slopes and bottom of the basins shall be shaped with maximum stopes of 1 vertical
to 4 horizontal to allow mowing of these surfaces. NOTE: 1 vertical to 6 horizontal is
preferable.

Rear lot catch basins shall have a minimum diameter of 2 feet. Plastic structures may be used
for rear lot drainage systems. Concrete structures are required for storm sewer systems. The
catch basins shall be placed at a maximum distance of 300 feet from any other structure. A
structure is required for any bends, turns, or dead ends. Each lot shall have access to a
structure; these structures may be shared.

If pipe is perforated, a manufacturer's “Sock” may be used over the pipe but is not required,

A 20-foot easement will be required for all rear Iot drainage systems. This easement shounld be
centered along lot lines to allow for a 10-foot easement along adjacent lots and to provide
access to the rear lot drainage system from either adjacent property owners. Said easements
shall be written as to permit neighboring property and/or condominium owners to maintain the
rear lot drainage system as it may affect their property.

Rear lot drainage shall be large enough to convey all contributing area to the rear lot system,
including off site drainage if it is not diverted around the development.

Existing rear lot drainage systems abutting a proposed development may be used for the new
development provided:

The existing rear lot drainage system has the capacity to convey stormwater runoff from the
proposed rear lot drainage areas.

A signed agreement i is obtamed from property owners located within the existing subdivision
attowing the p ion’s rear lot runoff to pass through their existing
system,

Phased developments owned by the same proprietor may utilize proposed rear lot drainage fora
current development phase on future phases of the development provided:

Covenants shall be recorded into the deeds of the properly owners affected in the current
phase allowing for future phases of the development to drain into the current phase’s rear fot
drainage system.

f covenants are not made as outlined above, future phases will require separate rear lot
drainage systems or agreements from the current land-owners allowing for the use of their
rear lot drainage system.

The rear lot drainage system shall be constructed to convey rear lot drainage from both the
existing and proposed rear lot drainage areas.

. Easements shall be provided allowing for maintenance by both abutting landowners in
current and proposed phases of development.

Rear lot drainage shall be shown on the preliminary plat (subdivisions) or site plan
{condominiums).

All rear lot drains shall connect to an approved stormwater drainage system.
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xiii. Detention basins with bottom slopes less than 1% shall be underdrained.

xiv. Detention basins shall be constructed with the top of banks a minimum of 5 feet from any
pedestrian watkway (i.e. public and private sidewalks/ bike paths).

xv. If a “Wet” detention pond is proposed, the bottom of the pond shali be a minimum of 5 feet
below the proposed pond’s outlet elevation. Item x. shall not apply to “Wet” detention
facilities, but local ordinances may have other requirements for “ponds” which must be met.
Design must consider groundwater elevation and provide this elevation for the review.

xvi. Use of underground storage facilities requires specific design calculations and an Operation
& Maintenance Plan and signed agreement.

4. Rear Lot Drainage Requirements

a. NOTE: Rear lot drainage systerus are not owned or mamtamed by the townshlp(s) or the
county; they are the sole r bility of the subdivision’s tion or
condo association. These systems are NOT part of a county or municipal storm system. There
are easements in place are to assure these systems can be accessed when repairs are necessary.
After any maintenance is completed in these drainage easements it is the responsibility of the
person doing the maintenance to return the site to its previous existing condition.

b. Minimum rear lot tile drain sizes and slopes have been determined assuming ponding will ocour
in rear yards for a duration 4 times the duration of a given 10-year design storm event. Thls
time may range from 4 to 24 hours & on drainage conditi The foll g
pipe sizes and slopes apply:

i.  Rear lot tile drains with contributing drainage areas up to 2 acres will have a minimum
diameter of 6 inches and a minimum slope of 0.5 %.

ii. Rear lot tile drains with contributing drainage areas greater than 2 and less than 3 acres shall
have a minimum diameter of 8 inches and a minimum slope of 0.4%.

iii. Rear lot tile drains with contributing drainage areas greater than 3 and less than 4 acres shall
have a minimum diameter of 10 inches and a minimum slope of 0.32%.

¢ Rear lot tile drains with a contributing area greater than 4 acres shall be considered main line
storm sewer and shall be designed g to cor ing storm sewer req i (See
the Design Calculations Section of these qui along with additi i
documents pertaining to design ). Calevlations shail be submitted to
verify that rear lot drains have the capacity to pass the 10-year design storm event. Plastic pipe
is acceptable for rear lot drainage systems draining more than 4 acres provided it is installed in
fandscaped/ lawn areas.

d. Rear lot tile drains cannot connect to road underdrains.

e. Rear lot drainage tiles shall have a minimum cover of 2 feet. A minimum of 4 inches of sand

bedding is required beneath the pipe and a minimum of 6 inches of sand backfill is required
above the pipe.

B. General Compliance Guidelines

The followi idelines are v

are

N

2.

ded but are nota of this plan. These guidelines

q

g
provided for reference.
The minimum surface slopes for overland drainage are as follows:

4. For bituminous paved surfaces, 1%.

b. For concrete paved surfaces, 0.5%.

c. For concrete curb and gutter, 0.32%.

d. For drainage swales and valley shaped ditches, 0.5%.

e. For rear lot drainage swales and valley shaped ditches, 0.5%.
f. Landscape grading, 2%.

The maximum surface slopes for overland drainage are as follows:

a. For bituminous, concrete paved surfaces, 5%.

b. For concrete curb and gutter, 5%.

¢. For drainage swales and valley shaped ditches, 5%.

d. For rear lot drainage swales and valley shaped ditches, 5%.

e. Drainage swales and valley shaped ditches shall have maximum side slopes of 3 horizontal to
1 vertical,

f. Landscape grading, 4 horizontal to 1 vertical.

C. Variances from Requirements

The Saginaw County Public Works C: isst may waive allowat and
or detention requirements. All variances will be reviewed under the appeal procedmes established in

the stormwater management design requirements, Variances from these requirements shail require
the approval of the County whose actions shall be conditioned upon the following:

1. A petition shall be submitted describing in detail the le for the proposed design changes
including hydraufic and or hydrologi putati

2. Special circumstances or conditions exist which will affect the property under consideration
such that strict with the provisions of the 1 permit would
deprive the applicant of the reasonablé use of their land.

3. A variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right of the
proprietor.

4. Granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or
injurious to other property in the territory in which said property is located. Nor, will there be a
violation of any local ordinances.

5. An affirmative recommendation must be received from the SCPWC Engineer supporting such

variance. In the event that the SCPWC Engineer does not submit an affirmative
d a dation shall be received from the County.




D. Stormwater M t System Mai Plans for Subdivisions/ Condomini

1. Signed maintenance plans will be submitted with all construction plans and included in the
subdl\'\sxon agreement or master deed d of all busil ions, and site
These mai plans are the ibility of the private owner or
home/condo owners association. These plans are not to be construed as a responsibility of the
county, city, village or township, nor will the county, city, village, or township be
responsible for maintenance of private systems. The plans may include, but not limited to, the
following:

a. A projected annual maintenance budget itemized by task (for homeowners/condo associations
only).

b. Proposed to finance mai (for} fcond iations only).

. A copy of the final approved drainage plan for the development that delineates the facilities and
all easements, maintenance access, and buffer areas.

d. A listing of appropriate tasks defined for each component of the system, and a schedule for
their implementation. The listing may include, but not limited to, the following:

=

Long-term operation and maintenance of alt structural and vegetative BMPs installed and
implemented to meet the performance standards,

2,

=

Maintenance of facilities such as pipes, channels, outflow control structures, infiltration
devices, emergency overflows, detention basins, BMPs, and other structures.

3) Debris and sediment removal from catch basins, channels, and basins.

&

4

=

Dredging operations for both channels and basins to remove sediment accumulation.
Stormwater system maintenance plans shall require that sediment be removed when depth
equal to 50% of a pond’s forebay or 12" of sediment accumulates, whichever is fess.

e. Identification of the party responsible for performing each of the various maintenance activities
described. This will be recorded with final approved plans and plats.

f. A detailed iption of the procedure for both p: and carrective maintenance
ivities. P i i shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1) Periodic i il dj and repl

and iated activities.

2) Record keeping of operations, inspect p

g. Provision for the routine and non-routine inspection of all components within the system
described:

n SCPWC d: regu]arly heduled wet-weather inspections of structural el
ion for sedi ion in ion basins (or underground storage

basmslvaulls) shall be conducted annually, with as-built plans in-hand for comparison. These
inspections should be performed by a P | Engineer ing to the ibl

37

E. Evaluation of Cost— Effective structural and non-structural Best Management Practices
(BMPs)

1. To meet Saginaw County’s NPDES Phase I1 y i for , the SCPWC
may request, and the developer must supply, the followmg

a. Either preliminary or actual constructed cost of best management practices.

b. Projected or actual mai: costs of best p

c. A mai from the developer, owner, or operator responsible for the long-term
maintenance of structural and vegetative BMPs installed and implemented to meet the water
quality performance standards. Please see an example of an operation & maintenance plan and
agreement for various sites in Appendix C,

d. Any other pertinent information deemed necessary to meet NPDES Phase Il regulations. .

2. Hthe requested information is not provided in a timely manner the final occupancy permit will be
held until compliance is attained and the information received in the requested format.

3. The information requested will be in a concise formatted manner,
¥. BMPs To Minimize Post Construction Impacts On Water Quality

1. Saginaw County recommends that BMPs be utilized on all new or re-development sites to
improve stormwater runoff quality in the post construction phase.

2. Saginaw County recommends BMPs to be designed on a site-specific basis to reduce post-
development total suspended solids (TSS) loadings by 80 percent or achieve a discharge
concentration of TSS not to exceed 80 milligrams per liter.

3. The BMPs used on a site must be reviewed and approved by the SCPWC Engineer, or other
appointed designee, during the site plan review and approval process.

4. The site Designer, Engineer, or Architect must supply a list of BMPs being used on a site that
will improve water quality of the runoff being discharged from a site for the review process.

VIL. STORM SYSTEM OPERATION & MAINTENANCE PLANS

A. Operation & Maintenance Plans (O & M)

Operation and mail plans will be loped for new site develop and/or re-

developments of 1 acre or more in aren, including projects less than an acre that are a part of a
larger common plan of developmmt or sale and discharge into the applicant’s MS»L These

plans must address the impl d best practices on the site. Additi , this plan
must address the long term operation and mmn\enunce of all structural and vegetative BMPs instalied
and impk d to meet per The property owner / developer is the sole

responsible party for the BMPs on the sxte These plans are not to be construed as a responsibility
of the County, City, Village or Township, nor will the County, City, Village, or Township be
responsible for maintenance of private systems.
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agency or owner.

2) keeping inspections, such as checking for trash removal, should take place at least
twice annually.

3) E i ions shall be completed on an ded basis. Upon identification of
problems a professwnal engineer, with experience in stormwater systerns, shall be contacted
for inspection.

h. A description of ongoing land i is ded to be included in the plan.

Landscaping shall consist of low mamtenance, regionally native species whenever possible.
The propnetor will monitor the viability of plantings for at least two {2) years after
and rep]ace i 85 needed. Subseq ing shall be the
ibitity of the land , d iati inted designee (suchas a
landscaping company, lawn care pmvnder, etc.). The Sagmnw County Public Works
Commissioner, nor the local government (e.g. city, village, township), is not responsible
for landscape maintenance.

2. Provision for the mai of g buffers by land 1
conservation groups, or public agencies. Buffers must be mspected annually for evidence of
erosion or concentrated flows through or around the buffer.

3. Property deed restrictions or master deed d will specify the time frame for
action to address needed mai; facilities. These restrictions or
documents will also specify that, should the private entity fail to act within this time frame, the
local or county govemmental ennty may take action against the property owners within the

ision or in d with Act 288 of the Public Acts of 1967,

a. Routine maintenance of stormwater management facilities will be completed per the schedule
submitted with the construction plans or within 15 days of receipt of written notification by the
local or county governmental entity that action is required, unless other acceptable
arrangements are made with the supervising governmental entity.

b. E i will be completed within 36 houts of written notification unless a
threat to public health, safety and welfare requires immediate action.

4, The proprietor may fulfill the to ensure that a g 1 entity will be responsible
for drainage system maintenance by establishing a county drain drainage district, or any other
similar mechamsm approved by the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner, to provide for
the p of stormwater facilities and necessary funding.

5. If a County Drain is not established, the proprietor will submit evxdence of alegally bmdmg

agreement with another g ] agency who resp for gh

6. A legally binding maintenance agreement for subdivisions or condominium developments will be
executed before final project approval is granted. The agreement shall be included in the property
deed restrictions or condominium master deed documents so that it is binding on all subsequent
property owners.

These plans must be ped to be in perpetuity and, in situations of private or
development, must be transferred to the new owner. It is the owner’s responsibility to transfer the
document and make the new owners aware of the conditions of the O & M Plan. The owners must
provide the transfer information to the Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner about the
changc in owner responsibility wnhm five (5) business days of the transfer, (In the case of

divisions, platted or cond levelog the O & M Plans will be in the form of deed
restrictions,)

O & M Plans must have a provision in them to allow representatives from the local municipality to
enter the property to inspect structural and vegetative BMPs which are not being maintained as stated
inthe O & M Plan. If the O & M plan is not being maintained to meet minimal performance
requirements described in the Operation and Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Drainage Systems,
Structural and Vegetative Best Management Practices (BMPs) document in the Appendix Section,
then the focal municipality has the option to obtain a contractor fo complete the work and charge the
owner / developer for costs incurred plus a 25% surcharge for administrative fees,

Additionally, the property owner / developer will provide an email address of the designated person
responsible for assuring the O & M Plan is implemented. This email address must be updated when
changed or when a new person assumes the maintenance responsibility position. This responsible
party must annuaily inform the local municipality, if they have an NPDES MS4 Permit, that the O &
M Plan has been carried out as described in the plan. All reporis on this performance objective must
be received by the local NPDES MS4 municipal permit holder or their designee (SASWA) on or
before December 31* of each year. Failure to report will be construed as non-compliance with the
design requirements, An email will be sent to the owner / developer for follow up response to
determine compliance. No answer to this email within five (5) business days will result in further
administrative action up to and including fines.

Please refer to Appendnx C for the Long Term Mai Planand A D that
needs to be completed and itted for d or re-di P of all regular commercial,
industrial and non-residential developments that disturb at least one (1) or more acres, including,
projects less than an acre that are part of a larger common plan of development or sale, are located
within the areas deﬂg;nated by US Census as Urbanized Areas (see map in Appendix A) and require
the op and of drainage systems and/or structural and vegetative best
management practices,




APPENDIX A
L SAGINAW COUNTY STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT APPLICATION
FORM
2. DESIGN CALCULATIONS
3. DRAINAGE PLAN CHECKLIST
4. TYPICAL INSPECTION REPORT FORM

5. NPDES SOIL EROSION SEDIMENT CONTROL PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION
SITES

6. FINAL INSPECTION FORM
7 2010 CENSUS DATA’S URBANIZED AREA MAPS
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DRAINAGE PLAN CHECKLIST

In order for the Owner, Developer, or Builder to be in compliance with these guidelines he/she shall for
review by the SCPWC Engineer or designee, two complete sets of the site drainage and grading plan, and
two copies of the calculations for atllowable discharge and on-site storage requirements, as prepared by a
Registered Professional Engineer or Architect. A copy of the completed checklist will be sent with all
submittals,
Each of the following items shall be included on the plan:

Total acres of site.

Total acres of watershed draining through the site outlet.

Drainage district lines including sub-district lines contributing to individual storm sewers
and rear lot drainage systems.

Location of site including dil 1o nearest i ion road or section kine,
Existing ground ions at i 50' centers, including shots on perimeter of site
and 50' beyond or contour lines at 1 foot intervals extending 50 feet beyond the site

Timits.
Elevations of ground, edge of pavement, and buildings within 50’ of site.
Top of curb, gutter, ditch line, and centeline of road elevation at maximum 50" intervals.

Existing storm catch basins, manholes, sewers, and culverts showing rim and invert
elevation(s).

Proposed elevations showing parking lot grades and control and building elevations.
Lawn/landscape areas.

Location, size, length, slope, and type of proposed storm sewer and rear lot drains,

and catch basins, including rear lot

Rim and invert ) of prop

drainage.
Location of on-site storage showing contour line for the top of storage elevation.
Provide sufficient dimensions, cross-sections, profiles, tie downs, etc. to determine the

location and size of proposed storm sewers and detention areas. This information will be
used for verifying proposed d ion volume calculations in grassed and paved areas.

Location of restrictor and proposed restrictor detaii(s).
Location and elevation of the Emergency Overflow.

Latitude and Longitude of site’s stormwater discharge point
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SAGINAW COUNTY
STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT APPLICATION

PROJECT NAME:

Property

Tax Identification #:

Site Plan

Review Date:

Date Applied:

Deposit Amount Submitted:

NAME OF DEVELOPER/OWNER:

ENGINEER/ARCHITECT:

Contact Person: Contact Person:

Street Address: Street Address:

City, State, Zip: City, State, Zip:

Telephone: Telephone:

Email:

Email:

PROJECT LOCATION:

Street Address:

Name of

Subdivision/Plat:

Drainage District:

STORM

(WATER DESIGN INFORMATION (*Calculations must be submitted for verification. Calculations must have clearly
lzbeled headings, formulas, and units.)

Type of Development (Circle): COMAMERCIAL SITE, SITE, PLATTED, C OTHER

*AREA O
*AREAQ
*AREA O
*AREA O

0

OWABLE DISCHARGE RATE (Qu) (cfs):

DEVELOPMENT (scres):

CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE DISTRICT {acees):

EXISTING IMPERVIQUS SURFACE (acres):

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SURFACE (actes):

QUTLET
QUTLET

ALL
| STOTAL VOLUME OF STORAGE REQUIRED {ou. R):
*TOTAL VOLUME OF STORAGE DESIGNED (cu. ft.):
10 YR DESIGN STORMWATER DETENTION STORAGE ELEVATION:
EMERGENCY OVERFLOW/MAXIMUM STORAGE ELEVATION:
LOWEST FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION:

DESIGN IMPERVIOUS FACTOR (EMP):
*10 YEAR DESIGN DISCHARGE (cfs):
*HEAD D

*DIAMETER QF PROPOSED RESTRICTOR (in.):
*ACTUAL RESTRICTED DISCHARGE (cfs):

Latitude and Longitude of outfall to county drain or MS4

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE

DRAIN SIZE AND DESIGN FLOW CAPACITY:

DRAIN INVERT ELEVATION:

IFFERENTIAL THROUGH RESTRICTOR (ft.):

PLEASE DRAINAGE PLAN CHECKLIST TO ASSURE
ALL INFORMATION IS PRESENT FOR REVIEW
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DRAINAGE PLAN - CHECKLIST (Continued)
Each of the following items shall be included in the submitted calculations:

Drainage District and impervious factor (if applicable and already established for the
Tocation of the site).

Calculation of maxi towable disct (Obtain impervious factor from the
SCPWC Engineer, if applicable).

Calculation of on-site storage required.
Calculation of storage volume provided.
Calculation of restrictor size.

Hydrologic & Hydraulic Calculations for sizing storm sewer systems, which will be
maintained by a public agency.

Hydrologic and Hydraulic calculations showing there will be no adverse impacts

p or of the p 7
Beyond the Saginaw County Public Works C: issil Design Requi the
1 must submit appli for permits with all agencies that regulate stormwater within the area
of development. These may include Michigan Dep of T fon, Michigan Department of

Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, Saginaw County Public Works Commissioner (SESC), or the
Saginaw County Road Commission.
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INSPECTION REPORT FORM

PROJECT

NAME: WORK ORDER NO.:

CONTRACTOR: REPORT NO.:

SUPERINTENDENT: ! DATE:

WEATHER (CLEAR, CLOUDY, RAIN, SNOW): TEMPERATURE: INSPECTOR:
WORK FORCE ON SITE: NUMBER: TRADE: NUMBER: TRADE:

EQUIPMENT IN USE (Number and Type):

WORK DONE (Location, Amount, and Type): (Be Specific)

TYPE OF UTILITY INSTALLED (Water, Sewer, Pavement, Size, Class, Description, Source);

GROUND CONDITIONS ENCOUNTERED (Clay, Sand, Wet, Dry, Good Poor, or Other & Detail Further):

BACKFILL INSTALLED:

EXISTING UTILITIES ENCOUNTERED:

RELOCATION OF PROPOSED UTILITIES AND REASON NECESSARY:

MATERIAL DELIVERED TQ SITE (Size, Class, Description, Source):

VISITORS TO WORK SITE (Name, Affiliation):

REMARKS:

NOTE: Complete in ink. Use reverse side if necessary. Inspectors using digital systems should provide a copy to SCPWC

By: Date:
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https//www.michigan fwh-stormwater-ConstructionQA_248586_7.pdf

Once the project site is stabilized and has good vegetative cover, remember to fill out a project
termination form on the MiWaters website.

Determine inspection responsibilities:

Make sure that SESC issues are an agenda item at the pre-bid meeting and at the pre-construction
meeting, Do not just put a note on the plans that SESC is the contractor’s responsibility; make sure they
are fully aware of their site responsibilities. Remember that the owner of the project is ultimately the
responsible party, the EGLE or enforcing agency will be fining them.
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SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FOR CONSTRUCTION SITES
PROCEDURE

A general procedure for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control (SESC) and NPDES permits to
discharge stormwater from construction sites:

There have been changes in the itting for ion sites for develop

municipalities, and other public agencies. These rules took effect at the date listed below; everyone must
adhere to these changes and be aware of them.

EFFECTIVE DATE— MARCH 10, 2003

General procedure to follow:

Site has a soil disturbance of 1 to <5 acres;

Apply for Soil Erosion Sediment Control permit from either the County Enforcement Agency (CEA) or
Municipal Enforcement Agency (MEA). The Saginaw County Public Works Commissiouer is the
County Enforcement Agency.

‘The following site offers a direct link to the Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit:

http:/iww i com/Docs/publicworks/FilllnForms/Permit_Application SESC.pdf

The NPDES discharge permit for this site is covered by the “permit by rule”; no permit or application
needs to be filled out for the state. A certified stormwater operator is also required to inspeet the site
weekly and within twenty-four (24) hours of a rain event resulting in a discharge of stormwater from the
site.

Note: If the client is an APA (Authorized Public Agency for soil erosion and sediment control} they still
must follow the permit by rule, they do not need a SESC Permit as they have procedures approved by
EGLE. The rules are at the following site:

hitp:/hveny.michi /d /deq/wb-sw-Construction-Rules- HtoSacres 264064 7.pdf

Site has a soil disturbaunce of 5 or more acres;

Apply for Soil Erosion Sediment Control permit from either the county enforcement agency (CEA) or
municipal agency (MEA) first.Then fill out the NPDES Notice of Coverage form for discharges from the
construction site on the MiWaters website.

‘To apply, renew, or terminate permit coverage, go the MiWaters website
at https://miwaters deq.state.mi.us and log into your account. If you don't already have an account, view
the tutorial on how to establish your account. Once you have an account established, you may:
« apply for permit coverage by searching for Notice of Coverage Application,
« renew by searching for Notice of Coverage Renewal, or
¢ terminate your peanit by searching for Notice of Termination.
Once the state receives the form, the site is covered.

Note: Ifclient is an APA (authorized public agency for soil erosion and sediment control) they still must
obtain and fill out the NPDES Notice of Coverage to discharge stormwater from & construction site; they
do not need SESC Permit as they have procedures approved by MDEQ.
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SAGINAW COUNTY
DETENTION AND RESTRICTION FLOW
FINAL INSPECTION REPORT FORM

Name of Site Development:

Planning Commission
Approval Number:

Location:

Type of Development:*

Size of Restrictor:

Type of Restrictor:¥*

Location of Restrictor:

Required Detention {ft):

Type of Detention:¥+*

Location of Detention:

Do As-builts Conform
To Present Site Conditions?

TInspection Comments:

Date of Inspection:

Inspector’s Name
and Affiliation:

+ . Residential. C: al. Subdivicion, Etc.
¥* . Orifice in Outlet Pipe, Metering Outlet Pipe, Square Orifice, Etc.
#%+ . Parking Lot Ponding, Detention Basin, Underground Detention, Etc.
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APPENDIX B

1. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PERMIT APPLICATION FOR USE
OF RIGHT-OF-WAY

2. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STORMWATER DISCHARGE
PERMIT APPLICATION

3. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY JOINT
PERMIT APPLICATION




To assure that all agency forms are as up to date as possible Onekama Township has provided the
following website addresses that various forms may be attained at for use by developers and design
engineers,

1. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PERMIT APPLICATION FOR USE OF
RIGHT-OF-WAY, is available through the MDOT Permit Gateway. More information and link to
the MDOT Permit Gateway can be found at:

httos:/fwww.michigan.gov/mdot/0.4616,7-151-9623 26662 26679_27267 48606-182161--,00.htm!{

2. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STORMWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT
APPLICATION, through the MDOT Permit Gateway. More information and fink to the MDOT
Permit Gateway can be found at:

https://www.michi /mdot/0.4616,7-151-9623 26662 26679 27267 _48606-331000--,00.htm!]

3. MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY JOINT
PERMIT APPLICATION is available on the MiWaters website. More information and link to
MiWaters can be found at:
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OPERATION & MAINTENANCE PLAN FOR
STORMWATER DRAINAGE SYSTEMS, STRUCTURAL & VEGETATIVE
BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS)

< Please insert name of site>
<Laocation>
171i: Operalian & AMai Plaﬂ is tobe leted for devels or re-devell ofall
division and cond. fevel that disturb at least one or more acres, including pre uje(.‘l:
less than an acre that are part of a larger common plan of development or sale and require the operation and
maintenance of stormwater drainage systems and/or siructural and vegelative best management practices and/or
struetural stormvater conirols.

I Responsibility for Maintenance:
A. During Construetion: <name of site> (contractor) has the responsibility to perform the
maintenance.

B. Following Construction: <name of site> is responsible to perform the

1. Routine maintenance of the stormwater facilities must be completed an a scheduled basis

by the owner or lessee. All catchbasins/manholes/rear yard basins, detention basins, flow
or other must be d and i ion on a

scheduled basis.

2, Any structural and/or best management practices (BMPs) must be instailed and
implemented properly to meet the performance standards.

3.1f the site is notified by the locat DPW, zoning administrator, County Engineer or
municipal engineer, either verbally or in writing, within ten (10) calendar days of this
notification action is required, unless other acceptable amngcments are made with the
County Engineer or ible authority. (when there is
endangerment to public health, safety or welfare) shall be performed immediately upon
receipt of verbal or written notification. I the <name of site> fails to act within these
timeframes, the responsible local township or municipality, or successors may perform
the needed maintenance and assess the cost against the <name of site>, plus an
administrative fee of 25%.

1. Funding:
The <name of site> is required to pay for all continued maintenance activities.

IT.  Maintenance Tasks and Schedule:
A, During Construction;
1. Properly plug and abandon existing storm sewer to prevent any sediment from entering
the existing system.
2,Establish and maintain ‘BMP’s to prevent sediment from leaving the site.

B. Post-Construction:

1. Perform scheduled semi 1 ions and i ions following major storm events
to check for floatables and debris wxlhm the system. Remove floatables and debris as
required.
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APPENDIX C

MAINTENANCE PLAN AND AGREEMENT

2. Annually inspect for sediment within the catch basin sumps. Removal of sediment is
required if within 12 inches of an inlet or outlet pips in the structure.

3, Every two (2) years inspect the structural elements of the storm system {restrictor, catch
basins, etc.) noting any failures. Correct as needed.

4.1f catch basin inserts are in place, inspect every 6 months and replace screens, filters or
cloth as necessary for the particular type of insert.

5.Mow detention basins on a regular basis; no cattails, Phragmites, or other plants can grow
unrestricted in these basins.

6. Ensure long-term operation and maintenance of all structural and vegetative best
management practices installed and implemented.

Note: Update and revise as necessary. Include all structural stormwater controls and the appropriate
maintenance and schedule for each.

Records:
A. The <name of site> shall keep & written log of both p: ive and corrective
acnvmes At mmlmum, the log shall contain the date of the inspection, the reason for the

the d and the resulting activities and any photographs taken for
documentahon purposes. The log shall be available for review at the request of the SCPWC.

B. IHfasite is sold to another, this Operation and M i must be tothe
new owner and the SCPWC must be informed of the change in ownership within fourteen (14)
days of the sale.

C. Annually, a compliance statement must be sent to <insert tracking site>. The owner or operator of
the site will at minimum provide the date of inspection(s) and any maintenance performed, if
applicable. This can be accomplished via email to the email address listed below of the
responsible party.

D. Ifthe owner or operator of the site does not respond to the jance statement with
of site i ion and of structural controls and best management
practices within founeen (14) days from the day of receiving the email, the responsible focal
township or i or ive for the ible local township or municipality, wilt
perform an inspection and an administrative fee will be charged to the owner or operator.

Site Aceess;

A. Tfthere is a drainage issue/problem on a site that has to do with the storm drainage system, best
management practices, or is discharging too much stormwater or water that does not appear to
meet water quality standards, the owner must let the responsible local township or municipality, or
designee, onto the property for the following:

1.Inspect the structural or vegetative best practi drainage issue/probl
or discharge problem.

2.Perform the necessary maintenance or comrective actions neglected by the BMP owner or
operator. The ible local township or municipality has the option to obtain &

contractor to complete the work end charge the owner/developer for costs incurred plus a
25% surcharge for administrative fees.
B. Any and all necessary mai or fon actions that the ible local township or
municipality must perform will be charged to the owner or operator of <name of site>.




VI Spillst APPENDIX D
o Identify key spill response personnel and train employees on who they are.
*  Store and maintain appropriate spill cleanup materials in a clearly marked location near storage 1. RUNOFF COEFFICIENTS TABLE
areas; and train employees to ensure familiarity with the site’s spill control plan and/or proper spiil
cleanup procedures.
s Locate spill cleamip materials, such as absorbents, where they will be readily accessible (e.g. near storage
and maintenance areas).
o If a spill occurs, notify the key spill response personnel immediately. If the material is unknown or
hazardous, the local fire department may also need to be contacted.
o Ifthe spill gets into the storm drainage system, contact the Saginmwv County Public Works Commissioner,
or appropriate agency depending on antount of material spilled.
s If safe to do so, attempt to contain the material and block the nearby storm drains so that the area
impacted is minimized, If the material is unknown or hazardous wait for properly trained personnel to
contain the materials.
o Spills or leaks from vehicles in parking lots such as oils, antifreeze, or fitels should be addressed
Immediately when noticed by staff working af the site. The spill MUST be cleaned up using adsorbent
materials such as Oil Dry or even kitty litter and then swept up and properly disposed of DO NOT hose
down and wash into the storm drain system, these systems drain directly to rivers in our area and
eventually the Great Lakes.

Vil Operation and Maintenance Verification;

Ihave read this document and agree to imph the op ion and mai listed for this
site to protect stormwater quality leaving this site and to ensure best management prnc(lces are installed and
being implemented. 1agree to update this document as necessary when there is a change to the site regarding
any structural stormater controls and provide an updated copy to the County within fourteen (14) calendar
days.

Authorized Signature Date

Email address of r

party:

NOTE: Any change in email address must be provided to the SCPWC or local nurticipality within 5 business days
Jfrom the change of responsible parties.
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TABLE 1. Runoff Coefficients APPENDIX E
1. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
Description of area Runoff coefficients
Impervious Areas
Pavement, Roofs, Buildings 0.90
‘Water 1.60
Park/Playground/Cemetery Area 0.30
Lawn Area 0.17
Woodland Area 0.45
Pasture Area 0.40
Cultivated Area 0.60
Note: The ients in this ion are i for storms of $-year 1o 10-year frequencies, Less

frequent higher intensity storms will require the use of higher coefficients because infiltration and other losses
have a proportionally smaller effect on runoff. The coefficients are based on the assumption that the design
storm does not occur when the ground surface is frozen.

59 60




61

Best Management Practices

Best M: Practices recc ded by the County can be obtained from the
County Engil or Desig by requesting the BMP manual appropriate to a
comnercial or industrial activity from the BMP Guidance Series.

The standard BMP Guidance series to utilize within Saginaw County can be found in
the following sources:

Guidebook of Best Management Practices for Michigan Watersheds, published

by the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality — Water Division.
http://www.michigan,gov/dc /deq/deq-wb-nps-Intro_250601_7.pdf

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Guidebook, February 2003, from the
Michigan Department of Management and Budget's — Infrastructure Services
Design and Construction Division.

Michigan Department of Transportation — Drainage Manual, Chapter 9 — Best
Management Practices found at the following web site.
httpy//www.michigan.gov/stormwatermgt/0,1607,7-205--93193--,00.hitml

Any recommended or required BMPs that are established in Watershed
Management Plans written for the Upper Saginaw, Lower Tittabawassee, Lower
Cass Rivers, or Swan Creek.

Storm Water Management For Construction Activities, published by the United
States Environmental Protection Agency.
http://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyPDF.cgif2000461J.PDF?Dockey=2000461J.PDF

NPDES Best Manag Practices Guidi D published by the
Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water Enforcement and

Permits NPDES Technical Support Branch,

http://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyPDF cgif9100FCSA.PDF ?Dockey=9100FCSA.PDF
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Charles Stack, Chairman -
County Services Committee
111. S. Michigan Ave. Puy S
Saginaw, M| 48602 o \ 3

Re: Additional Fund Balance Request for Haithco Recreation Area Splash Pad
and Playground

Chair Stack and the County Services Committee,

The Saginaw County Parks and Recreation Commission respectfully requests
approval to utilize an additional $100,000 from the Parks and Recreation
Commission’s fund balance account in the 2021 budget. The funding will be
utilized to enhance the development of a splash pad and playground
installation at William H. Haithco Recreation Area scheduled for 2021
construction.

Additional project funds include grants from the Michigan Natural Resources
Trust Fund and the Saginaw Community Foundation.

| will be present at the December 1%, 2020 County Services Committee
meeting to answer any questions the committee may have.

Respectfully,

Bt

Brian Keenan-Lechel
Director
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To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed is a copy of a resolution of the Board of education of the School District of the City of
Bay City, whereby the Board, pursuant to statute, has determined to impose a summer tax levy
on all school district property.

As per our prior agreement, the Board of Education requests that Saginaw County Treasurer’s
collect the districts’ summer school property taxes levied upon property collected within the
School District of the City of Bay City.

If there are any questions, please feel free to call me at (989) 671-8111.
Sincerely,

A Compllrne; 21

Jolene L. Compton, CPA
Director of Finance & Accounting

Enc.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF BAY CITY,
BAY AND SAGINAW COUNTIES

A regular meeting of the Board of Education of said school district was held in said school
district on the 11th day of May, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.

The meeting was called to order by _MMM—
Present: M_(M’_squ_a) Te )\(_{l_ Qaivd . ?A?th sk ; CC‘AV\ QQALWULW

Absent: NDM .

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member f&a:‘rd

and supported by Member __ Py pa. !‘e,sk ;

WHEREAS, this Board of Education by resolution of January 26, 1983, determined to
impose a summer property tax levy on one-half (1/2) of the total of its annual school
property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within said school district
situated in whole or in part in the Townships of Beaver, Frankenlust, Hampton,
Kawkawlin, Merritt, Monitor, Portsmouth, Williams, Buena Vista, Kochville and
Tittabawassee and the Cities of Midland and Auburn, for the school property tax year of
July 1, 1983, through January 30, 1984, and for the school years thereafter determined to
impose a summer property tax levy of the total of its annual school property taxes,
including debt service, upon the property located within said school district including the
Townships of Beaver, Frankenlust, Hampton, Kawkawlin, Merritt, Monitor, Portsmouth,
Williams, Buena Vista, Kochville and Tittabawassee, and the Cities of Midland and
Auburn, and continuing from year to year thereafter until specifically revoked by the Board
of Education, and further determined to impose a summer property tax levy, including debt
service, upon property located within said school district situated in whole or in part in the
City of Bay City, beginning with the school property tax year of July 1, 1983, through June
30, 1984, and continuing from year to year until specifically revoked by this Board of
Education.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. T